ramco

Ramco Aviation Solution

Version 5.7

User Guide

Hangar Maintenance



DISCLAIMER

©2015 Ramco Systems Ltd. All rights reserved. All trademarks acknowledged.

This document is published by **Ramco Systems Ltd.** without any warranty. No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose without the written permission of **Ramco Systems Limited**.

Improvements and changes to this text necessitated by typographical errors, inaccuracies of current information or improvements to software programs and/or equipment, may be made by Ramco Systems Limited, at any time and without notice. Such changes will, however, be incorporated into new editions of this document. Any hard copies of this document are to be regarded as temporary reference copies only. The screen captures contained in this document may be dissimilar due to style sheet changes in the Ramco product.

The documentation has been provided for the entire Aviation solution, although only a part of the entire solution may be deployed at the customer site, in accordance with the license agreement between the customer and Ramco Systems Limited. Therefore, the documentation made available to the customer may refer to features that are not present in the solution purchased / deployed at the customer site.

About this manual

This manual briefly describes the basic processes and functions in Ramco Aviation Solution.

Who Should Read This Manual

This manual is intended for users who are managing the Aviation industry processes and are new to Ramco Aviation Solution.

This manual assumes that the user is familiar with the Aviation Industry nomenclatures and systems based software.

How To Use This Manual

Ramco Aviation Solution provides extensive Online Help that contains detailed instructions on how to use the application. Users are suggested to use this manual for specific references, along with the Online Help. This manual contains enough information to help the users perform the basic tasks and points toward the Online Help for more detailed information.

How This Manual is organized

The User Guide is divided into 3 chapters and index. Given below is a brief run-through of what each chapter consists of.

Chapter 1 provides an overview of the entire **Hangar Maintenance** business process. The sub processes are explained in the remaining chapters.

Chapter 2 focuses on the Hangar Work Order sub process.

Chapter 3 dwells on the Hangar Work Reporting sub process.

The Index offers a quick reference to selected words used in the manual.

Document Conventions

- The data entry has been explained taking into account the "Create" business activity. Specific references (if any) to any other business activity such as "Modify" and "View" are given as "Note" at the appropriate places.
- Boldface is used to denote commands and user interface labels.
 Example: Enter Company Code and click the Get Details pushbutton.
- Italics used for references.
 Example: See Figure 1.1.
- ▶ The *≫* icon is used for Notes, to convey additional information.

Reference Documentation

This User Guide is part of the documentation set that comes with Ramco Aviation Solution.

The documentation is generally provided in two forms:

- The Documentation CD in Adobe® Systems' Portable Document Format (PDF).
- Context-sensitive Online Help information accessible from the application screens.

Whom To Contact For Queries

Please locate the nearest office for your geographical area from www.ramco.com for assistance.

Table of Contents

Using Ramco Aviation SolutionX-1				
Logging into Ramco Aviation Solution for the first timeX-1				
Ramco Aviation Solution Home pageX-6				
A typical Ramco Aviation Solution Web PageX-12				
Chapter 1/Introduction1				
Chapter 2/Hangar Work Order 3				
Processing work order4				
Setting option for work order generation in visit package4				
Setting options for recording work order6				
Recording unscheduled work order details8				
Creating sub work order				
Selecting discrepancies to create corrective work order				
Authorizing a work order				
Planning the execution of a work order				
Scheduling work order				
Entering the work order details				
Viewing the progress of the work order and tasks				
Creating maintenance material request				
Short closing material request				
Assigning resources41				
Assigning work orders to the employee41				
Assigning work orders or WO tasks to resource				
Assigning work group				
Executing a work order48				
Recording preliminary inspection details				

Chapter 3/Hangar Work Reporting 51	Chapter 3/Hanga	ar Work Reporting	
------------------------------------	-----------------	-------------------	--

Reporting execution details	52
Defining quick codes for work reporting	52
Setting options for work reporting	53
Recording employee time sheet for hangar work order or task	57
Recording delay information	62
Reporting employee work details	65
Execute a visit package	69
Recording part consumption details	70
Recording job execution	85
Recording work order discrepancies	87
Recording facility usage	93
Creating a material return slip to return excess or unserviceable parts	95
Signing off information	100
Issuing certificate of maintenance	104
Closing of work order	. 106
Reversal of work order	111

ndexI-1

Using Ramco Aviation Solution

This section explains the basics of using a Ramco Aviation Solution web page. At the end of this section, you will be familiar with the concepts based on which Ramco Aviation Solution works, and also understand how to navigate around Ramco Aviation Solution.

Logging into Ramco Aviation Solution for the first time

Enter the URL of the Ramco Aviation Solution in the Internet Explorer window. For example, URL: <u>http://mecs.vueling.com/rvw</u>.



Note: The recommended browser platform for Ramco Aviation Solution is IE8.
 The Login page appears.

⊵ ی 🎝 🖏



Enter your **User Name** and **User Password** in the Login page, which have been provided by the System Administrator. Refer to the figure below.



User Name: A unique identifier name or code for logging into Ramco Aviation Solution.

Password: A sequence of characters which, when combined with the user name, ensures that only the user with this password and user name can access Ramco Aviation Solution, where Ramco Aviation Solution offers the user a predefined set of business processes and components.

Passwords must be difficult to guess, and kept secret by the user.

What is a Special Character?

A special character is a non-numeric character (not in the a-z alphabet and 0-9 numbers). Common examples are "!", "@", "#", "\$", "%", ^"", "&", "*".



You can type the special characters by pressing Shift + the required character key.

Example: If you want to type "&" as the special character, then press Shift button + 6 Key.



After entering the User Name and Password, click the Login pushbutton.

The system will prompt you to change the password, because it is your first login. Refer to the following figure.

" VirtualWorks" Authentication	20 U 10
This message urges you to change the password on first logon.	
meuty -> Login	(38 Minute(s) 11:32-04 987 AM

Close the window by clicking the **Close** pushbutton.

The **Password Reminder Question** screen appears. The system prompts you to provide an answer to the question.

Password Reminder Question	। (\$ ब ब
User fame	400 (Bit)
Question	Pauloria star v.
Arever	
	in
	2. Click the Save pushbutton.
1 Enter the answer for the secret question	
1. Enter are and the first the deel of globalish.	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	v
¢	
security -> Researd Reminder Question	0 59 Minute(s) 11 34 15 083 AM

Enter the answer.

Click the **Save** pushbutton to save the answer.

Note: The answer provided here will be used for changing the password if you forget your password.

The "Change Password" screen appears.

Change password for disabled user	13 🖓 😣 🕺
The finance The finan	rd
neurby -> Charge permot for district line	1 3 58 Minute(s) 11:36:13 969 AM

Enter a password of your choice. Ensure that the new password comprises a minimum of six characters and a maximum of 15 characters and includes a special character as well.

Example of passwords: abcd&, abcd*, abc@best

Click the Set User Password pushbutton, to save the password.

The home page of Ramco Aviation Solution appears. You can now access the activities for which you have permission, from this page.



Ramco Aviation Solution Home page

Welcome to Ramco Aviation Solutions!

You are now in the Ramco Aviation Solutions Home page. This is the first page you encounter, after successfully logging into the application.



From now on, your user name, organization unit and role are displayed on the top right of every Ramco Web page.

Default login details

This section, which occupies the area immediately below the address bar and to the right, side, shows:

- Your user name
- The default role to which your user name is mapped
- > The organization unit mapped to the default role

How a user inherits permissions

During deployment, each user name can be mapped or linked to multiple roleorganization unit combinations. Shown below are a few examples.

User Name	Role	Organization Unit
John	Configuration Administrator	Tech Records-Indianapolis
John	Engineering Manager	Engineering-New York
John	HR User	Engineering-New York
Andrea	Stores Clerk	Central Warehouse-Los Angeles
Andrea	Shift In charge	Line Station-Chicago
Daniel	Shop Maintenance Manager	Maintenance Shop-Memphis
Daniel	Project Engineer	Head office-New York

For each user name-role-organization unit combination, permission is given to a set of activities. These activities could be across the components deployed in the organization unit. Each user name-role-organization unit combination, therefore, refers to access to (i) a specific organization unit and (ii) one or more activities.

Although a user name can be mapped to multiple role-organization units, the user is assigned a default role-organization unit. This is accomplished through the Setup Defaults icon on the Web toolbar. Therefore, when you login with a given user name, the system retrieves the default role-organization unit and displays it to the right of the page.



Note that there is no separate permission to be obtained for a business process or a component. When you log into a permitted organization unit, the system displays all the business processes and components whose activities your role is permitted to access.

For example, your role may be given permission to two activities under the **Component Work Order** component, and one activity under the **Aircraft** component. When you log in, the system will show the following business processes: **Component Work Order** and **Aircraft**.

- Under the Component Work Order business process, the Create Component Work Order and Edit Component Work Order activities for which you have permission are displayed.
- Under the Aircraft business process, the Create Aircraft Record activity for which you have permission is displayed.

Busine The husiness process		hat the leave wear has no		ricciona to work with		Organization Unit: ABC	Role: ASC Role
ine pusiness process	651	nat the login user has pe		ISSIONS ID OUDTR OUDT.	The	activities in the	1 : H Themes -
Flight Operations	×	The components in	E		sele	cted component that	
Component Maintenance	×	the selected	ľ		→ the	login user has	
Hangar Maintenance	ъ.	business process	Ш	Create Maintenance Issue	👝 perr	nissions to work with.	(2)
Compliance Management	×.	that the login user	H	Create Stock Transfer Issue			
Reliability Management	× 1	has permissions to	1	Create Repair Order Issue			
Maintenance Activity And Cost Porecast	x.	work with	Н	Create Exchange Issue	Status	- ×	
Facility / Tool Management	1			Create Loan / Rental Issue	Issue Category	~	
Library Management	×ſ	Material Request		Create General Issue	Document Type	Maint Material Request 💌	
Inventory Setup		Stock Demand Management		Edit Issue	Lesting Location	ABC Limited M	
Stock Management		Stock Transfer	×	Confirm Issue	ading Partner #	× .	
Procurement Management		Stock Issue	×	Create Unplanned Issue			
Loans & Rentals Management		Stock Return	×	Edit Unplanned Issue			
Repair Order Management		Stock Receipt	×	Confirm Urplanned Issue			•
Warranty Management		Stock Maintenance	×	View Issue	a Al	~	P
Sales Setup	1	Stock Status Conversion	×	Record Direct Shipping Note	Category	Status	
Sales Management		Physical Inventory & Cycle Count		Record Shipping Note			
Finance Setup		Stock Analysis					
Book Keeping		Stock Planning	+		-		×.
Payables Management	×	Stock Management Reports	Þ.			🔂 🕈 🛛 🧿 59 Mini	te(s) 11:20:16 785 AM

Business Processes and Activities

Immediately below your user name, the system displays two rows of icons in the Web page toolbar.

On the left half of the first row, there will be three adjacent tabs: they are labeled Business Processes, Recent Activities and Favorites.

Business Process 🕶	Those business processes to which your role-organization unit has been entitled permission. Click this icon at the left top of the Web page to find the business process list.
눭 Recent Activities 🕶	The most recent list of business activities that you have visited. These activities could be across components and even business processes Click any link, to directly launch the recently visited page.
🚖 Favourites 🕶	This list, represented by the third icon from the left in the Web toolbar, shows those activities already earmarked as your favorites, using the Favorite icon on the Web toolbar. They will be activities to which your user name-role has been entitled permission.
	An activity under Favorites provides you a short cut to directly select it after you log into Ramco Aviation Solution, without having to search for the business process and component under which it is logically arranged.
	Pull down the Favorites menu and select the required activity. The activity is instantly invoked and the first page of the activity appears. This saves users time and effort of traversing to a Web page from the business process, the component and then the activity.

To start an activity under the Recent Activities or Favorites tabs

Select an activity listed under the Recent Activities or Favorites tab.

The system displays the first page of the selected activity.

For instance, if the activity Create Component Work Order is listed under the Favorites tab and you select it, the system will display the Select Component page.

To start a business process under the Business Process tab

Select any business process listed under the Business Process tab.

The system displays the components of the selected business process, in the submenu to the right of the selected business process.

4	Rence 🛃 🚈 🚮 🛃 Avia	tion Series 5 y Virtus/Works ** - Enterprise Application	Г	User: DMUSER	Organization Unit: ABC Limited	Role: ABC Role	
å	Business Process 🔹 🗋 📩 Recent Activities 🕶	☆ Favourites ions Release 5.1		Create Stock Transfer Issue	P 🕅 🖏 🖆 🍭 🎝 🛤 🔶 I 🛽	🗐 🔡 Themes 🔻	
				Create Repair Order Issue	📑 Trailbar 🕶 🏫 (🗎 📑 📮 🔟 🥹	
	Stock Management	Material Request		Create Exchange Issue			
	Procurement Management	Stock Demand Management		Create Loan / Rental Issue			
	Loans & Rentals Management	Stock Transfer		Create General Issue			
	Repair Order Management	Stock Issue		Edit Issue			
	Warranty Management	Stock Return		Confirm Issue			
	Sales Setup	Stock Receipt		Create Unplanned Issue			
	Sales Management	Stock Maintenance		Edit Lipplanned Issue			
	Finance Setup	Stock Status Conversion		Confirm Linnlanned Indua			
	Book Keeping	Physical Inventory & Cycle Count		View Terrie			
	Payables Management	Stock Analysis		New Issue			
	Receivables Management	Stock Planning		Record Direct Snipping Note			
	Fixed Assets Management	Stock Management Reports		Record Shipping Note			
	Management Accounting		4	Edit / Confirm Shipping Note			
	Litilities			View Shipping Note			
	Doutes P			Create Quick Codes			
	DCOBE			Edit Quick Codes			
]		_ _			
					🙂 59 Mini	ute(s) 1:18:17 140 PM	

Before using a Ramco Aviation Solution Web page

Components, activities and tasks

Before you get started on the Ramco Aviation Solution Web page, you need to know a few concepts based on which Ramco Aviation Solution works. These can be summed up in the few key words that follow.

- Business process
- Business component
- Activity
- Web page or user interface

A business process is a collection of interrelated components that pertain to a specific business domain/department, such as Book Keeping, Hangar Maintenance, Stock management, Human Resources Management, etc.

A business component refers to a set of logical actions or transactions that happen during the course of a business process. For example, components Stock Issue, Stock Return and Stock Receipt components are classified under the Stock Management BPC. Likewise, Journal Voucher, Currency Revaluation and Bank Reconciliation components are grouped under the Book Keeping BPC.

An activity refers to any task/transaction under a business component. For example, Create Maintenance Issue, Confirm Issue and Record Shipping Note activities under the

Stock Issue component enable users to perform specific functions of the Stock Issue process.

Business Component	Stock Management Stock Management	Click the arrow of any business process to display the list of components. Alternatively, click this icon to display the list of components for the previously selected business process.
Activity	Stock Management Edit Issue	Click the right arrow for any component to view the list of activities. Click the activity to view the first page of the activity. You can click links in this page to view more pages in the activity.

Essentially, clicking an Activity opens the **Web page** with which you work. When you are working with a Web page, you would be performing a task in an activity. However, it may or may not be necessary to perform all the tasks in an activity at one go. You may revisit the activity and perform some other tasks that are not mandatory at a later point of time. Hence, it may be concluded that you may have worked with as many **Web pages** as the number of tasks you have performed.

Note that there are several instances when a single Web page is used to carry out the activity straight away. Many of the activities comprise of a single Web page by which the user can both search for a specific record and perform the relevant task on the record.

Correlating tasks to web pages

Given below is an example of the Web pages under an activity, and the task correlating to each Web page.

Go to page	To carry out task
Select Issue to Edit	Selecting the stock issue for modification
Edit Issue	Editing the stock issue details
Confirm Issue	Confirming stock issue
Generate MMD Report	Generating MMD for the stock issue
Generate Part Barcode Label	Generate part barcode label for the stock issue

The second page is a hyperlink from the first page. The remaining pages are hyperlinks from the first page or other pages.

More about Search Criteria and the Select web page

You normally encounter a Select page before recording, editing or viewing a record. The "Select Issue Document" is an example of a select page. From this page, you can search for stock issue document you want to edit/view in the following way:

- Select search criteria such as Issue #, Warehouse #, Issue Type or Issue Category.
- You may also specify attributes of a stock issue such as, Ref. Document Type, Ref. Document #, Part # and/or Aircraft Reg. Type.

- The system displays all the stock issue records that satisfy the search criteria, in a multiline.
- From the multiline, select the specific issue record whose details are to be viewed or edited.
- From the Select page, click the link that takes you to the Edit page, Record Page or the View page. Alternatively, one of the fields in the multiline employee records will be hyperlinked, in the Select page. Select the hyperlinked field, to enter the Edit, Record or View page.

A typical Ramco Aviation Solution Web Page

Select a Web page by clicking on the activity on the left pane of the application.

Business Process: Component Maintenance Business Process • Recent Activities • Pavourites • • Authorize Component Work Order A group box. The Application to olb ar	n The Hot Key	DMUSER Organization Unit: ABC	Rote: ACC Role	
Search Criteria Display Option CWO-Task Part # CWO-Category TOOLS-CALIBRATION Work Center # CWO-Category TOOLS-CALIBRATION Work Center # CWO-Category Tools-CALIBRATION Work Center # CWO-Printer ADG Planned Date: Prom Customer # Search Results () Task # CWO-000003-2006 NST-0077	Search Hold Release Return Authorize CWI Edit CWO Total Cost	An Up arrow Component = Marke / Pece Part = Work Scope = User Status Planned Date: To Customer Name The Right-click menu lists pushbutton and link tasks you	w indicates s open. en ds. seral #	
3 CWO-011214-2008 10002 4 CWO-011215-2008 10002		26.51 5-3001	PIECE AMT-129	
Work Order Options A pushbutton task. A hyperlink task. The Trail bar. Reizes Reizes Click this icon to reactivate Status bar Component Work Order -> Authorize Component Work Order Reedy, Search Successfully Completed (Total: 7600 / Server: 5484 / Clent: 1359 / Max: 1359 / Max: 766 ms)				

The web page appears.

Knowing what a Web page consists of

A web page constitutes the entire document that you view online, which you use to either type in information or view information. All other elements described below, except the Menu button, will be inside the Web page.

Element	Icon	Description
List of Tasks in Web Page	 Search Hold Release Return Authorize CWO Edit CWO 	Right-click anywhere on the Web page to display a drop-down menu that lists the tasks you can perform in the Web page. The tasks include pushbuttons and links.
Record		A record refers to a collection of fields that represent attributes of an entity, such as aircraft, aircraft model, component or part. A record is uniquely identified by a key field, such as an identification number.
Multiline		A table, consisting of multiple rows and columns. Each row contains a single record. Each attribute of the record appears under a column with the field as the header in the multiline.
Field	Issue Date	Each data element in a page, which is either displayed automatically or which you enter/ type in, is a field. A display field appears in an Italic Regular font.
	Aircraft Reg #	An input field may be a text box or a drop- down list box. You may provide a valid input value.
	Issue Type Maintenance Issue	A drop-down list box displays a list of values from which you may select the required value.
	Prog. Item Type	An input field appearing in Bold format implies data entry is mandatory for the field.

While using a Web page, here are the basic elements you will be working with.

Field Input Window	User Defined Detail - 1 ×	Place your cursor inside an input field in any Web page and click the F2 key to open the input window. You can now type the required information, and click the correct pushbutton to close the window. This proves convenient for data entry as you can type in text continuously without scrolling as well as view the typed text in its entirety.
Link		A hyperlink when selected opens up another Web page.
Data Hyperlink		Any data in a field when selected, takes you to another Web page.
Search Criteria		Refers to a group of fields you can specify, such as "From Date" and "To Date". It enables the system to retrieve those records that have the same attributes as you have specified. Essentially, fields in the Search Criteria group box are filters to enable the system to retrieve specific and precise records. After you specify filters for retrieving records from the database, you must click the Search pushbutton to display records in the "Search Results" multiline. The number of records to be retrieved for each user interface is decided by the system administrator. Contact your system administrator for more details. The Search Criteria group box most commonly appears in Select pages; though it is not uncommon to find them in other pages as well.
Drop-down List Box	Issue Type Maintenance Issue	This refers to the list box that appears when you click inside a field containing a downward arrow. The list box shows a list of items, each of which represent an action you can choose.

Lens	Q	The icon positioned next to fields where code search facility is available. Click this icon to search for a code or number. For example, Help on Employee Code.
Pushbutton		A rectangular button that performs an action when clicked. For example, clicking the "Add Employee" pushbutton saves the employee details entered in the page.
Up Arrow	-	Click this icon appearing at the top of certain drop-down menus to view the hidden list above.
Down Arrow		Click this icon appearing at the bottom of certain drop-down menus to view the hidden list below.
Show Group Box		Select this button to show/ expand a group box.
Hide Group Box		Select this button to hide a group box.
Reactivate Session	21 Minute(s)	Click this icon to reactivate the current instance of the application. The timer next to the icon at the right bottom of the screen displays the time remaining for the end of the session.
Access Keys		Click this icon located at the bottom right of a Web page to view the short cut keys currently available for pushbuttons in the Web page.

System Error Message	1 Error(s) 🕶	Click this icon located at the bottom right of any Web page to view error messages generated by the application whenever erroneous data is input. Note that this icon appears only when an error occurs.

Application Toolbar

Busine	ss P	vocess: Component Maintenance		User: DMUSER	Organization Unit: ASC	Role: ABC Role
in lus	iness	Process • 🛛 🎉 Recent Activities • 🗋 🚖 Pavou	rites •		P 🕷 🛍 🐂 🎡 🎝 🖭 🔶 🗕	📓 🗄 Themes •
: ••	Selec	ct Component Work Order	7		🔐 Traiber + 🗌 🏠 (🚔 🛱 🏹 🔟 😣
			The	Application toolbar.	te Format dd/mm/yyyy	^
Direct	t Entr	ry .				
Searc	h Cri	iteria				
				Search		
Searc	h Re	sults				
[et] [e	d E	1 - 10 / 500 () () () () () ()			AJ 👻	٩
		Comp. Work Order #	Maintenance Type	Part #	Part Description	
1	٥	CW0-00003-2006	Overhaul	KB11001-003	BLADE ASSY, SEASPRITE G	
2	Ð	CW0-000004-2006	Overhaul	K614081-1	SH-2G T/R BLADE&GRIP	
3	D	CW0-000005-2006	Overhaul	HC-83TN-3D	PROP HARTZELL	

Element	Icon	Description
Hot Key Menu		Use this text box to type in the menu code and then click the Q icon for directly launching an activity page. Through the menu code you can open any activity page straightway by avoiding traversal across business components or business processes. Contact your System Administrator for more information.
Change Password	8	Use this icon on the Web page toolbar to change the password settings for the currently logged in user.
Setup Preferences	200 - C	Use this icon to set the style and format for numeric, date and time displays.

You will find the following elements in the Application Toolbar.

Change User Context	≈ ₁	Use this icon to switch across organization units or roles.
Setup Defaults		Use this icon to select the organization unit to which you will be logged in, by default.
Define Favorites	*	Use this icon to list down all the activities defined in the favorites. i) Click this icon to open the Organize Favorites window. ii) Specify the activities that must be set as favorites. iii) Click the Save user favorites pushbutton.
About VirtualWorks	(į)	Click this icon to know more about Ramco Aviation Solution.
Signout	2]	Click this icon to log out of the current session of the Ramco Aviation Solution.
Themes	Themes -	Use this drop-down list box to set the theme for the user interface (UI). Theme defines the color scheme, style and appearance of the user interface.

Note: Some more icons may appear in the Application toolbar, which may not be useful to end-users.

After the page appears, you may view it and then exit by clicking the Exit button on the Web page toolbar, after viewing the contents of the page.

When you complete selecting / viewing / entering data in all the required fields in the page, you can either:

- Save the details you entered in the current Web page, by clicking the relevant pushbutton.
- Select or choose a row in the multiline, by checking the box that appears as the first field of the row. Traverse to the next page, by selecting a link in the current page. In the next page, you can enter additional details that pertain to the multiline row. (A row in a multiline represents a record.)
- Exit the Web page without effecting any action that you might have carried out in the Web page.

Adding a record

You can add a new record in a web page. You are to enter a unique code to identify the record, along with other details of the record such as description, type, etc. This unique code of the record

- Can identify it from other records
- Cannot be edited
- Can be used to retrieve the record for edit and delete tasks
- Selecting a record

For certain other actions such as edit, delete, authorize or report generation, at the onset you need to find and choose a record in a **Select** page.

•
ρ
or l
306
201
306
~

The Select page provides a **Search** facility to find a record based on the search criteria that you can specify. The application retrieves and displays records that match the search criteria in a multiline. You may then proceed to do the following,

- Select or choose a record in the multiline, by checking the box that appears in the second column of the multiline. (The first column displays the sequence number of the record, which depicts the order in the multiline.)
- Click the link for the required action/event at the bottom of the page.

The page for the chosen action/event appears, displaying all the details of the record you selected in the multiline of the previous page. You may now edit, delete, authorize or carry out any other valid action on the record.

However, some Select pages facilitate deletion, authorization or release of records in addition to the search and find feature.

Sear	ch Re	sults							
	4) (N	io records to display] 💽			/ 🖞 🖸	a 🛯 🖉 🖬 🖬 🛔 🗐 🗛		×	P
	8	Work Order #	Work Order Description	Job Status	Job Type	Work Center #	Arcraft Reg #	WO Category	User Status
1 2 3	2 2	The Selec	tion toquots of The z7001 GROU to ol	multiline bar.	vroraft vroraft vroraft	6403-ACPT MAINT NO 4 HANGAR 640 A Left-click drop-do 640	N23806 24	Sort Ascending Sort Descending	
4 5	8	HWO-000004-2006	ADDW - Iroquois Iroquois Group 1	Closed Closed	Aircraft Aircraft	of a multiline colum	nd 🧧 🧕 n. 🥑	Lock Unlock	
6	23	H//0-000006-2006	Iroquois Group 10	Closed	Aircraft	6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 HANGAR	NZ3802	CUSTOMER JOB	
7	10	HWO-000007-2006	Iroquois Group 11 Iroquois Group 12	Closed	Aircraft Aircraft	6403-ACFT MADIT NO 4 HANGAR	NZ3802 02	CUSTOMER JOB	
9 10	5	HWO-00009-2006	A data hyperlink.	Closed Closed	Aircraft Aircraft	6403-ACPT the multiline.	02 02	CUSTOMER JOB CUSTOMER JOB	
		¢					_		2

Using the multiline

Adding a multiline row

A multiline row can be added, using the toolbar icons above the multiline. It can be either inserted between two existing multiline rows, or added to the end of the last row. You are to

- > Position the cursor in the multiline row above which the row must appear.
- Click the ⁺ icon on the toolbar above the multiline.

Deleting a multiline row

A multiline row can be deleted, using the toolbar icons above the multiline. The item to be deleted must not have been used in any transaction, so far. You are to

- Check the Selection check box for the record that appears in the second column of the multiline.
- Click the ⁻ icon on the toolbar above the multiline.

Multiline toolbar

The icons in the multiline toolbar are explained below.

Element	Icon	Description
Selection check box		A check box normally occurring as the second column of every multiline row. It precedes the record in the row. Check the Selection box to mark the record for copy and append, cut and append or deletion. You must also check this box to perform any pushbutton task or hyperlink task available in a Web page. Use the check box in the same row as the multiline header, to simultaneously select all the displayed records in the multiline.

First Record	<u>«</u>	Click this button, to view the first set of multiline records.
Previous Row Set	4	Click this button, to view the set of multiline records immediately preceding the currently displayed set of multiline records.
Next Row Set		Click this button, to view the next set of multiline records. However, this is applicable only if the number of retrieved records cannot be accommodated in the current set of multiline rows, and the rest need to be displayed in the next set of multiline rows.
Last Record	<u>»</u>	Click this button, to view the last set of multiline records.
Insert Record	•	Click this button on the toolbar above the multiline, to insert a record in the multiline.
Delete Record	-	Click this button on the toolbar above the multiline, to delete the selected record in the multiline.
Copy and Append Record	₽	Click this button on the toolbar above the multiline, to copy a selected record and insert it at the end of the multiline.
Cut and Append Record	4	Click this button on the toolbar above the multiline, to remove a selected record and insert it at the end of the multiline.
Export to Excel	αLS.	Click this button on the toolbar above the multiline, to export the multiline contents to Microsoft Excel.

Show PDF	1	Click this button to view all the multiline records in PDF format. All those records the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows can also be viewed in PDF.
Show report		Click this button to view the entire report including the header and the records in a pop-up window. All those records that the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows can also be viewed by maximizing the window. You can also (i) hide a column in the report and/or' (ii) group and view a report by any of the columns in the report.
Show Html	NTN.	Click this button to view the multiline records in a browser. All those records that the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows are also displayed in the browser.
Export to Excel	RLS	Click this button to view the multiline records in an Excel worksheet in the XML format. All those records that the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows are also displayed in the worksheet.
Export to csv	CSU	Click this button to view the multiline records in an Excel worksheet in the CSV format. All those records that the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows are also displayed in the worksheet.
Export to text		Click this button to view the multiline records in the Text format. All those records that the system cannot accommodate in the current set of multiline rows can be viewed in Notepad.
Show chart	ii .	Click this button for generating charts based on numeric columns.

Import data		Select this button to import data from a CSV or an XML file.
Save Personalize	=	Use this button to save any change in the size or order of the columns in the multiline that you have made. Once saved, the changed settings will appear when the page is launched again.
Remove Personalize	≞ .	Select this button to remove the personalization that you previously made.
List of columns in the multiline	All	Use the first drop-down list box at the top right of a multiline for a complete list of columns in the multiline.
Find specific record from among the retrieved records	All Ref. Doc #	Select the required column from the first drop-down list box on the top right of a multiline. Specify a search value for that column in the input box alongside. Thereafter, click the icon to pass the control to the first instance of the value in the selected column in the multiline.
Sort/lock multiline columns	A Sort Ascending Image: Sort Descending Image: Descending </th <th>You can use this menu to (i) sort rows in the multiline in ascending/descending order. (ii) lock columns in the multiline.</th>	You can use this menu to (i) sort rows in the multiline in ascending/descending order. (ii) lock columns in the multiline.

Editing a record

You can edit most records through an Edit page. Although the rules governing the fields to be edited will differ between record types, most records do not allow an edit of the unique code identifying the record. Example, an employee record can allow most of the fields to be edited except the Employee Code field.

You can edit a record, provided the record has not been authorized or mapped to any other record. In short, the record must not have been used by any other transaction. You are to

- > Select the Edit activity option on the left pane. The Select page appears.
- Select the record to be edited, from the Select page.
- Select the "Edit" link from the Select page. The Edit page appears, showing the details of the selected record.
- Edit the fields that the system permits you to edit. After completion, save the page. The edited details are updated in the database.

Authorizing a record

A record is authorized by any employee who has been given supervisory rights. The rules governing the authorization of records will differ between record types.

Keeping two web pages open simultaneously

To keep two pages open at the same time, you are to open the browser twice. This implies that you login separately each time, and select the required activity and page.

IE8 is the recommended browser platform for Ramco Aviation Solution.

What is the bare minimum to enter?

In a typical Ramco Aviation Solutions Web page, certain fields crucial for identification of a record appear in **Bold** font. This implies they are mandatory and you must specify a value for the field. Conversely, any field that appears in the Regular font is not mandatory and hence the user need not provide any value for the field. However, certain mandatory fields are set to default values for easy usage, which you may modify, if required.

Web Page / User Interface Toolbar

Business Process: Component Maintenance					User: DMUSER	Organization Unit: ABC Role: A		
品加	🔝 Business Process + 👔 Recent Activities + 📩 🙀 Favourites + 👘 😥 🙀 🔅 Theme						📓 🗄 Themes 🔹	
📑* Select Component Work Order 🛛 🙀 🖓 💭 🔟 🖗							9 7 8 8 8	
The Web page toolbar. Date Format dd/mm/yyyy							- A	
Direc	ct	Entr	Y	L				
Sear	rch	Crit	teria				•	
	Search							
Search Results								
[«] [1 - 10 / 500) (*) (*) (*) (*)		1	u 💌	Q	
		8	Comp. Work Order #	Maintenance Type	Part #	Part Description		
1		6	C//O-000003-2006	Overhaul	KB11001-003	BLADE ASSY, SEASPRITE G		
2		8	CWO-000004-2006	Overhaul	K614081-1	SH-2G T/R BLADE&GRIP		
3		Ð.	C///O-000005-2006	Overhaul	HC-83TN-3D	PROP HARTZELL		

Element	Icon	Description
Trailbar	Trailbar 🕶	The Trailbar drop-down list box displays all the Web pages traversed to reach the current Web page.
Go to Home page		An icon you select to go to the Home page.
Print screen		Use this icon to obtain a hard copy of the Web page.
Refresh Screen		A button that you select on the Web Page toolbar to enable the system to fetch the most recently updated data from the database. When you select this button in a Create page, the fields are made empty.
Go Back	.	Click this icon to traverse to the previous page.
Launch UDS	LUS	Click this icon to launch the user-defined screens.
Show Help	9	Click this icon to open the online context -sensitive help for a Web page. Alternatively, click the F1 key to open the Help page. However, to access online Help for a tab page, position the cursor on the tab page and then click the F1 key.

Here are the elements you will be working with, in the Webpage Toolbar.

Chapter 1/ Introduction

Operating assets in aviation are subjected to periodic scheduled maintenance to fulfill increased reliability requirements. The prime objective for an airline operation is to achieve lowest possible operation cost per available flying hour, at acceptable reliability levels. A structured preventive maintenance program with a predictable maintenance execution frequency contributes towards achieving this business objective.

The hangar maintenance execution process is triggered by the allocation of the aircraft "visit package" by the central production planner to the respective execution facility. The visit planner at the execution center does the high level scheduling of the work scope (firms up the work scope), plans material and resources and releases work orders to all the work centers which are involved in the execution of the maintenance activities on the aircraft for the visit. Integration with 'Project Management Tool' (PMT) can also be done to arrive at the schedule date. The visit planner performs the opportunity maintenance and also processes the deferred discrepancies.

The planners/supervisors for the respective work center undertake detailed execution planning for the allocated work orders. Discrepancies (non-routines) reported during the course of work execution are processed into corrective work orders. Even the work unit that has reference to a discrepancy or maintenance report is processed into corrective work orders. The discrepancies or maintenance reports that are included in the visit package are also processed into corrective work orders.

Work reporting serves as the critical feedback mechanism for the planner to monitor the progress of the work. Deviations from the plan are detected and corrective measures are initiated based on the deviations. Besides progress monitoring and control, work reporting also establishes a historical record of the maintenance activities performed on the operating asset. It also aids in actual cost calculations and updation of maintenance program for compliance. This forms an important input in analysis, which includes work-study, failure analysis, trending etc. Once the maintenance activity on the aircraft is completed, Certificate of Maintenance (if required) is released and the aircraft is ready to fly.

Introduction

Chapter 2/Hangar Work Order

Aircraft, which is the primary entity of the airline, has to be serviced to operate with maximum efficiency and to comply with the safety standards set by the regulatory authorities. Various types of routine maintenance of the aircraft are done as per the predefined maintenance schedules, which are compiled based on the manufacturer's recommendation and the operator's experience. Non-routine maintenance of the aircraft is done when defects are observed either during the normal operation or during the course of standard maintenance execution.

The discrepancy list for the aircraft is verified, pending (deferred) discrepancies, if any, are added to the work scope. The scheduled execution dates for the activities are firmed up and the material planning process is also initiated. The visit planner releases the visit package for execution, during which work orders are propagated to the respective work centers. Consequent to this, the system generates work orders for the visit package based on the parameters set by users. The tasks belonging to specific work centers are clubbed together and consolidated into a single work order for each work center. The visit package is closed, upon completion of all the associated work orders.

The scheduled maintenance is structured into two basic categories namely, light maintenance and heavy maintenance. Light maintenance activities do not require prolonged grounding and can be carried out during normal halts of the aircraft; these are performed at the line stations. Heavy maintenance activities are extensive, requiring prolonged grounding of the aircraft. These are less frequent as compared to the line activities, and are typically executed in "Hangars", where the requisite facilities are available.

Work Order

Work order represents the permission to execute the stated maintenance activity on the aircraft or component. The work order document carries all information pertaining to the maintenance activity(s) to be executed and it also acts as a communication by the planner to the execution personnel. A work order is typically associated with a work center that is responsible for its execution.

The hangar maintenance execution process is triggered by the allocation of the aircraft visit package by the central production planner to the respective execution facility.

The planners for the respective work centers undertake detailed execution planning and the material requirements are communicated through "material requisitions". Employees, work group and facilities are identified and maintenance jobs are allocated. Non–routine discrepancies reported during the course of work execution are processed into corrective work orders.

Processing work order

Hangar work order acts as a communication between the planner / supervisor and the execution personnel. A hangar work order contains the following information:

- Maintenance object details: The details of the object on which the maintenance activities need to be executed.
- Maintenance activity: The activity(s) that must be executed. Besides describing the various steps involved, the tasks typically carry the point of execution as ATA, Zone etc. The system sequences the opening and closing access panel tasks and establishes the dependencies. Depending upon the level of urgency, you can assign priority to both work order and tasks.
- Resource requirements: The resources (workgroup, material and facilities) to be expended for accomplishment of the stated activities.
- Material requirements are communicated through "Maintenance Material Request".
- Schedule details: The expected start and completion dates for the maintenance activity(s).

On release of the visit package by the visit planner to the work center, the *Scheduled work order* is generated. The *Unscheduled work orders* are created directly.

Types of work orders

Based on the maintenance object and the nature of the maintenance activity, work orders can be classified as:

- Aircraft Work Orders: Work orders created for executing different maintenance activities on the aircraft.
- On-Wing Component Work Order: Work orders created for performing the maintenance activities on the components that are attached to the aircraft.
- Component Replacement Work Orders: Work orders that are created for performing the component replacements.

Setting option for work order generation in visit package

You can set default options for the work order generation.

1. Select **Set Work Order Generation Options** under the **Visit Package** business component. The **Set Work Order Generation Options** page appears. *See Figure 2. 1.*

usiness Process: Maintenance Planning User: DMUSER Organization Unit: Demo Role: Demo User: DMUSER Organization Unit: Demo Role: Demo User: DMUSER Organization Unit: Demo							
諯 Business Process 🛛 📝 Recent Activities	🖁 Business Process 🗸 🔯 Recent Activities 🖌 🎽 Favourites 🖌 😝 5.2F 💦 🎽 🏙 🗸 🗵 👷 🔘 🗐 🧮 🗷 The						🖌 🔁 🎕 🌄 🔛 🚖 📵 🛃 🗮 Then
■ ▼ Set Work Order Generation Opt	📑 🔹 Set Work Order Generation Options 🛛 📓 🖡 🍒 🌆						
							Date Format dd/mm/yyyy
Work Order Generation Options							
Create Work Ord	er Fo	Group of Tasks	~				
	V	ATA wise		Work Area wise		Task Group wise	
Task Grouping Option	ns 📃	DSC wise		Skill wise		Task Type wise	
		Related Task wise		Zone wise		Eng. Doc. wise	
		Execution Phase wise					
Set Options							
Record Statistics							
Last Modified I	y 652	6				Last	t Modified Date 15/04/2009

Figure 2. 1 Setting option for work order generation in visit package

You can specify whether the work order must be created for every task or for a group of tasks. The system performs the following while generating the work order based on the criteria selected:

- Note: The controls in the Task Grouping Options are enabled when the option "For Group of Tasks" is selected in the "Create Work Order" combo. The controls in the Task Grouping Options are disabled when the option "For Each Task" is selected.
 - 2. If **Create Work Order** field is set as "For Each Task", one work order is generated for each task included in the visit package.
 - 3. If **Create Work Order** field is set as "For Group of Task", the work order is generated based on the option selected in the **Task Grouping Options** field.
 - "ATA Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on the ATA chapter.
 - "DSC Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on dependent system condition.
 - "Related Task Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on their relationship.
 - "Execution Phase Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on execution phase.
 - "Work Area Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on work area.
 - "Skill Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on skill.
 - "Zone Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on zone.

- "Task Group Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on task group.
- "Task Type Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on task type.
- "Eng. Doc Wise" box is checked, to group the tasks based on the engineering document reference
- 4. Click the **Set Options** pushbutton to update the options.

Setting options for recording work order

You can define the various system parameters for hangar work order. You can also set options for automatic generation of material request and work deferment.

- 1. Select **Set Options** under **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Set options** page appears. *See Figure 2. 2.*
- 2. In the Authorization Options field,
 - Check Non Routine WO box, if you wish to enable authorization for nonroutine work orders.
 - Check Corrective WO box, if you wish to enable authorization for corrective work orders.
 - Check Sub WO box, if you wish to enable authorization for sub-work orders.
- 3. In the Modification of WO field, set the option as
 - "Allowed", to allow modification of a work order.
 - "Not Allowed after Scheduling", to prevent modification after scheduling.
 - "Only New Tasks can be added", to allow only addition of new tasks to the existing work order.
 - "Requires Re-Authorization", if authorization is required after the modification of the work order.
- 4. Set the **Re-Scheduling Beyond Compliance Date** as "Allowed" or "Not Allowed" to specify if the re-scheduling of work orders beyond the compliance date is allowed or not.
- 5. Set the **WO Assignments Prior to Scheduling** as "Allowed" or "Not Allowed" to specify if the assignments to the work orders prior to the scheduling of the work order, is allowed or not.
Hangar Work Order

Set Options	😂 Trailbar 🕶 🗌 🎰 🚛 题
	Date Format DD/MM/YYYY
Work Order Options	
	<u> </u>
Non-Rottine wo	
Authorization Options 🦳 Corrective WO	
📃 Sub WO	
Modification of WO Allowed	*
Re-Scheduling Beyond Compliance Date Not Allowed 🚽	
WO Assignments Prior to Scheduling Not Allowed 🗸	
Work Deferments	
Deferments of Discrepancies Not Allowed	
Authorization of Deferrals	
Authorization Onlines 🔲 For Deforment Depuest	
For Discrepancy	
Access Panel Task Details	 Image: A set of the set of the
Create WorkOrder Combined 🗸	
Task Grouping Options Task Type 🗸 🗸	
Material Request Authorization Options	
Substitute-Alternate	Additional Part
Authorization Options	Additional Oty.
E Adductiat Ric Quy.	
Material Request Auto Creation Uption	<u></u>
Auto Creation of Material Request On Scheduling 🗠	
Auto Creation options Work Order Wise	
Auto Material Request Numbering Type MR 🛁	
Auto Material Request MR Category INTERNAL	
Auto Material Request Status Authorised 🐱	
Set Options	
Record Statistics	
Last Modified by DMUSER	Last Modified Date 03/04/2009
Hangar Work Order -> Set Options	🔰 🕑 59 Minute(s) 5:05:14 0:

Figure 2. 2Setting options for recording work order

In the Work Deferments group box,

- 6. Select the **Deferments of Discrepancies** as "Allowed" or "Not Allowed" to specify whether deferment of non-routine discrepancies, are allowed or not.
- 7. In the Authorization of Escalations group box,
 - Check the **For Short Term Escalation** box if you wish to enable authorization for the short term escalation raised.
 - Check the For Discrepancy box if you wish to enable authorization for deferring discrepancy.

In the Access Panel Task Details group box,

- 8. Select the **Create Work Order** as "Independent" or "Combined" to specify whether you can create independent or combined work order for different task types or main work orders.
- 9. Select the **Task Group Options** as "Task Type" to combine different types of task in a work order or "Main Order" to combine different main work orders into one work order.
- Note: If independent is selected then all access panel tasks are created into independent work orders. If combined is selected then open and close access panel tasks are grouped either based on the Main Work Order or based on open and close access panel tasks.

- 10. In the Material Request Authorization Options field,
 - Check the **Substitute-Alternate** box, if authorization is required for requesting alternate parts in the material request.
 - Check the **Substitute-NHA** box, if authorization is required for requesting NHA (Next Higher Assembly) part in the material request.
 - Check the **Additional Kit Quantity** box, if authorization is required for requesting additional kit quantity in the material request.
 - Check the **Additional Part** box, if authorization is required for requesting additional parts in the material request.
 - Check the **Additional Qty.** box, if authorization is required for requesting additional quantities of parts in the material request.

In the Auto Creation of Material Request group box,

- 11. Set **Material Request Auto Creation** field as "On Scheduling" to automatically create a material request on scheduling the work order. Select "Not Allowed" otherwise.
- 12. In the Auto Creation Options,
 - Select "Work center wise", if you wish to create a material request for every work center.
 - Select "Work order wise", if you wish to create a material request for every work order.
 - Select "Task wise", if you wish to create a material request for every task.
- 13. Select the numbering type for automatic material request in the **Auto Material Request Numbering Type** field.
- 14. Select the default category for the automatic material request in the Auto Material Request MR Category field.
- 15. Select the default status for the automatic material request in the **Auto Material Request Status** field.
- 16. Click the **Set Options** pushbutton to record the hangar work order options.

Recording unscheduled work order details

1. Select **Create Work Order** under **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Select Visit Package** page appears.

- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the visit package and click **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Select the hyperlinked visit package number in the multiline, to create a work order for the selected visit package. The **Create Work Order page** appears. *See Figure 2. 3.*
- 4. Select the **Numbering Type** for generating the work order number automatically.
- Note: For details on creating numbering types, refer to the section "Defining numbering types for transactions" in the "Inventory Setup" User Guide.
 - 5. Select the Work Order Category.
 - 6. Specify the **Job Type** of the work order as "Aircraft", "On-Wing" or "Component Removal".
 - 7. Use the drop-down list box to specify the **Expense Type** of the work package. The system provides the options "Revenue" and "Capital".
- Note: This field must be set to "Capital", if the ownership of the aircraft is set as "Owned" or "Leased Out" in the "Aircraft" business component.
 - 8. Enter the capital expense proposal number applicable to the work unit, in the **CAPEX Proposal #** field.
- Note: The CAPEX Proposal number specified in the HWO must have an asset class that is same as the asset class to which the Asset Tag and Asset No. are mapped for the aircraft. The system performs this check only when the expense type is "Capital" and the "Enforce Object to Asset Mapping For" field is set as "Aircraft" in the "Set Option" activity of the "Account Group" business component.
 - 9. Enter the Work Order Description.

To copy details from an existing work order,

- 10. Enter the Work Order #, from which you wish to copy the details.
- Note: You cannot copy details from a "Cancelled" work order.
 - 11. Enter the standard procedure that you wish to attach to the work order, in the **Std. Procedure #** field.
 - 12. Check one or more of the following boxes, to specify the copy options:
 - All To copy all the details of the work order.
 - Notes To copy only the additional notes from the work order.
 - Tasks To copy only the task details of the work order.
 - **References** To copy only the references of the work order.

13. Click the **Get** pushbutton, to retrieve the details.

The system displays the following details:

- The system retrieves all the related tasks with the Parents Tasks in the "Parent Task #" column and the relationship between the Task # and Parent Task # in the Relationship Type" column.
- The details of the work order, if you have specified the work order number in the "Copy Details" group box.

In the Reference Document Details group box,

- 14. Set the Ref. Document Type field to one of the following:
- Project work order If the reference document is a component work order of job type "Project".
- Component work order If the reference document is a component work order of job type other than "Project".
- Others If the reference document is any other document such as transaction slip, receipt, etc
- Note: You cannot leave this field blank, if you enter the "Ref. Document #" field.
 - 15. Enter the reference document number in the **Ref. Document #** field.
- Note: Ensure that the reference document entered here is a valid component work order of status other than "Fresh" or "Cancelled", if the reference document type is "Project work order" or "Component work order". Also, the component work order must be of job type "Project", if the reference document type is "Project work order".
 - 16. Enter the **ATA #**, under which the aircraft is listed, in the **Aircraft Details** group box.
 - 17. Click the hyperlinked Customer Order # field to view the customer order details.

The system displays the customer details, if applicable.

- 18. Enter the **Part#**, **Component #** and **Serial #** in the **Component Details** group box.
- Note: Entry in the above fields is mandatory, if the job type is "On-Wing" or "Component Removal".
 - 19. Enter the Position Code.
- Note: Entry in this field is mandatory, if the engagement type of the aircraft is "Full Maintenance", or if the job type is "On-Wing" or "Component Removal".

- 20. Enter the **Zone #** of the part.
- Note: Entry in this field is mandatory, if the engagement type of the aircraft is "On-Request".
 - 21. Select the **Maintenance Type**(for on-wing jobs), that must be performed on the aircraft.
 - 22. Set the **Replacement Type** to "Replacement", "Restoration", "Remove Only" or "Attach Only".
 - 23. Select the **WO Priority** and **Work Center #** in the **WO Execution Details** group box.
 - 24. Select "Yes" or "No" in the **Interruptable** field, to indicate whether the work order can be executed with interruptions or not.
 - 25. Enter the name of the employee who can be approached in case of any clarification, in the **Contact Person** field.
 - 26. Enter the total man-hours estimated to complete the work order, in the **Est. Man Hrs.** field.
 - 27. Select the **Work Center #**, which is responsible for the execution of the work order.
 - 28. Enter the time estimated to complete the execution of the work order, in the Est. Elapsed Time field and specify the unit of measurement for the time as "Hours", "Minutes" and "Days" in the drop-down list box provided alongside.
 - 29. Enter the date and time at which the work order execution is scheduled to be started, in the **Sch. Start Date & Time** field.
 - 30. Enter the date and time at which the work order execution is scheduled to be completed, in the **Sch. End Date & Time** field.
 - 31. Enter the latest date by which the work order must be executed, in the **WO Compliance Date** field.

In the Work Order Options group box,

32. Specify whether authorization is required or not for the work order in the **Authorization** field.

The system provides the following options, if the hangar work order has a reference to the customer order:

If the "Authorization Options" is selected as "Non-Routine WO" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component, and if a value is selected in the "Approval of Additional Work Scope" field in the "Customer Order" business component, the system provides "Required" as the only option and defaults the same.

- If the "Authorization Options" is not selected for non-routine work order and if the "Approval of Additional Work Scope" field is set as "Not Required", the system provides the options "Not Required" and "Required", and defaults the option "Not Required".
- If the "Authorization Options" is set other than "Non-Routine WO", and if the "Approval of Additional Work Scope" field is set as "Required" or "As Required" in the "Customer Order" business component, then the system provides the options "Required", "Not Required" and "Customer Authorization Required", and defaults the option "Customer Authorization Required".
- Note: For work orders that are not customer based, the system:
 - a. Provides "Required" as the only option and defaults the same in the above mentioned field, if the "Authorization Options" field is set as "Non-Routine WO" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.
 - b. Provides the options "Required and "Non Required" if no value is selected in the "Authorization Options" field, and defaults the option "Not Required".
- Note: If "Authorization" is set as "Not Required", the system assigns this status to as "Not Required". If "Authorization" is set as "Required", the system assigns the status "Pending Authorization" to the newly added task s and the work order, and if the "Authorization" is set as "Customer Authorization required", the system assigns the status "Pending Cust. Auth.".
 - 33. Specify whether access panels tasks are required or not, in the **Access Panel Tasks** field. The system displays the options "Required" and "Not Required".
 - If the "Create Work Order" option in the "Set Options" activity is set as "Combined", the system displays the open access panel tasks before the first task that needs this access panel to be accessed. The system sets the close access panel tasks after the last task that needs this access panel to be accessed.
 - If the "Create Work Order" option in the "Set Options" activity is set as "Independent" and the "Task Grouping Options" as "Main WO", the system combines all the open and close access panels for a single work order. If the "Task Grouping Options" is set as "Task Type", the system generates separate work orders for open access panels and close access panel tasks.
 - 34. Enter the **Task#** and **Task Description**, identifying the task that must be performed for work order execution.
- Note: If the task description is entered and the "Task #" field is left blank, then ensure that the "ATA #" field is not left blank.

- You can add only those tasks for which the first two characters of the ATA chapter mapped in the "Maintenance Task" business component are the same as the first two characters of the ATA chapter entered in the "Aircraft Details" group box.
 - 35. Enter the Task Priority.
 - 36. Enter the time estimated to complete the task, in the Est. Elapsed Time field.
 - 37. Enter the total man hours estimated to complete the task, in the **Est. Man Hrs.** field.
 - 38. Enter the date on which the maintenance task is planned to be started, in the **Sch. Start Date** field.
 - 39. Enter the time at which the maintenance task is planned to be started, in the **Start Time** field.
 - 40. Enter the date on which the maintenance task is planned to be completed, in the **Sch. End Date** field. Ensure that the date is not earlier than the **Sch. Start Date**
 - 41. Enter the time at which the maintenance task is planned to be completed, in the **End Time** field.
 - 42. Enter the latest date by which the task must be completed, in the **Compliance Date** field.
 - 43. Select the Expense Type of the work package as "Revenue" or "Capital".
 - 44. Enter the capital expense proposal number applicable to the work unit in the **CAPEX Proposal #** field.
- Note: Ensure that this field is left blank, if the expense type is set to "Revenue".
- Note: The CAPEX Proposal number specified against the work unit must have an asset class that is same as the asset class to which the Asset Tag and Asset No. are mapped for the aircraft. The system performs this check only when the expense type is "Capital" and the "Enforce Object to Asset Mapping For" field is set as "Aircraft" in the "Set Option" activity of the "Account Group" business component.

If the work order is raised for EO,

Enter the number identifying the engineering advice note (EAN) generated by the engineering cell, in the Engg Advice Note # field.

The system displays the total estimated costs of executing the work order.

Enter the extra cost that will be incurred on the work order, in the Misc. Cost field.

- 45. Click the **Create Work Order** pushbutton to create the work order.
- Note: The system reserves the required parts whose planning type is "Disposition".
- Note: For work orders that has reference to the customer order, if any work units under "Pending Cust". Auth" status are newly added in the "Work Unit Details" multiline, the system updates the newly added work units as the unplanned work units in the "Customer Order" business component.



Figure 2. 3 Recording unscheduled work order details

To provide further details,

- Select the Edit Work Order Part Requirements link to specify the parts required for the work order execution.
- Select the Edit Work Order Resource Requirements link to specify the resources required for the work order execution.
- Select the Author Repair Procedure link to modify details of the non-standard task pertinent to the work order.
- ▼ Select the Edit Notes link to record additional notes for work order.
- ▼ Select Edit References link to record the references document information.
- ▼ Select the **Perform Opportunity Maintenance** link to perform opportunity maintenance in a visit package.
- Select the Schedule / Re-Schedule Work Order link to schedule or re-schedule the work order.
- Note: Refer to the topic "Scheduling work order" for more details.
- ▼ Select the **Create ESR** link to create an engineering service request for the maintenance activity.
- Note: Refer to the "Engineering Change Management" User Guide for more details on creating engineering service requests.

To view further details,

- ▼ Select the View Access Panel to be accessed link to view the access panel to be accessed to perform the work order execution.
- Select the View Work Area / Zone Details link to view the work area or zone details for the work order.
- ▼ Select the View Task Schedule Relationships link to view the task schedule relationships for the work order.

Creating sub work order

While executing a work order, you may come across defects, which were not reported earlier. These defects are known as discrepancies or non-routines. Maintenance activity needs to be performed for these discrepancies. If the scope / work content of these non-routines are relatively high, you can create a sub-work order for these non-routines which is created on a main work order.

A sub-work order is similar to a normal work order. The sub-work order maintains the reference of the parent work order. In addition to managing non-routines, a sub-work

order can also be used to split an existing work order and move a set of tasks from the parent work order to the new sub-work orders.

- 1. Select Create Sub Work Order under Hangar Work Order business component. The Select Work Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the work order number directly or enter search criteria to search for work orders.
- 3. Select the **Create Sub-WO** link, to create a sub work order.
- 4. Select the **Split Work Order** link, to split the work order by moving tasks to another work order.
- Note: You cannot split the work order that is in "In-Progress", "Completed", "Deferred", "Preclosed", "Closed" or "Cancelled" status.
- Note: You cannot move the tasks from a work order for which material request already exists in "Fresh" or "Authorized" status.

Entering part requirements of a work order

You can enter the details of the parts required for carrying out the work order as well as for the tasks associated to the work order.

- 1. Select the Edit Work Order Parts Requirements link in the Create Work Order or Edit Work Order page. Alternately, select the Edit Work Order Level/Task Level Part Requirements link in the Select Work Order page of the Create Maintenance Material Request activity. The Edit Part Requirements page appears. See Figure 2. 4.
- 2. Select the **Task#** for which you need to modify the part requirements.
 - If "Modification of Wo" is set as "Allowed" or "Requires Re- Authorization" in "Set Options" activity of Hangar Work Order business component, the system lists all the tasks except those which are in the "Cancelled", "Preclosed", "Closed" or "Completed" status.
 - If "Modification of Wo" is set as "Not Allowed after Scheduling" or "Only New Tasks can be added" in "Set Options" activity of Hangar Work Order business component, the system lists only those tasks that are in the "Fresh" status.
- Note: If this page is invoked from the "Select Work Order" page of the "Create Maintenance Material Request" activity, the system performs the following:
 - a) If multiple tasks are selected in the "Select Work Order" page, the system lists all the selected tasks in this field.
 - b) If a work order is selected in the "Select Work Order" page, the system leaves the field blank without listing any task numbers.

3. Click the Get Details pushbutton, to retrieve the part details for the selected task.

In the Part Details multiline,

- 4. Enter the **Part#** that is required for carrying out the task.
- 5. Enter the number of parts required for carrying out the maintenance task on the component, in the **Reqd. Quantity** field.
- 6. Enter the **Need Frequency** to specify the frequency of requirement of the part.
- 7. If the required part is not available, then enter the **Substitute Part #**.

	Edi	t Part Requirements				⊒\$\$ T	railbar 🔹 📋 🏠 🔚) 📑 📮 🔟
Wo	rk Or	der Details						
Work Order # HWO-000547-2008 Work Order Description unplanned vp Task # Get Details Task Description								
Task # Get Details			Get Details		Task Description			
Par	t Det	ails	TEST TASK1/1					
						Currency NZD		
<		1 -1/1 🕨 💓 🛨 🗕 🗗	9 🛃	团	💽 HTM XLS CSU TXT .	🛯 🥼 🗐 🗐 🖪	~	9
#	T	Part # 🔍	Part Type		Part Description	UOM	Est. Qty.	
1	E	0-24045	Componen	t	BRAKE ASSY MLG	EA		
2	E					The number of parts		
						required		
1 Image: Component BRAKE ASSY MLG EA 2 Image: Component BRAKE ASSY MLG EA								
	1 1 0-24045 Component BRAKE ASSY MLG EA The number of parts required.							
	Clic	k here to edit the preferred serial						
Click here to edit the preferred serial and lot number information for the part selected in the multiline.								
	par	t selected in the multiline.						N
Image: Control of the preferred serial and lot number information for the part selected in the multiline.						·		
L	_			Edit F	Requirements			
Edit	Prefe	red Serial / Lot Information						

Figure 2. 4 Entering part requirements of a work order

- 8. Select the Substitute Type as "NHA", "Specific Alternates" or "Not Allowed".
- Note: If the "NHA" or "Specific Alternates" option is selected, ensure that the "Substitute Part #" field is not left blank.
- Note: If the "Specific Alternates" option is selected in the "Substitute Type" field, the system ensures that the value entered in the "Substitute Part #" field is:
 - a. A valid alternate part number as identified in the "Create Part Main Information" activity of the "Part Administration" business component, for work orders based on customer order.
 - b. A position-based alternate as identified in the "Build Aircraft Configuration" activity of the "Configuration" business component, for work orders that does not have any reference to customer order.
 - 9. Select the Stock Status of the part.

10. Click the **Edit Requirements** pushbutton to update the part requirements details for the task.

The system does the following:

If the part is already reserved, the system updates the posting in the "Stock Planning" business component. For new parts added, the system posts a firm demand or a plan demand (for work orders in "Fresh" status and authorization status marked as 'Not Required') in the "Stock Planning" business component.

You can proceed to do the following,

- ▼ Edit preferred serial and lot number information for the work order.
- Note: This page can be invoked only if the part selected in the multiline is of part control type "Lot Controlled", "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled".

Editing preferred serial and lot number information for the work order

You can select the part specified for the work order and enter the details of the serial and lot number information against it.

- 1. Select the Edit Preferred Serial/Lot Information link in Edit Part Requirements page. The Edit Preferred Serial #/Lot # Information page appears. See Figure 2. 5
- Note: This page can be invoked only if the part selected in the previous page is of part control type "Lot Controlled", "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled".
 - 2. Select the **Part #** in the **Work Order Details** group box.
 - 3. Click the **Get Details** push button to retrieve the preferred serial and lot information of the part selected.
 - 4. Enter the **Serial #** and **Lot #** of the part, in the **Preferred Serial/Lot Details** multiline.
- Note: Ensure that the serial number is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Serial Controlled".
- Ensure that the lot number is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Lot Controlled".
- Also ensure that the serial number and lot number combination is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Lot & Serial Controlled".

Hangar Work Order



Figure 2. 5 Editing preferred serial and lot number information

- 5. Enter the **Quantity** of parts required.
- 6. Click the **Edit Preferred Information** pushbutton to update the serial and lot number information of the part specified for the work order.

Entering resource requirements of a work order

You can enter the details of the resources required for carrying out the work order as well as for the tasks associated to the work order.

- 1. Select the Edit Work Order Resource Requirements link in the Create Work Order or Edit Work Order page. The Edit Resource Requirements page appears. See Figure 2. 6.
- 2. Select the **Task#** for which you need modify the resource requirements.
 - If "Modification of Woo" is set as "Allowed" or "Requires Re-Authorization" in the "Set Options" activity of Hangar Work Order business component, the system lists all the tasks except those which are in the "Cancelled", "Preclosed", "Closed" or "Completed" status.
 - If "Modification of Wo" is set as "Not Allowed after Scheduling" or "Only New Tasks can be added" in the "Set Options" activity of Hangar Work Order business component, the system lists only those tasks that are in the "Fresh" status.

•	dit	Resource Requirements			式 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🚔 🛱 📮 📧		
Work	Orde	er Details						
Work Order # HWO-000547-2008 Task # TEST TASK1/1 ~ Resource Type Skills ~		Work Order Descrij Task Descrij Get Details	ption unplanned vp ption					
Reso	Resource Details							
	Currency NZD							
«	•	1 -1/1 🕨 💓 🕂 🚍 🎉		All 🔁 🔝 🚥 🚥 🖬 🚛 📳 🚑 🗛	~	2		
#	Е	Resource # 🭳	Resource Description			Std. Time		
1		AIR	AIRFRAME MECHANIC		Hours			
		<			Select the unit of measurement for the resource time	8		
				Edit Requirements				
Hangar	Work	Order -> Edit Work Order			🕑 59 Min	ute(s) 4:51:02 17:		

Figure 2. 6 Entering resource requirements of a work order

- 3. Select the Resource Type as "Skill", "Equipments", "Tools" or "Others".
- 4. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton, to retrieve the resource details for the selected task.

In the Resource Details multiline,

- 5. Enter the **Resource#** that is required for carrying out the task.
- 6. Enter the number of hours, minutes or days for which the resource is required to complete the task in the **Est. Time** field.
- 7. Enter the number of resources required for carrying out the maintenance task, in the **Est. Nos** field.
- 8. Set the **Approval Reqd.** ? field to "Yes", to indicate that an approval is required from the concerned authority before utilizing the resource. Select "No", if approval is not required.
- Note: If the Approval Required is set as "Yes", then, the person signing off the task needs to have a valid license number.
 - 9. Set the **Sign Off** ? field to "Yes", to indicate that a sign off is required by the resource for recording the completion of the job. Select "No" otherwise.
- Note: This field is applicable only for "Skill" type of resources.

10. Click the **Edit Requirements** pushbutton to update the resource requirements details for the task.

Entering additional notes for a work order

1. Select the Edit Notes link in the Create Work Order or Edit Work Order page. The Edit Notes page appears. See Figure 2. 7.

Edit Notes	📑 🕄 Trailbar 🗸 📄 🎰 🚛 📧 😡
Work Order Details	
Work Order # HWO-000547-2008	
Work Order Description unplanned vp	
Notes	
Notes	
Edit Notes	

Figure 2. 7 Entering additional notes for a work order

- 2. Enter the additional information pertaining to the work order in the **Notes** field.
- 3. Click the Edit Notes pushbutton, to update the notes.

Assigning employees to the work order

You can assign employees to the work order.

- 1. Select **Plan Work Order** under **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Select Work Order** page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the work order and click **Search** pushbutton.
- Check the box in the multiline and select Assign Crew / Employee link to assign employee to the selected work order. The Assign Work Group / Employee(s) page appears. See Figure 2. 8
- 4. The system displays the details of the work order in the **Work Order Details** group box.
- 5. Select the **Task #**, for which the resources are to be assigned and click the **Get Details** pushbutton. The system displays the details of the employees as estimated earlier.

To assign a work group,

- 6. Enter **Work Group #** that you need to assign.
- 7. Enter **Assign: From Date & Time**, from which the work group or employee is assigned to the selected work order.

Assign Work Group / Employee	e(s)				🛛 式 Trailbar 🔹 🗌 🏠 🚍) 🗟 🗖 🔟	
Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hhmmss							
Work Order Details							
Work Ord	ler # HWO-000003-2009			Work Order Description OVE	RBRAIDS		
Ta	isk # All Task 🔹 🔻	Get Details		Task Description All T	Entor total number of	bours	
Aircraft R	eg # 634			Visit Package # VP-0	in a day for which the	work	
St			Work Center # ATL	group is assigned			
Sch. Start	Date 15/04/2009			Sch. End Date 15/0	04 <u> </u>		
Work Group Assignment Details	Work Group Assignment Details Image: Comparison of the second s						
Work Group # Q Name Work Center # Hours / Day							
Work Center #	;			Hours / Day	V		
Assign : From Date & Time			Assig	gn : To Date & Time		•	
Comments							
Default Dates							
Assign : From Date & T	ime	pertaining to the wor		Assign : To Date		9	
Hours / E	Day	assignment	k group				
Customer Details		usoiginion					
Custom	ier #			Customer Name			
Customer Ord	ler #			Aircraft Release Date 15/0	04/2009		
Employee Assignment Details							
[No records to display]			न जब का का 10 जी		~	Q	
# Employee # 🤇	From Date	From Time	To Date	To Time	Hours / Day	A551G	
1 =							
	incup / Employee(s) Trails of the state of the state of the state of the work						
1	to c	hange the user-defined	status of the				
N	gn Work Group / Employee(s)						
Change User Status To							
Change to : User St	atus			User Status			
		Assig	n				
View Work Information View Employee Loading	View S View F	kill Requirements mployee Availability		View Skill Assignmen	<u>ts</u>		
	TRAFT L	ingenery www.incomentery					

8. Enter **Assign: To Date & Time**, till which the work group or employee is assigned to the selected work order.

Figure 2. 8 Assigning employees/work group to a work order

- 9. Modify the details, if required, in the Employee Assignment Details multiline.
- 10. Click the **Assign** pushbutton, to assign the employees to the work order.
- Note: The system assigns the work group or employee to the work order, only if there is no leave approved for any time duration or date falling within the specified date and time range allocated for the execution of the work order.

Selecting discrepancies to create corrective work order

1. Select **Process Discrepancies** under **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Select Visit Package** page appears.

- 2. Enter **Search Criteria** to search for the visit package and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Select the visit package in the **Search Criteria** multiline and click the **Process Discrepancies** link. The **Process Discrepancies** page appears. *See Figure 2. 9.*

Process Discrepancies				式 Trailbar 🔹 🏠) 🗟 📮 🔟
				Date Format dd/mm/y	/999
Visit Package Details					
Aircraft Reg # 55-	10	Visi	t Package # VP-001721-	2009	
Search Criteria					
Source	v	Source	Document #		
Record Status	v		Log Item #		
Tracking Status	~	Wa	ork Center #		~
Fault #			ATA #		
Reported From / To		Deferral Typ	oe* / Item #		
	Search				
Customer Details					
Customer #		Cus	tomer Name		
Customer Order #		Aircraft R	elease Date 02/07/2009		
Search Results					
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1 ▶ ≫		🔂 [💷 als 69 mm	4 🖶 🗐	*	Q
# 🗇 Discrepancy #	Discrepancy Description	Log Item #	Deferral Type	Deferral Item	#
1 🔲 WE-12/TESTSQA	~#~	WE-12/TESTSQA	NEF		
X					Þ
Create Corrective Work Order Defer Discrepancies	Edit Work Order View Discrepancy Details	Revis View /	e Deferral Limits Aircraft Maintenance Log		

Figure 2. 9 Selecting discrepancies to create work order

- 4. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for discrepancies and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 5. The system displays the details of the discrepancies in the **Search Results** multiline.
- 6. Check the box in the **Select** column of the multiline to select the discrepancy.

You can proceed to do the following:

▼ Select the Create Corrective Work Order link to create the work order.

Follow the steps listed in the "Recording unscheduled work order details" topic.

Note: You can create a corrective work order for only those discrepancies or discrepancy, for which the record status is "Pending" or "Deferred".

- If multiple discrepancies are selected for creating a corrective work order, ensure that the first two characters of the ATA number are the same for the selected discrepancies.
- Select the Edit Work Order link to select a work order for associating the selected discrepancies.
- Select Revise Deferral Limits link at the bottom of the page, to modify the deferral details of a discrepancy.
- ▼ Select the **Defer Discrepancies** link to create a discrepancy deferral report.
- ▼ Select the View Discrepancy Details link to view details about the selected discrepancies.
- Select the View Aircraft Maintenance Log link to view the aircraft maintenance log details.

Authorizing a work order

The work order is checked for the availability of the spare parts and resources required. After checking, the work order is authorized. A work order can be scheduled only after authorization.

- 1. Select Authorize Work Order under Hangar Work Order business component. The Authorize Work Order page appears. See Figure 2. 10
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the work orders.

Enter the following in the **Work Order Options** group box:

- 3. Select the "Customer Authorization Required" option in the **Authorization** field, if the authorization of the customer is required for the work order.
- 4. Enter any additional comments pertaining to the authorization of work order in the **Def. Auth. Comments** field.
- 5. Select the work order(s) in the multiline and click the **Authorize** pushbutton to authorize the selected work order(s). The work order attains the "Authorized" status.
- Note: If the "Authorization comments" for any of the rows in the multiline is left blank, the system updates the authorization comments with the value available in the "Def. Auth. Comments" field.
- Note: Select the Edit Work Order link at the bottom of the page, to modify the work order before authorizing. Once authorized, the work order cannot be modified.

- The system ensures that:
 - a. For the Work Order (s) with customer order reference, the authorization value is set as "Pending Customer Authorization" if "Approval of Additional Work scope" is identified as "Required" in the Customer Order.
 - b. For the selected Work Order (s) with Customer Order reference, the Authorization values is selected as "Not Required" if Approval of Additional Work scope is identified as "Not Required" in the Customer Order.
- Note: For the selected Work Order (s) with Customer Order reference, if "Approval of Additional Work scope" is identified as " As Required" in the Customer Order, then the Authorizer can select any value in the Authorization drop-down list box.

📑 Au	thorize Work Order						😂 Trabar 🔹 🏡 🔛
						Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy
Search	Criteria						
Display Op	tion		By Task 🐱				
Work Orde	c#			Aircraft	Reg #		
Visit Packa	ge #	ee Wark Onder Dete Format: delawin/marker From By Task From By Task Second By Task From By Task Second By Task From By Task Second By Task From By Task F					
Adv. Searc	h ID		✓ Edt	Transier	it Status	×	
Sch. Start	Date : From			Sch. Sta	Dete Format dd(inn/yyyy Akroaft Rog # Work Center # Transient Status Sch. Start Date : To Customer Name arch Paramient Status Dete Format Dete Format D		
Customer 4	,			Custom	er Name		
A				Jearch			
Search	Results						
	1 -3/3 🕨 🕺					A	*
1 7	Work Order #	Task #	Aircraft Reg #	Status	Transient Status	Liter Status	Visit Package #
1 7	HWO-001823-2009	TA5K0708	A-0802	Fresh			VP-000489-2008
2 7	1 HWO-001823-2009	TA5K1001	A-0802	Fresh			VP-000489-2008
2 7	HWO-001823-2009	T9KOFG-3	A-0802	Fresh			VP-000489-2008
4 7	1						
	<u>e</u>	Select work ord authorization	er(s) for				
Work Or	der Options						
Authoriza	ition		×	Def.Aut	h.Comments		
				Authorize Return H	sid Release		
Edit Work	Order						
Set Advan	ed Search Critetria						

Figure 2. 10 Authorizing a work order

- 6. Click the **Return** pushbutton to return the work order. The status of the work order is set as "Returned".
- 7. Click the **Hold** pushbutton to put the work order on hold.
- 8. Click the **Release** pushbutton to release the work orders in the "Hold" status.
- Note: The released work orders are then available for authorization.

Planning the execution of a work order

The work orders that are created and authorized are planned for execution. In this stage, the resources required to carry out the work and the manpower required is assigned. The material requirement is also planned.

- 1. Select **Plan Work Order** under the **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Select Work Order** page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the work order and select the **Work Order #** in the multiline, for planning.

You can proceed to do the following:

- ▼ Plan material requirement
- Plan resources
- ▼ Assign resources
- ▼ Assign crew/employee

Planning material requirement for the work order

- 1. Select the **Plan Material** link at the bottom of the **Select Work Order** page. The **Plan Material** page appears. *See Figure 2. 11.*
- 2. Select the **Display Option**. The system displays the details of the materials required, if the material has already been planned. If material planning is not yet done, the system displays the details of parts estimated for the task.
 - a. Use the Search On drop-down list box to select entity that will be the basis for the search. The drop-down list box displays the following: Package #, Package Type, Task #, Task Desc., Requested Part #, A/c Reg # and Work Center #. Enter the name of the entity that you have selected in the input box alongside.
- 3. The start and end dates of the period for which you want the search to retrieve records.
- 4. The system retrieves part requirements of tasks with planned / scheduled startdate during the period between the From and To dates.
- 5. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton.

The system displays the details of the materials required, if the material has already been planned. If material planning is not yet done, the system displays the details of parts estimated for the task.

- 6. In the "Schedule Details", enter the Sch. Start Date & Time of the work order task or the work order.
- 7. Enter the Sch. End Date & Time of the work order task or the work order.
- You cannot change the schedule start date and time, if the status of the work order is in "In-Progress".

🖃 🔨 Plan Material			式 Trailb	ar 🔹 📋 🏠 🚔 🔟
			Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyy	y hh:mm:ss
Work Order Details				2
Work Order # HWO-000	030-2006		Display Option All Parts	•
Task #	~		Task Description	
Aircraft Reg # NZ7005			Visit Package # VP-000009-2006	
Work Center # 6403-ACF	T MAINT NO 4 HANGAR		Status In-Progress	Enter the
Material Availability Status Available	G	et Details	laterial Plan Status Partially Issued	scheduled end date and time of
Customer Details	Enter the scheduled sta	rt date		the work order
Customer # 416	and time of the work or	ler	Customer Name RNZAF	
Customer Order # 688645		Ain	craft Release Date 12/12/2006	
Schedule Details				
Sch. Start Date & Time 10/10/2006	08:00:00	Sch. Ei	nd Date & Time 10/10/2006	09:00:00
Suggested Date 10/10/2006			User Status 💌 👻	_
Part Details				4
≪ ◀ 1 -3/3 🕨 ≫ 🛨 = 🗗 🐇	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	💽 🛲 855 650 1887 💽 🏤 [4) 🔁 All	ب
# 🖻 Part #	Part Type	Part Description	UOM	Planning Type
1 🗉 0-1450PSI	Component	PRESSURE GAUGE	EA	Min-Max
2 🗇 57660	Expendable	Bush,Blade	EA	None
3 NA56204-9	Expendable	Bolt	EA	Min-Max
4 1				
Select the part(s) for				>
Reserve	UnReserve	Edit Plan Allocate	Unallocate	
Selective Reservation				
View Warebouse Stock Balance Click	here to selectively reserve the p	parts		
for the	e work order			
				>

Figure 2. 11 Planning material requirements for the work order

Modify the part details, if required.

- 8. If the required part is not available, enter the **Substitute Part #** and **Substitute Type**.
- Note: Ensure that a value is selected in the "Substitute Type", if the substitute part number is entered.
- Note: If the "Specific Alternates" option is selected in the "Substitute Type" field, the system ensures that:
 - a. the value entered in the "Substitute Part #" field is a valid alternate part number as identified in the "Create Part Main Information" activity of the "Part Administration" business component, for work orders based on customer order.

- b. the value entered in the "Substitute Part #" field is a position-based alternate as identified in the "Build Aircraft Configuration" activity of the "Configuration" business component, for work orders that does not have any reference to customer order.
- 9. Click Reserve pushbutton to reserve the selected parts.
- 10. Click **UnReserve** pushbutton to cancel the reservation of the selected parts.
- 11. Click Edit Plan pushbutton to modify the material requirements for the work order.
- 12. Click Allocate pushbutton to allocate parts for the work order or task.
- 13. Click **Unallocate** pushbutton to cancel the parts allocated to the work order or task.

Planning resource requirement for the work order

1. Select the **Plan Resources** link at the bottom of the **Select Work Order** page. The **Plan Resources** page appears. *See Figure 2. 12.*

			Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy	hh:mm:ss
Work Order Details				
Work Order # HWO-000	031-2006	Selec	t Resource From All Work Centers	~
Task #	~		Task Description	
Aircraft Reg # NZ7005			Visit Package # VP-000009-2006	
Work Center # 6403-ACF	T MAINT NO 4 HANGAR		Status In-Progress	
Reference Date 10/10/20			Resource Type	
	G	et Details		
Schedule Details				
Sch. Start Date & Time 10/10/2006	08:00:00	Sch. End	Date & Time 10/10/2006	09:00:00
Suggested Date 10/10/2006			User Status 👻	
Customer Details				
Customer # 416			Customer Name RNZAF	
Customer Order # 688645		Aircra	aft Release Date 12/12/2006	
Loading Details in %				
(No records to display)		🔁 💽 🚥 🚥 🖬 🛔 🗍	All	▼
# 🖻 Resource #	ResourceType	Work Center #	Earliest Available Date	Day 1
View Work Assignments	Edit	: Schedules		
				1.5
		ini		

Figure 2. 12 Planning resource requirement for the work order

- Select the work center from which you wish to assign resources, in the Select Resource From field. The system displays the options "All Work Centers" and "Current Work Center".
- 3. Select the **Task #**, for which the resources are to be assigned.
- 4. Enter the starting date from which you wish to view the loading details for the resource in the **Reference Date** field.
- 5. Select the **Resource Type** that you wish to assign to the work order task or the work order. The system lists the options, "Skill", "Equipment", "Tools" and "Others".
- 6. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton.

The system displays the details of the resources required, if the resource has already been planned. If resource planning is not yet done, the system displays the details of resources estimated for the task.

- 7. Enter the Sch. Start Date & Time and Sch. End Date & Time of the work order task or the work order.
- Note: If the starting and ending schedule dates are the same, ensure the ending time is greater than the starting time.

Modify the resource details, if required.

8. Click the **Edit Schedules** pushbutton to update the resource assignments for the work order task or work order.

Assigning resources to the work order

- 1. Select the **Assign Resources** link in the bottom of the **Select Work Order** page. The **Assign Resources** page appears.
- 2. Select the **Task #**, for which the resources are to be assigned and click the **Get Details** pushbutton. The system displays the details of the resources as estimated earlier.
- 3. Modify the details, if required, and click the **Assign Resources** pushbutton to assign the resources to the work order.

Assigning employees to the work order

Follow the steps listed in the topic "Assigning employees to the work order".

Scheduling work order

Work order scheduling refers to the scheduling of work orders in a particular period based on the requirement and availability of resources, priority of the work order and the compliance date. Hangar work orders are scheduled after planning the resources and materials. Scheduling essentially involves confirming the expected start date and time, and expected finish date and time, for each task or for each work order. The work order is released for execution through the process of scheduling.

- 1. Select Schedule / Re-schedule Work Order(s) under the Hangar Work Order business component. The Schedule / Re-schedule Work Orders page appears. See Figure 2. 13.
- 2. Enter the search criteria in the **Work Order Selection** group box to search for the work orders and click the **Search** pushbutton.

The system displays all the work orders matching the search criteria that are in "Fresh", "Authorized", "Scheduled" or "In Progress" status.

3. Enter the schedule details in the **Schedule Options** group box to schedule the work orders in bulk.

In the Default Changes Options group-box:

- 4. Change the user-defined status of the selected work order, in the **Change to:** User Status field.
- 5. Change the category of the selected work order, in the **Change WO Category to** field.
- Note: You cannot modify the work order category under the following circumstances:
 - If a material request has already been generated for the work order.
 - If the status of the work order is "In-Progress".
 - 6. Click the **Schedule** pushbutton to record the schedule of the work order.

The system does the following:

- For a "Fresh" and "Authorized" work order, the system sets the status as "Scheduled" and the re-schedule count as "0".
- Updates the status of the work order tasks as "Scheduled" and generates the Material Request (MR) for the scheduled tasks. For example, if there are four work order tasks T1, T2, T3 and T4 and if the first two tasks of the work order are scheduled, MR will be generated for the tasks T1 and T2 and assignment of resources will be done only for the scheduled tasks.

Hangar Work Order

Schedule / Re-Schedule Work Orders	📑 Traibar+ 👧 🖨 🐺 🖉
	Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hh::mm:ss
Work Order Selection Display Option By Task Work Order # Aircraft Reg # Visit Package # Adv. Search ID Sch. Start Date : From Customer #	Entry here is mandatory, if Adv. Search ID is selected and date range specified in the "Sch. Start Date: From" and "Sch. Start Date: To" fields exceeds 30 days. Task Exec. Phase Work Center # Task Description Transient Status Search Search
Schedule Options	
Sch. Start Date To Advance By (Days) Retain Assignments on Re-Scheduling	Assignment of Resources Not Required
Work Order Details	
INo records to display Select this tab to enter Work order details	r the Visit Package # Work Order # Seg #
Default Changes Options	
Change to : User Status	Change WO Category To
Schedule Cancel	Hold Release Import from PMT
Plan Resource Record Delays Greate Material Request Launch PMT to Schedule WO	Assign Resources Assign Work Group / Employee(s) Edic Material Request Review Work Center load
<u>View Work Unit Dates and References</u> Plan Capacity	View Reschedule History View Work Order Details View Capacity Planning Execution Strategy View Material Reguest

Figure 2. 13 Scheduling/rescheduling work orders

- For a "Scheduled" and "In-Progress" work order, the system retains the status and increments the existing re-schedule count by 1.
- If the "Retain Assignments on Re-Scheduling" option is set as 'Yes', the system moves all the assignments to the newly scheduled dates. For example, if the work orders are postponed by 5 days, the system postpones all the assignments by 5 days. If the work orders are advanced by 5 days, the system advances the assignments by 5 days. If the "Retain Assignments on Re-Scheduling" option is set as "No", then the system removes all the assignments.
- If the option of reserving the material for work order during scheduling is set to "Automatic", then the system automatically reserves the parts of planning type "Disposition" for the selected work order or task.

- The task identified along with related tasks which attain 'Schedule' status and which has part requirement defined as "Always required", if the "Auto Creation of Material Request" is set as "On Scheduling", the system generates the Material Request (MR), automatically.
- Note: For a part with consumption mode set as "Backflushable", the system will not generate the material request (MR) automatically, even if the "Auto Creation of Material Request" is set as "On Scheduling".
 - On auto-generation of MR, the system performs the following if the hangar work order is based on the customer order:
 - a. updates the "Request For" field as "Customer", "Internal" or "Internal and Customer" in the "Material Request" business component based on the value set in the "Spares Supplied By" field in the "Customer Order" business component.
 - b. updates the "Request For" field as "Internal" in the Material Request" business component, if the ownership of the aircraft identified in the work order is "Owned" or "Leased Out". Else, the system updates the value "Internal and Customer" in the "Request For" field.
 - c. updates the warehouse for the part from the "Storage Administration" business component.
- Note: For work orders that are not customer based, the system updates the warehouse for the part from the "Work Center" business component.
 - d. updates the stock status for all the requested parts based on the Preferred Stock Status identified for the reference Customer Order in "Customer Order" business component. Else, updates the preferred stock status identified for the Aircraft Reg # from the "Aircraft" business component.
 - 7. Click the **Cancel** pushbutton to cancel the work order.
- Note: If material has been issued, you cannot cancel the work order or task.
- Note: You cannot cancel the work order,
 - a. if the "Display Option" field is set as "By Work Order" and the selected work order is based on the customer order with planning status as "Planned".
 - b. If the "Display Option" field is set as "By Task", and if for the selected task the work order is based on the customer order with planning status as "Planned".

The system does the following:

- Changes the status of the work order or task to "Cancelled". However, you cannot cancel a work order, which is in the "Hold" or "In progress" status.
- Cancels the corresponding access panel tasks, which are not referred by any other task or visit package.

- If all the tasks in a work order are cancelled, the system changes the status of the work order to "Cancelled".
- Updates the status of the material request associated to the work order to one of the following:
 - a) Cancelled If the material request is in "Draft" or "Fresh" status.
 - b) Short Closed If the material request is in "Authorized" status.
- Note: If there are issue documents in "Fresh" or "Draft" status for the short closed material request, the system updates the status of those documents to "Cancelled".
 - Cancels all the assignments for the cancelled work orders.
 - 8. Click the Hold pushbutton to put the work order on "Hold".
 - 9. Click the **Hold Release** pushbutton to release the work orders that are in "Hold" status.
 - 10. Click the **Import From PMT** pushbutton to import the work order schedules from the Project Management Software.

You can proceed to do the following:

- ▼ Select the **Work Order Details** tab to update the work order details.
- Select the Gantt Chart tab to view the progress of the work order and tasks, in the form of a Gantt chart.
- ▼ When a work order is scheduled for execution later than its planned execution date, then the work order is delayed. Select the **Record Delays** link to record the details for the delay in execution of the work order or task.

Follow the steps described under the topic "Recording delay information".

- Select the Create Material Request link to create material request through which the need for material (required for the execution of the work order) on a specific date is communicated to the warehouses.
- ▼ Select the Launch PMT to schedule WO link to export the selected details into the project management software, for scheduling the work order.

Entering the work order details

- 1. Select the **Work Order Details** tab in the **Schedule/Re-Schedule Work Orders** page to update the work order details. *See Figure 2. 13.*
- 2. To schedule individual work orders, enter the scheduling details in the **Work Order Details** multiline.

- 3. The system displays the following in the **Planning Flag**:
 - Delay Reported: When delay details exist for the work order.
 - Assignments: When assignment details exist for the work order.
 - Material Status: The system also displays the status of the material plan in this column, which could be "Partially Reserved", "Reserved", Partially Requested", "Requested", "Partially Hard Allocated", "Hard Allocated", "Partially Issued", "Issued" or "Material Not Available".
- 4. Enter the Sch.Start Date, From Time, Sch.End Date and To Time in the multiline.
- 5. Enter the **Comments** if you wish to cancel the work order.

You can proceed to do the following:

Select the Gantt Chart Tab to view the progress of the work order and tasks, in the form of a Gantt chart.

Uiewing the progress of the work order and tasks

1. Select the **Gantt Chart** tab, to view the progress of the work order and tasks, in the form of a Gantt chart. See Figure 2. 14.

Hangar Work Order

Schedule / Re-Schedule Work Orders			式 Trailbar▼ 💡	۵ 🎜 🛱 🖨 🗉
		Date & Time Format	dd/mm/yyyy h	himmiss
Work Order Selection				
Display Option By Task Work Order # Aircraft Reg # Visit Package # Adv. Search ID Sch. Start Date : From Customer #	Edit Search	Job Status Fresh Task Exec. Phase Work Center # Task Description Transient Status Sch. Start Date : To 23/12/ Customer Name	× × 2009	9
Schedule Options				
Sch. Start Date To Advance By (Days) Retain Assignments on Re-Scheduling		Assignment of Resources Not Re Postpone By (Days)	quired	×
Changes uptions		Chapter WO Category To	×	Ê
Clarge to itser status Cancel Plan Resource Record Delays Create Material Request	Hold Assign Resources Assign Work Group / Employee(s) Edit Materia Request	Create Deferment Request View Status Log Set Ady, Search Criteria	Import from PMT	
Launch PMT to Schedule WO View Work Unit Dates and References Plan Capacity	Review Work Center load View Reschedule History View Capacity Planning Execution Strategy	View Work Order Details View Material Request		

Figure 2. 14 Viewing the progress of the work order and tasks

For the work center, aircraft and visit package combination, you can view the graphical representation of the progress of the work orders and tasks based on the schedules computed. The system displays the time period in days, indicating the actual start date and end date of the work order or task. The system displays the schedules dates in red color, if the schedules computed for the work order or task are earlier than the current date and the work order or task is not yet started as per the schedule.

You can proceed to do the following:

▼ Select the Work Order Details tab to update the work order details.

Creating maintenance material request

Material Request (MR) is a document through which a user department communicates the need for material (required for the execution of the work order) on a specific date, to the warehouses. For planned maintenance activities, the planning or execution documents like visit package have the complete list of material requirements but different materials may be required at different instances. Hence material request can be generated for different time frames to indicate to the stores clerk when a particular set of materials must be issued. Material request is propagated to the warehouse for the issue of material.

The relevant parts are issued from the warehouse as per the material request document. In the event of non-availability of material, the request can serve as a trigger to the material planner to initiate a purchase activity or a stock transfer from another warehouse.

Material requests can be generated automatically when a visit package is released or when the work order is "scheduled".

- 1. Select Create Maintenance Material Request under Hangar Work Order business component. The Select Work Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the work order number directly and select the **Create Material Request** link provided alongside. Or, use the **Search Criteria** to search for the work order and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Check the box in the multiline to select the work order.
- Specify the part type for which you need to create the maintenance material request in the **Part Type** drop-down list box and select the **Create Material Request** link at the bottom of the page.
- 5. The Create Maintenance Material Request page appears. See Figure 2. 15.
- 6. Select the **Numbering type** for generating the material request number automatically.
- Note: For details on creating numbering types, refer to the section "Defining numbering types for transactions" in the "Inventory Setup" User Guide.
 - 7. Select the warehouse from where you wish to collect the required part, in the **Warehouse #** field.
- Note: If the hangar work order has reference to the warehouse, ensure that the selected warehouse is mapped to a valid customer.
 - 8. Enter the date on which the parts will be consumed or needed, in the **Need Date** field.
 - 9. Select **MR Priority** as "Normal" or "AOG".
 - Normal If the MR is raised for parts that pertain to the usual requirement of an aircraft.

- AOG If the MR is raised on the aircraft on ground. This is the situation where the parts are required immediately since the aircraft has been grounded. MR of this type must be assigned the highest priority.
- Note: If the "AOG" option is selected, ensure the need date entered is the date next to the current server date or earlier.



Figure 2. 15 Creating material request

- 10. Check the box in the **Hard Allocation Required** field to indicate whether 'reserved' or 'hard allocation' is required for 'non-disposition' kind of part.
- 11. Check **Issue in Single Lot** to indicate that the part has to be issued in a single lot.

In the Part Details multiline,

- 12. Enter the **Part #** and **Qty. Required**.
- 13. Enter the **Substitute Part #** and **Substitute Type**, if the required part is not available.
- 14. Select the Stock Status in which the part is required.
- 15. Specify the condition in which the part of type "Component" is required in the **Preferred Condition** field.
- 16. Enter the date on which the part is to be returned, in the **Exp. Date Of Return** field.
- Note: Data entry in this field is mandatory if the "Issue Basis" is "Returnable".
 - 17. Click the **Create Material Request** pushbutton, to create the material request.
- Note: Only one material request can be generated for the work order at a time.
- The system creates the maintenance material request and sets the status as "Draft".
 - 18. Click the Confirm Request pushbutton, to confirm the material request.
- Note: If the "Material Request Authorization" is set as "Required", the system changes the status to "Fresh". Otherwise, the system changes the status to "Authorized".
- The system updates the "Request For" field as "Internal and Customer" in the "Material Request" business component, if the work order has no reference to the customer order.

Short closing material request

You can short-close a material request if the requested material is no longer required for the execution of the work order or task. You can short-close material requests that are in "Fresh" or "Authorized" status and for which some quantity of parts is yet to be issued. Short closing of material request stops further issues against the document. When you short-close a material request, unutilized reservation of the material will get cancelled.

1. Select the **Short - Close Material Request** under Hangar Work Order business component. The **Short –Close Maintenance Material Request** page appears. *See Figure 2. 16.*

Hangar Work Order

•	Sho	rt-Close Maintenance Material Reque	st			5	这 Trailbar 🕶 📋	🏡 🖨 🗟 🖉 🔅
							Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy
Sear	rch fi	riteria						
DEG		Material Dequect #				Statue Authorize	d v	
		Vicit Dackage #		1	Licer	Status Status	-	
		Visic Fackage #			User Work Co	otatus	MIN	
		Warehouse # BASE-		1	WORK CE	togory INTERNA		
		Customer #			MK Ca Custome			
		Customer #		Search	Custome			
Sear	rch R	esults						
<	•	1 - 10 / 187 🕨 💓 🛨 🗖 🗗	4	12 🖂 📖	5 60 🔟 💽 📳 🗛	,II	~	۶
#	E	Material Request #	Status	MR Priority	Need D	Pate	Warehouse #	Work Ce
1	E	MR-004428-2007	Authorized	Normal	27/03/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
2	E	MR-004975-2007	Authorized	Normal	12/04/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
3	E	MR-000141-2006	Authorized	Normal	18/12/2	2006	H4	6403-AC
4	E	MR-000288-2006	Authorized	Normal	21/12/2	2006	H4	6403-AC
5	E	MR-000315-2006	Authorized	Normal	22/12/2	2006	H4	6403-AC
6	E	MR-000553-2007	Authorized	Normal	10/01/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
7	E	MR-000579-2007	Authorized	Normal	10/01/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
8	E	MR-000709-2007	Authorized	Normal	12/01/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
9	E	MR-001124-2007	Authorized	Normal	19/01/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
10	П	MR-001142-2007	Authorized	Normal	22/01/2	2007	H4	6403-AC
		<						
Note	:5							
		Pre-Closing Comments						-
				Short Close				
Selec	tive S	hort Close						
_								
Hanga	r Wor	k Order -> Short-Close Material Request					95	8 Minute(s) 5:40:44

Figure 2. 16 Short closing material request

- 2. Search for the maintenance material request for short closing and click **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Enter the **Pre-closing Comments** to specify the reason for short closing of the material request.
- 4. Select the material request to be shortclosed and click the **Short-close** pushbutton.
- Note: The system updates the status of the material request to "Short Closed". If there are issue documents in "Fresh" or "Draft" status for the short closed material request, the system updates the status of those documents to "Cancelled".

Assigning resources

Depending on the resources required, the work center planner could assign facility objects and employees, to work orders. The assignments are made on the basis of the current and planned workload on the employee or resource, on a daily basis or for a range of dates. Assignments can also be effected at a "crew" level. Any changes in crew composition will automatically get reflected in all the work orders assigned.

Assigning work orders to the employee

- 1. Select Assign Employee to Work Order(s) under Hangar Work Order business component. The Select Employee page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the employee and click the **Search** pushbutton. Select **Assign Work Order /Task(s)** link to assign the work order or tasks to the selected employee.
- 3. The Assign Work Order /Task(s) page appears. See Figure 2. 17.
- 4. In the Employee Details group box, enter the From Date and To Date and click the Get Details pushbutton to retrieve the work orders and tasks assigned to the selected employee. The system displays the work orders and tasks that are already assigned to the employee. You can modify the details, if required.

To assign the work order to the selected employee,

- 5. Enter **Work Order #** that you need to assign, in the **Work Order / Task Details** multiline.
- Note: You cannot assign a work order, which is in the "Cancelled", "Completed", "Pre-Closed" or "Closed" status.
 - 6. Enter the Task #.
- Note: You cannot assign a work order of job status "Fresh", if the "WO Assignments Prior to Scheduling" field is set as" Not Allowed" in the "Set Options" activity of the "Hangar Work Order" business component.
 - 7. Enter **From Date** and **From Time** from which the work order is assigned to the employee.
 - 8. Enter the **To Date**, till which the work order is assigned to the employee.
 - 9. Enter the **To Time** if the **To Date** is entered.
 - 10. Enter the total number of hours per day the work order is assigned to the employee, in the **Hours / Day** field.

Hangar Work Order

Skign Work Order / Task(s)	💐 Trailbar 🔹 🏡 🚔 🐺 🌆
Employee Details Use this group box, if you wish to assign a large number of work orders or tasks for the same of and time From Date 17/04/2009 Get Details	Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hh:mm:ss tate Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hh:mm:ss Employee Name CHRIS WIDDON Work Center # 8203-P3 UPGRADE, PUBS To Date 17/04/2009
Assign : From Date & Time 17/04/2009 Hours / Day Assignment Comments	Assign : To Date 30/04/2009
(4 1 -1/1)) + - D 2 (2) 1 2 5 5 6	1 🖬 🖶 🖶 All 🗸 🔎
# I Work Order # Q Seq # Task # Q Est. Elaps 1 I Hwo-001822-2009 I I 2 II I The sequence in which the tasks should be performed while executing the work order I	ed Time Job Status User Statu
Change Options	
View Employee Loading View Skill Assignments	Change to : User Status KEWOR C
	>
Hangar Work Order -> Assign Employee to Work Order(s)	© 59 Minute(s) 6:00:38 44'

Figure 2. 17 Assigning work orders to the employee

- 11. Enter the Assignment Comments pertaining to the employee work assignment.
- 12. If you wish to re-assign the work orders in the multiline to an employee other than the selected employee, enter the **Re-Assign To: Employee #** field.
- 13. Click the Assign pushbutton to assign the work orders to the employee.

Assigning work orders or WO tasks to resource

You can assign a resource such as a tool, facility or equipment, to work orders. You can assign the resource to one work order or multiple work orders simultaneously or to a master work order with child work orders.

The visit planner assigns resources on a daily basis or for a range of dates. The loading patterns for the various resources are evaluated and constraints are resolved, before assigning the resources. If a constraint cannot be solved, you can reschedule the work order or task.

1. Select Assign Resource to Work Order(s) under the Hangar Work Order business component. The Select Resources page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to search for the resource that is required for carrying out the maintenance task.
- 3. Select the **Assign Work Order/Task(s)** link to assign the work order or tasks to the selected resource. The **Assign Work Order / Task (s)** page appears. See *Figure 2. 18.*

🚠 Business Process 🔹 🛛 🗽 Recent Activities 🔹 🏻 🚖	Favourites 🔻	Welcome to Ramco Aviation 9	olut 🦯 👂 🕴	🐞 🛅 🎕 🎝 🛤 🙀 I 🌘	🕽 🗐 🔡 Theme
Assign Work Order / Task(s)				鸿 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🖨 🗟 🖉 🔟
Resource Details and time	wish to assign a large asks for the same date		Date & Time F Resource Description Work Center #	ormat dd/mm/yyyy AC CURRENT PROBE 6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 HANG/	AR
From Date 17/	04/2009	Search	To Date		
Default Details					
Assign : From Date & Time Hours / Day			Assign : To Dat	e	
Work Order / Task Details					
« • • • • • • • • • • • • • •]	🔁 📃 III. ILS CSU 101	🚨 🏦 🚇 🚍 Al	~	2
# 🗉 Work Order # 🭳	Seq # Task # 🤇	Job Sta	tus	User Status	From Date
1 HWO-000644-2008					
	The sequence in which performed while execu	n the tasks should be ting the work order			
<					>
Change Options					
Re-Assign To : Resource # Q AC Change to : User Status REV			ResourceType	Tools	
	this field to modify user-	Assign			
View Resource Loading defi	ned status of the work	View Resource Requ	irements		
ord ord	ers	illi i			>
Hannar Work Order -> Assign Resource to Work Order(-)			🖓 59 Mi	nute(s) 6:06:02.21(

Figure 2. 18 Assigning work orders or WO tasks to resource

4. In the **Resource Details** group box, enter **From Date** and **To Date** and click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the work orders and tasks assigned to the selected resource. The system displays the work orders and tasks that are already assigned to the resource. You can modify the details, if required.

To assign the work order to the selected resource,

- 5. Enter **Work Order #** that you need to assign, in the **Work Order / Task Details** multiline.
- Note: You cannot assign a work order, which is in the "Cancelled", "Completed" or "Closed" status.

- 6. Enter the Task #.
- Note: You cannot assign a work order of job status "Fresh", if the "WO Assignments Prior to Scheduling" field is set as "Not Allowed" in the "Set Options" activity of the "Hangar Work Order" business component.
 - 7. Enter **From Date** and **From Time** from which the work order is assigned to the resource.
 - 8. Enter the **To Date**, till which the work order is assigned to the resource.
 - 9. Enter the total number of hours per day the work order is assigned to the resource, in the **Hours / Day** field.
 - 10. If you wish to re-assign the work orders in the multiline to a resource other than the selected resource, enter the **Re-Assign To: Resource** # field.
- Note: If a value is entered in the above field, ensure that no leave is approved for the employee for any time duration or date falling within the date and time range assigned for executing the work unit.
 - 11. Select the Resource Type as "Equipment", "Tools", "Skills" or "Others".
- Note: You must select the resource type, if you are re-assigning the work orders to a different resource.
 - 12. Click the Assign pushbutton to assign the work orders to the employee.

Assigning work group

Creating work group

A work group is a collection of employees who are responsible for executing a maintenance task. The composition of a crew is mostly dependent on the nature of the activity and organizational needs and the size typically varies between 5 to 7 multi skilled personnel with a group leader identified.

Work groups execute maintenance activities, which demand multi-skill requirements. Work group helps to accomplish complex tasks with work specialization and team synergy.

1. Select **Create Work Group** under **Hangar Work Order** business component. The **Create Work Group** page appears. *See Figure 2. 19.*

Hangar Work Order

Create Work Group			💐 Trailbar 🛛 🏠 📄 🏂 🌄 📧
Crew Details			▲
Work Group #		Name	
Work Center #	1-HR&ADMIN	Group Category	~
Group Leader 🤍		Lead Skill #	
Applicability	- Mangar		Enter the name of the
	Line	Group Leader Name	work group
Employee Details			
	1.63		
≪ ◀ <u>1</u> -1/1 ▶ ≫ + - d		🔀 🔝 🚥 💷 💷 🛃 🚇 🖶 All	× 2
# Employee # 🭳	Employee Name	Work Center #	Primary Skill #
1 🗏 0005			
2 🖻			
Vork Group Remarks		Enter the remarks pertaining to the work group	×
		Caraba Illindi Cara	
		Create work Group	
Hangar Work Order -> Create Work Group			🕑 59 Minute(s) 6:10:45 055

Figure 2. 19 Creating work group

- 2. Enter the unique identifier for the work group in the **Work Group #** field.
- 3. Select the **Work Center #** to which the work group is attached.
- 4. Select the Group Category.
- 5. Enter the code identifying the leader of the work group, in the **Group Leader** field.
- 6. Select the number identifying the lead skill of the work group, in the Lead Skill # field.
- 7. Check the **Line** option to indicate if the work group is created for line maintenance activities. Check the **Hangar** option to indicate if the work group is created for line maintenance activities.
- 8. Enter the **Employee #** who is part of the work group, in the **Employee Details** multiline.
- 9. Click the Create Work Group pushbutton to create the work group.
- Note: The system creates the work group in the "Active" status.

Assigning work orders or WO tasks to a work group

You can assign work groups to work orders.

- 1. Select Assign Work Group to Work Order(s) under Hangar Work Order business component. The Select Work Group page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the work group and click the **Search** pushbutton. Select the hyperlinked **Work Group #** in the multiline, to assign the work order or tasks to the selected work group.

Assign work order / Task(s)				as Trailbar 🗸	
			Date & Time	Format dd/mm/yyyy	hh:mm:ss
Crew Details Work Group # TEST GR Work Center # 3-BUS. P From Date 17/04/2	Use this group box, if number of work order and time	you wish to assign a large s or tasks for the same date	Nan To Da	ne test group te 30/04/2009	
Default Details Assign : From Date & Time Hours / Day Assignment Comments			Assign : To D	ate	•
Work Order / Task Details					2
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	💶 🏦 🎩 🚍 All	×	ç
# 🗇 Work Order # 🭳	Seq # Task # 🭳	Job Stat	'US	User Status	From Date
1 HWO-000024-2006	The sequence in v should be perform the work order	vhich the tasks ed while executing	ess		
Re-Assign To : Work Group #Q TEST GRO	DUP		Change to : User Stati	us 🔨	
Edit Employee Assignment	re details	Assign	Use thi defined	s field to modify the user I status of the work order	s

3. The Assign Work Order /Task(s) page appears. See Figure 2. 20.

Figure 2. 20 Assigning work orders to a work group

4. In the **Crew Details** group box, enter **From Date** and **To Date**, and click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the work orders and tasks assigned to the work group. The system displays the work orders and tasks that are already assigned to the work group. You can modify the details, if required.

To assign the work order to the selected workgroup,

- 5. Enter **Work Order #** that you need to assign, in the **Work Order / Task Details** multiline.
- Note: You cannot assign a work order, which is in the "Cancelled", "Completed" or "Closed" status.

- 6. Enter the Task #.
- Note: You cannot a assign work order of job status "Fresh", if the "WO Assignments Prior to Scheduling" field is set as "Not Allowed" in the "Set Options" activity of the "Hangar Work Order" business component.
 - 7. Enter **From Date** and **From Time** from which the work order is assigned to the work group.
 - 8. Enter the **To Date**, till which the work order is assigned to the work group.
 - 9. Enter the total number of hours per day the work order is assigned to the work group, in the **Hours / Day** field.
 - 10. Enter the **Assignment Comments** pertaining to the work group assignment.
 - 11. If you wish to re-assign the work orders in the multiline to a work group other than the selected work group, enter the **Re-Assign To: Work Group #** field.
- Note: If a value is entered in the above field, ensure that there is no approved leave for the employee for any time duration or date falling within the date and time range assigned for executing the work order.
- Note: Ensure that the work group to which the work orders must be re-assigned, has the applicability as "Hangar" or "Line & Hangar".
 - 12. Click the **Assign** pushbutton to assign the work orders to the work group.
- Note: The work order can be assigned to the work group, even if there exists atleast one employee belonging to the work group who doesnot have approved leave for any time duration or date falling within the date or time duration assigned for executing the work order.

Executing a work order

The aircraft for which the maintenance activities are planned is taxied into the hangar and the preliminary inspection is carried out on the aircraft and it's systems.

Recording preliminary inspection details

- 1. Select **Report Inspection Findings** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Visit Package** page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Visit Package #** directly and select the **Record Preliminary Inspection Findings** link provided alongside. Or, enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton. Click the hyperlinked **Visit Package #**, for which the inspection details are to be reported, in the multiline.
- Record Preliminary Inspection Findings 🎫 Trailbar 🔹 📋 🏡 🚛 🎟 The visit package for which inspection Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hh:mm:ss findings are reported **Visit Package Details** Visit Package # VP-000014-2006 Aircraft Reg # ZK-POH Title F27 ZK-POH Dec 06 Mo Visit Category CUSTOMER JOB **Grounding Details** * Gate-In-Date & Time ngar-In-Date & Time • Select "To Process" or Towing Time (Hrs) "Cancel" to process or cancel **Default Details** the discrepancy. Reported by 🤍 2095 Reported Date 17/04/2009 • Action To Process **Discrepancy Details** Q ≪ ◀ [No records to display] 🕨 🔌 (+ - 🗗 🎸 🔁 📘 🏧 💷 💷 💷 📕 🚍 🗛 ¥ # 🗉 Discrepancy # Discrepancy Description 🍳 Tracking Status ATA 1 🗉 ×. Enter the name of the document, which contains the preliminary inspection details < > Other Details View File Select this link to view the File Name 🍳 aircraft maintenance log Other Observations Record Findings View Aircraft Maintenance Log Process Discrepancies Record PIREP's Create Corrective Work Order **Record Statistics** . Created by Created Date Last Modified by Last Modified Date < >
- 3. The Record Preliminary Inspection Findings page appears. See Figure 2. 21.

Figure 2. 21 Recording preliminary inspection findings

In the Grounding Details group box,

- 4. Enter the date on which the aircraft is grounded or the last docking date, in the **Gate-In-Date** field.
- 5. Enter the date on which the aircraft is taxied to the hangar for carrying out the maintenance job, in the **Hangar-In-Date & Time** field.
- 6. Enter the time taken to tow the aircraft from the gate to the hangar, in the **Towing Time (Hrs)** field.

In the Discrepancy Details multiline,

- 7. Enter the **Discrepancy t #**.
- 8. Enter the **Discrepancy Description** and **Log Item #** of the discrepancy.
- 9. Enter ATA # on which discrepancy is created.
- 10. Enter the Fault # and Cause # of the discrepancy.
- 11. Select the Corrective Action to be performed on the discrepancy.
- 12. Select the Source and specify the Source # of the discrepancy.
- 13. Select the **Discrepancy Category**, **Reported Date** and **Reported Time** of the discrepancy.
- 14. Click the Record Findings pushbutton to register the inspection findings.

You can proceed to do the following:

- Select the discrepancy with the status as "Pending" in the multiline and select the Corrective Work Corrective Order link to create the work order for resolving the discrepancy.
- Note: If multiple discrepancies are selected for creating a corrective work order, ensure that the first two characters of the ATA number are the same for the selected discrepancies.

Hangar Work Order

Chapter 3/Hangar Work Reporting

The details of the maintenance activities executed on an aircraft need to be recorded for tracking the maintenance done and for accounting the labor, material and other facilities used. **Hangar Work Reporting** business component facilitates the recording of the work executed, in terms of tasks, for the major maintenance of the aircraft.

Recording of the work details spans the entire work execution phase, starting from recording of the aircraft grounding details, preliminary inspection report, resource consumption, part consumption to closing of the work order.

Reporting execution details

The **Hangar Work Reporting** business component primarily facilitates all aspects of work reporting, beginning with reporting of work progress in terms of elapsed time to reporting of resources expended on a work order. Work reporting finally leads to the release of grounded aircraft from the work center, after the execution of the maintenance task(s).

Once a work order is reported with the execution details of any category, the work order is automatically converted to "In Progress" status.

The execution details reported are of the following categories:

- ▼ Recording employee time sheet
- ▼ Reporting resource consumption
- ▼ Reporting material consumption
- ▼ Reporting component replacement details
- ▼ Reporting work delay information
- ▼ Reporting discrepancies
- Recording parameter reading/conditional evaluation details
- Signing off a task
- ▼ Issuing certificate of maintenance
- Closing work order

Defining quick codes for work reporting

What are quick codes?

Quick Codes are user-defined values, used to categorize a set of details of identified behavior. These quick codes are later used in the process of retrieving or addressing the details by referring to the attached quick code.

Quick codes act as additional qualifiers for a business entity or document. Quick codes can assume user-provided values, which can be used to categorize/group an entity/document record to satisfy specific needs in a user organization's internal processes, especially with respect to unique reporting requirements.

The quick code type "Delay Category" is predefined in the system. Values can be defined for this quick code type. For example, the quick code type "Delay Category" can contain the quick code "Material Not Available".

1. Select **Create Quick Codes** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Create Quick Code Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 1*

📑 Crea	ate Quick Code Informat	on		📑 Trailbar 🔹 🏠 🚔	🚛 🔟 😡
	Quick Code Type	Delay Category			
Quick Coo	de Details				
« •	1 -1/1 🕨 🔌 🕂 🗕	P 4	🔁 🔃 🛤 📧 💷 💷 📮 🚍 🗚	~	Q
# E	Quick Code	Description			
1 🗉	BIDS	Compiling Bids for Bus. Dev.			
2 1		Enter the unique identifier for the auick code			
	<				>
		Create (Quick Codes		

Figure 3. 1 Defining quick codes

- 2. Select the **Quick Code Type**, for which quick codes have to be created.
- 3. Enter the **Description** for the quick code.
- 4. Click the Create Quick Codes pushbutton.
- Note: The system assigns the "Active" status to the quick codes entered in the multiline.

Setting options for work reporting

You can define the various system parameters for work reporting.

- 1. Select **Set Options** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Option Setting Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 2*
- 2. Select the numbering type for generating the discrepancy number automatically, in the **Numbering Type Discrepancy#** field.
- 3. Select the numbering type for generating the component replacement transaction number automatically, in the **Numbering Type -CR #** field.

Hangar Work Reporting

•	Opti	on Setting Information			式 Trailbar	• 🏡 🚔 🛱 🐺 🔟
					Date Format dd/mm/yyyy	
Numi	oer G	eneration				
			Numbering Type-Discrepancy #	HDR 🖌		
			Numbering Type-Discrepancy #	CR		
			Numbering Type-CK #			
	_		Numbering Type - Transfer Discrepancy #		Select the numbering type that has	
Work	Rep	orting - Routine			to be used while generating the	
			Task Reporting	All Employees	number for transferring discrepancy.	
			Automatic Closing of Discrepancy #	Allowed		
			Back Dated Reporting Time Limit		200 Days	
			Closing of Parent WO before closing Child WOs	Allowed 🗸		
			Closing of Access Panels before closing work order	Required 🗸		
		c	R # gen while attaching the removed(same) object	Not Required 🛛 🗸		
Work	Rep	orting - Non Routine				
			Reporting of Non Standard Additional Parts	Allowed 🗸		
			Enforce Core Returns for Backflush/Regular Parts	No 🗸		
					Consumables	
			Death True and from Addition of Death Death of the	Componente	Constantables	
			Part Types for Additional Part Reporting	Spare Parts	Raw Materials	
				C Tools		
				📄 Kits		
Empl	oyee	Timesheet Reporting				
			Check Employee Presence with Attendance Record	Not Required 🛛 👻		
			Reporting of Extra Hours	Not Allowed 🔍		
			Computation of extra hours	Not Required 🛛 🗸		
			Employee Time Sheet Undation Mode	Clock and Manual	~	
			Confirmation of Timesheet Records	Not Required 🛛 🗸		
			Authorization of Timesheet Records	Not Required 🗸		
Pack	Buch	Ontions				
DdLK	nusn	options		Allowed		<u> </u>
			Additional Qty. for Backflushing	Allowed	Creatify whather worshouse	
			Additional Part for Backflushing	Allowed	Specily whether warehouse	
			Warehouse Modification for Backflushed Parts	Allowed 🗲	modification is allowed for	
			Numbering Type for Auto Material Request	MRA 🗸	backflushed parts.	
			Numbering Type For Auto Issue	MI 🗸		
Com	oliano	e Updation Options				
			Reference Date for Compliance Updation	Work End Date	*	
Cond	ition	for Part Return Reconciliation				
	41		जा दिन 🛛 🔊			. 0
#	12	Part Type	Ret. Type - Excess/Returnable		Ret. Type - Core	
1	12	Component	Allowed		Allowed	
2	E	Consumable	Allowed		Allowed	
3	Е	Kit	Allowed		Allowed	
4	Е	Miscellaneous	Allowed		Allowed	
5	Е	Raw Material	Allowed		Allowed	
6	Е	Expendable	Allowed		Allowed	
7	Е	Tool	Allowed		Allowed	
		(m.)[0				
		<				>
			Update	Options		
Reco	rd St	atistics				
		Last Modified by	DMUSER		Last Modified Date 03/04/2009	

Figure 3. 2 Setting options for work reporting

In the Work Reporting – Routine group box,

4. Set the **Task Reporting** as "All Employees" to indicate that any employee can report the task execution details against a task, irrespective of whether the work

is assigned to him or not. Select "Assigned Employees" if only the employee to whom the task is assigned can report the execution details.

- 5. Select the option "Allowed" in the **Automatic Closure of Discrepancy** field, to automatically close all the discrepancies reported on closing the work order. Select "Not Allowed" to manually close, cancel or defer the discrepancies.
- 6. Enter the time limit until which the actuals can be reported for the work order, in the **Back Dated Reporting Time Limit** field.
- Select the option "Required" in the Closing of Access Panels before closing work order field, to ensure that access panel is closed before closing the work order. Select "Not Required" otherwise.
- 8. Set "Required" in the **CR # gen while attaching the removed (same) object** field, to generate a component replacement number while attaching the same removed component to the aircraft. Select "Not Required" otherwise.

In the Work Reporting -Non Routine group box,

- 9. Select "Allowed" in the **Reporting of Non Standard Additional** field, to allow the reporting of non-standard parts used in the work order execution. Select "Not Allowed" otherwise.
- 10. Set the **Enforce Core Returns for Backflush/Regular Parts** field to "Yes" to enforce return of core for backflushed or regular parts. Select "No" otherwise.
- 11. Check the appropriate boxes under **Part Types for Additional Part Reporting**, to indicate the type of non-standard part that can be reported.

In the Employee Timesheet Reporting group box,

- 12. Set **Check Employee Presence with Attendance Record** as "Required" or "Not Required".
- Note: If the option is set as "Required", then the system checks for the presence of the employee in the organisation for the time reported in the work center.
 - 13. Select "Allowed" in the **Reporting of Extra Hours** field, to allow the reporting of extra hours by the employee. Select "Not Allowed" otherwise.
 - 14. Set the option as "Required" in the **Computation of extra Hours** field, to compute the cost of extra hours reported by the employee. Select "Not Required" otherwise.
 - 15. Set the **Employee Time Sheet Updation Mode** to "Clock" to update employee time sheet using a clock, or "Manual" to update the employee time sheet manually.
 - 16. Set the Confirmation of Timesheet Records as "Required" or "Not Required".

- 17. Set the Authorization of Timesheet Records as "Required" or "Not Required".
- Note: If the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" is set to "Not Required", the "Authorization of Timesheet Records" must be set to "Required
 - 18. Use the **Reference Date for Compliance Updation drop-down list box to** specify the reference date to be considered while updating the compliance details.
 - Work Start Date Select this option if the starting date of the work must be considered as the reference date, while updating the compliance details.
 - Work End Date Select this option if the completion date of the work must be considered as the reference date, while updating the compliance details.
 - Test Flight COM Issue Date Select this option if the date of issue of the certificate of maintenance for the test-flight activities must be considered as the reference date, while updating the compliance details.
 - Regular COM Issue Date Select this option if the date of issue of the certificate of maintenance for regular flight activities must be considered as the reference date, while updating the compliance details.

In the **Conditions For Part Return Reconciliation** multiline, specify whether the reconciliation of return quantity is allowed for the part types "Raw Material", "Component", "Expendable", "Tool", "Consumable" and "Kit".

- 19. Select the **Ret. Type Excess / Returnable** as "Allowed" to allow the modification of the part return quantity for excess returns or returnable parts. Select "Not Allowed" otherwise.
- 20. In the **Ret. Type Core** field, select "Allowed" to allow the modification of the part return quantity only for core returns. Select "Not Allowed" otherwise.
- 21. Click the **Update Options** pushbutton to update the option settings.

Recording employee time sheet for hangar work order or task

Employees can report their time sheet on a daily basis. Time sheet reporting involves the following:

- Time spent by the employee on various work orders/tasks on a given date.
- If an employee works in different time slots having differential rates (such as Overtime, Holiday work etc.), the time spent in each of the time slots can be recorded.
- 1. Select **Record Timesheet for Hangar Work Orders** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Record Employee Timesheet for Hangar Work Orders** page appears. See Figure 3. 3.
- 2. Specify the date for which you are recording the time sheet, in the **Worked Date** field and click the **Get Details** pushbutton provided alongside.
- 3. Select the Update Mode as "Clock" or "Manual".
- Note: You can record the timings manually by selecting the option "Manual".
 - 4. Click the **Confirm Booking** pushbutton to confirm the timesheet booking details.
- On clicking the "Confirm Booking" pushbutton, the system
 - updates the status of the timesheet records from "Fresh" to "Confirmed" if the "Conformation of Timesheet records" is set as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.
 - updates the status of the timesheet records from "Fresh" to "Authorized", if the "Authorization of Timesheet records" is set as "Not Required" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.

If you are recording the time sheet for a date different from the current date,

- 5. Enter the **Work Order #** and **Task#** in the **Work Details** multiline.
- 6. Enter the **Employee Comments**.
- 7. Set the Execution Status of the task to "In-Progress" or "Completed".
- Note: You cannot set the execution status to "Completed", if sign-off is pending for the work order/task or if any other employee has reported for the same work order/task and his work reporting is not yet complete.
 - 8. Enter the **Start Time**, **Start Date** and **End Time**, **End Date** for the selected work order or task.
- Note: You cannot modify the Start Date & Time and End Date & Time, if the update mode is set to "Clock".

Hangar Work Reporting

Record Employee Timesheet for Han	ngar Work Orders			5	🕸 Trailbar 🛛 📋 🏠 🐺 🔟
		Date	& Time Format	dd/mm/yy	yy hh:mm:ss
Employee Details					
Employee # 2	2095	Empl	ovee Name	WEBB, TR	ACY
Primary Skill #	EN .	Clock	: Status	Clock-Dire	ct
Undate Details					-
Washed Data 17	7/04/2009	Cot Dotaila			
	adk	Get Details			
Update Mode					
Timesheet Summary					
Total Normal Hours 0	0.00	Tota	Extra Hours	0.00	
Confirmed Booking (Hrs) 0).00	Penc	ing Confirmation (Hrs)	0.00	
Total Hours	00	Tot.	worked Hours	0.00	0.21/02/2009.25/10/2007
Total In-direct Hours 0		Confirm Bool	ing Confirmation Dates	05/05/200	0;21)02;2000;25)10;2007
made Date da		Commission	ang		
work Details					
≪ ◀ 1 -3/3 ▶ ≫ + - 🗗	4	🔁 🔃 🚥	XLS (SU 127 🗈 🌆 💻] 😑 All	▼ <i>P</i>
# 🗉 Work Order # 🭳	Seq #	Job Status	Task # 🔍		Task Description
1 E HWO-000029-2006		In-Progress			
2 🖻 HWO-000024-2006	1	In-Progress	AIRCRAFT-OL2K		Aircraft Open Customer Orders ex O
3 THWO-000031		In-Progress			
4 🗉 Click here to re	ecord the				
discrepancy de	etails				
Create Material Request	Percent	in an ancu Itamo		Record Component Replac	remembr.
Record Part Consumption	Report E	ulk Facility Usage		Report Facility Usage	<u>ements</u>
Report Employee Work Record Parameter Values	Record : Review (l <u>ob Information</u> Comments		Record Work Delays Review Sign-Off Status	
View Employee Comments	View Mal	erial Request		Inquire Warehouse Stock	Balance
View Task Card	View AM	M Reference		Kecord r der / Oir Log	
Print Request	Start Clock	Reset Cloc		End Clock	Manual Update
Default Details					
Size Off Comparis					
Multi Confinence					
Mechanic Sign-Uff Recording					
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1 ▶ ≫ ± = ₽	4	1 🔁 🔝 🚥	815 ESU 1811 💽 🏰 💻) 😑 All	▼
# 🗏 Work Order #	5eg #	Task #	ST Seg	# Sub Tasks	Sign-
1 E HWO-000024-2006	1	AIRCRAFT-OL2K		1 Completed in ac	cordance with Work
2 🗇					
<				Any	previous comments
Record Parameter Values				evi	sting for sign-off of the
	Sign Off	Void Sub Tas	k Undate Comm	tas	k
	bighton				
In-Direct Work Reporting					
Start Time		End	Date & Time		
In-Direct Category	ADMINISTRATION	Atte	ndance Type	Normal	
Comments			••		
L					
	Start Clock	Reset Cloc	k End Clock		
Descerd Inspector Size off	Start Clock	Reset Cloc	End Cloc	Deserd Allowerses	

Figure 3. 3 Recording employee time sheet

- 9. Select the **Attendance Type** for the employee, as "Normal" or from the quick codes identified for the "Attendance Type" in the "Work Center" business component.
- 10. Click the **Start Clock** pushbutton to record the start time of the selected work orders or tasks.
- 11. Click the **Reset Clock** pushbutton, to remove the starting time.
- 12. Click the **End Clock** pushbutton to record the end time for the tasks or work orders for which the clock was started.
- Note: Ensure that the "Employee Comments" field is not left blank, for those tasks which are pending for sign-off by the resource group "Mechanic".
- If the "Worked Date" is different from the current server date, the "End Time" should be specified manually.
- On clicking the "End Clock" pushbutton, the system changes the status of the work order to "Completed", if the status of the last task in the work order is changed to "Completed" and all the other tasks of the work order are already completed.
 - 13. Click the **Manual Update** pushbutton to update the time sheet details for the employee.
- Note: On clicking the "Manual Update" pushbutton, the system changes the status of the work order to "Completed", if the status of the last task in the work order is changed to "Completed" and all the other tasks of the work order are already completed.
 - In the Mechanic Sign-Off Recording multiline,
 - 14. Enter the Sign-Off Comments.
 - 15. Set the **Discrepancy Rep.?** field to "Yes" or "No", to specify whether any discrepancy has been reported for the work order/task.
 - 16. Click the **Sign-Off** pushbutton to sign-off the task selected in the multiline.
- Note: On clicking the "Sign-Off" pushbutton, the "User Authentication Web Dialog" screen appears. Refer to the topic "Signing-off using Electronic Signature" for more details.

On successful sign-off

The system performs the following:

- Updates the sign-off status to "Yes" for the selected task.
- ➤ When the last task of the work order is signed off, the system updates the status of the work order to "Completed" and completion level to "100%".

- 17. Click the **Void Sub Task** pushbutton to void the sign-off of the task selected in the multiline.
- Note: On clicking the "Void Sub Task" pushbutton, the "User Authentication Web Dialog" screen appears. Refer to the topic "Signing-off using Electronic Signature" for more details.

On successful sign-off

The system performs the following:

- Updates the sign-off status as "Void", for the selected task.
- When the last task of the work order is signed off, the system updates the status of the work order to "Completed" and completion level to "100%".
- 18. Click the **Update Comments** pushbutton to update the sign-off comments for the work order/task selected in the multiline.
- 19. In the **In-Direct Work Reporting group-box** select the **In-Direct Category** and enter the **Comments** pertaining to the indirect work reporting.
- 20. Click the **Start Clock** pushbutton to record start time for the indirect work hours reported for the employee.
- Note: You cannot start the clock once again if the in-direct work reporting has already started.
 - 21. Click the **Reset Clock** pushbutton to reset the start time for the employee.
 - 22. Click the **End Clock** pushbutton to record the end time for the indirect work hours reported for the employee.

You can proceed to do the following,

- ▼ Create a maintenance material request.
- ▼ Record discrepancies.
- ▼ Record component replacement information.
- ▼ Record part consumption details.
- ▼ Record facility usage information.
- ▼ Record employee work information.
- Record Parameter Values and Conditional Evaluation Details.
- ▼ Record job information.
- Record the work delay details.
- ▼ Record the indirect work hour details for the employees.

- Review comments for hangar work order.
- ▼ Review sign-off information.
- ▼ View employee comments.
- ▼ View maintenance material request.
- ▼ Record inspector sign-off information

Signing-off using electronic signature

The following are the prerequisites for using Electronic Signature in this activity:

- 1. The Smart Card Interface Client installation must have been completed and configured on this computer.
- 2. A Smart Card Reader must be connected to this computer and configured.
- 3. Electronic signature authentication must have been enabled for this business component or function in the "Smart Card Interface" business component.
- 4. The person who will be using the Electronic signature feature must have been enrolled as a smart card user and issued a card in the "Smart Card Interface" business component. The card must be active and valid for the current date.

When the "Sign-Off" pushbutton is clicked, the "User Authentication Web Page Dialog" screen appears. See Figure 3. 4

User Authentication	Web Page Dialog	×
User PIN		
	Status	
Ok	Close	
http://172.16.5 👩 Internet		

Figure 3. 4 Authenticating user for signing off using Electronic Signature

- 5. Insert the smart card into the smart card reader and enter your Personal Identification Number (PIN) in the **User PIN** field.
- 6. Click the **OK** pushbutton.

The system authenticates the entered PIN value against the user's PIN value stored in the smart card.

On successful authentication, the system displays the message "Sign-Off Recorded successfully".

If an invalid PIN is entered, the system displays the error message "Incorrect Secret Code Submission" and the Electronic Signature cannot be completed.

Note: The smart card will get into "Locked" status, if the number of continuous invalid PIN entries exceeds the maximum number of invalid PIN entries defined in the "Smart Card Configuration" activity of the "Smart Card Interface" business component. Contact the administrator for unlocking the card and to use the smart card again for Electronic signature.

Recording delay information

Deviations from the planned dates can occur due to various reasons, such as nonavailability of essential resources, the dependent preceding job not being completed as planned etc. You can enter the delays so that an analysis can be performed on the reasons and suitable action can be taken.

Defining work delay codes

You can create delay codes to report the reasons for the delay in work. You can attach these delay codes to the work order or task, if it is delayed.

- 1. Select **Create Work Delay Codes** under the **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Create Work Delay Code Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 5.*
- 2. Enter the **Delay #**, **Delay Description** and **Delay Category**. The system lists all the quick codes of type "Delay Category" which are in "Active" status.

•	Crea	te Work Delay Code Informati	ion			鸿 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🚔 📑 🐺 🙆
Wor	k Dela	ay Details					
~	•	1 -1/1 🕨 🔌 🛨 🗖 🐇]	🔀 💽 🛲 815 CS	I 💷 I I II 🖶 🖨 All	~	Q
#	F	Work Delay #	Delay Description		Delay Category		
1	F	АА	Awaiting Approvals				
2	1						•
		1					
		<u>×</u>					
				Create Delay Codes			

Figure 3. 5 Defining work delay codes

3. Click Create Delay Codes to record the delay codes.

Reporting work delays

- 1. Select the **Record Work Delays** link in the **Record Employee Timesheet for Hangar Work Orders** page. The **Record Work Delay Information** page appears. See Figure 3. 6.
- 2. Select a task from the **Task #** drop down list box to identify the task for which the delay details are recorded.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton. The system displays the previous delay details, if any recorded for the task, in the **Delay Duration Details** multiline.
- 4. Enter the number identifying the delay in the Work Delay # field.
- 5. Enter other delay details such as **From Date**, **From Time**, **To Date** and **To Time**. Enter the duration of the delay in **Duration** field and any additional information pertaining to the delay, in the **Delay Comments** field.

	Reco	rd Work Delay Information				式 Trailt	bar 🕶 📋 🏡 🚔 🎼	<u>وس</u>
					Date & Time Forn	nat dd/mm/yyyy	hh:mm:ss	
Work	Orde	er Details						
		Visit Package	# VP-000009-2006		Aircraft Reg	g # NZ7005		
		Work Order	# HWO-000029-2006		Job Ty	/pe Aircraft		
x 1		Work Center	# 6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 HANGAR		ATA	A # 00		
Task	veta	IIS	# SAAC-1 Cob Dobale		Builder			٦
		Task Description			Revision	1#		
Defer	di n	rask bescripti	JT Sulp Avionics Aircrarc					
Derat	lit De	Dof Eron Date & Time			Dof. To Date & Time			-
Dolar	Dur	ation Details			Der. To Date & Time			
Delay	Dur							
<u>«</u>	•	1 -1/1 • » + -	69 (K)			1	×	Q
#	E	Work Delay # 🍳	Delay Description		From Date	From Time	To Date	
1		AA			03/11/2008	10:00:00	01/04/2009	
2	1							
		1						1
				Record Delays				
1								
								-

Figure 3. 6 Reporting work delays

6. Click the Record Delays pushbutton to record the delay details.

Recording indirect work hours for an employee

You can specify the break duration of the employee by specifying the break starting and the ending time.

- 1. Select the **Record In-Direct Work Hours** link in the **Record Time Sheet** page. The **Record In-Direct Work Time** page appears.
- 2. Enter the date for which the employee is entering the indirect work hours in the **Worked Date** field and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- 3. Enter the total break hours or indirect work hours of the employee in the **Break Duration (Hrs)** field.
- 4. Enter the Employee Comments and select the In-Direct Category.
- 5. Select the **Attendance Type** for the employee, as "Normal" or from the quick codes identified for the "Attendance Type" in the "Work Center" business component.
- 6. Click the **Record In-Direct Hours** pushbutton to update the indirect work hours for the employee.

Recording indirect working hour details for the employees in the work center.

You can record the time spent on ad hoc work such as training, meeting or discussion. You can record the indirect working hour details for the employees only if the "Employee Time Sheet Updation Mode" field is set to "Manual" in the "Set Options" activity.

- 1. Select the **Record In-Direct Work Hours for Employee** link in the **Report & Close Work Order** page. The **Record In-Direct Work Hours for Employees** page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to search for indirect work hour details based on the search criteria entered.

In the In-Direct Working Hours Details multiline,

- 3. Enter the employee number for whom you need to report the work hour details, in the **Employee #** field.
- 4. Enter the From Date, From Time, To Date and To Time.
- 5. Enter the total time for which the employee is utilized for the indirect work, in the **Duration Hours** field.
- 6. Select the **In-Direct Category** and enter the **Comments** pertaining to the indirect work reporting.

- 7. Select the **Attendance Type** for the employee, as "Normal" or from the quick codes identified for the "Attendance Type" in the "Work Center" business component.
- 8. Click the **Record In-Direct Working Hours** pushbutton to update indirect work hour details.
- On clicking the "Record In-Direct Working Hours" pushbutton, the system:
 - updates the timesheet status for the newly added records as "Fresh", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" and "Authorization of Timesheet Records" are set as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.
 - updates the timesheet status for the newly added records as "Fresh", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" and "Authorization of Timesheet Records" are set as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.
 - updates the timesheet status as "Not Required", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" and "Authorization of Timesheet Records" are set to "Not Required" in the "Set Options" activity.

Reporting employee work details

- 1. Select **Report Employee Work** under the **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Employee Work Information** page appears. See Figure 3. 7.
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the work order and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- Note: The system retrieves the work order or task based on the option selected in the Task Reporting field in the "Set Options" activity. If "All Employees" is selected, the work orders or tasks of all the employees are retrieved. If "Assigned Employee" is selected, the work orders or tasks, which have been assigned to the login user, are retrieved

If the employee has already reported the actuals for the work order or task, then the system displays the first date and time at which the actuals were reported, in the **Work Start Date** and **Work Start Time** fields.

Check the box in the Select column of the multiline to select the word order(s) for further processing.

Hangar Work Reporting

Employee Work Information				式 Trailbar 🔹 🏠 🏠 🎼	6 10
			Date Format dd/mn	מואאאא	
Employee Details					-
Employee # 2095		Click hore to modify	Employee Name WEBB	, TRACY	
Search Criteria		the advanced			•
Search Option All	v	search criteria			
Adv. Search ID	✓ Edit		Display Option Task	~	
Visit Package #			Aircraft Reg #		
Work Order #			Job Type	~	
Work Center #	×		Assignment Type	~	
Assigned From Date	•		Assigned to Date		
ATA #			Task Category	~	
Work Order Description			Task Description		
		Search			
Search Results					-
≪ ◀ 1 -5/500 ► ≫ =			🚹 🗐 🖶 All	*	P
# 🔲 Work Order #	Job Type	Task #	Revision #	•	Assig
1 E HWO-001312-2008	Aircraft	TASK0708	1		
2 🖻 HWO-000676-2008	Aircraft	A030208			
3 T HWO-000677-2008	Airceaft	A030208			
4 🗉 HWO-000679-2 Click here to set adv	anced	<u>A030208</u>			
5 Rearch criteria option	is for	<u>A-0002</u>		Select this link to	
searching a work orc	ler			view the aircraft	
				maintenance log	
Create Material Request Report Additional Task Execution Record Part Consumption Record In-Direct Work Hours Record Sign Off View Associated Discrepance Record Resource Usage	Edit Work Delays Report Additional Part Cr Record Component Repl Record Time Sheet View Material Request St View Employee Comment Record Fuel / Oil Log	onsumption accements actus IS	Report Discrepancies Report Job Informatio Record Backflushed Pa Record Parameter Vak View Material Requiren View Aircraft Maintena	n ert Inforn nents nnce Log	
Set Adv. Search Criteria					
2					>

Figure 3. 7 Reporting employee work details

You can proceed to do the following:

- Select the Record Time Sheet link to record the time sheet details for the employee.
- Select the Record Part Consumption link to specify the actuals for the part utilized for the work order or task.
- Select the Record Job Information link to report the job execution details for the wok order or task.
- Select the Report Discrepancies link to report the discrepancy for the wok order or task.
- Select the Record In-Direct Work Hours link to report indirect work hours for an employee.
- Select the Record Component Replacements link to record the component replacement detail.
- Select the <u>Record Parameter Values and Conditional Evaluation Details</u> link to record the parameter values.

- ▼ Select the **Report Additional Part Consumption** link to report the additional part utilized for the work order or task.
- ▼ Select the **Report Additional Task Execution** link to report the additional task executed.
- ▼ Select the **Record Backflushed Part Information** link to record backflushed part consumption details.

To provide further details,

- ▼ Select the Edit Work Delays link to modify the delay code details.
- ▼ Select the **Record Sign Off** link to sign of the task and the sub tasks.
- Select the Create Material Request link to select a work order or task for creating a material request document for the part required for the work order or task.

Refer to the topic "Creating material request" under "Scheduling work order", for details on creating material request.

To view further details,

- ▼ Select the View Material Requirements link to view the material required for the work order or task.
- Select the View Employee Comments link to view the comments specified by the employee.
- Select the View Material Request Status link to view the status of the material request.
- ▼ Select the View Related Discrepancy link to view the discrepancy associated to the work order.

Recording time sheet for an employee

- 3. Select the **Record Time Sheet** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Record Time Sheet** page appears. *See Figure 3. 8.*
- 4. Select the task for which the execution details must be entered, in the **Task #** drop-down list box and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- 5. Enter the starting date and time of the task in the **From Date** and **From Time** fields.

- 6. Enter the task execution completed date and time in the **To Date** and **To Time** fields.
- Note: Ensure that the date range specified by the From Date and To Date fields, do not overlap with the indirect work hours reported for the same employee.



Figure 3. 8 Recording time sheet for an employee

- 7. Enter the actual time spent on the work order or task by the employee in the **Worked Duration** field.
- 8. Select the **Attendance Type** for the employee, as "Normal" or from the quick codes identified for the "Attendance Type" in the "Work Center" business component.
- 9. Enter the comments or remarks regarding the work order or task execution in the **Employee Comments** field.

- 10. Click **Update Time Sheet** pushbutton to update the time sheet details for the employee.
- Note: On clicking the Update Timesheet pushbutton, the system:
 - updates the timesheet status for the newly added records as "Fresh", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" and "Authorization of Timesheet Records" are set as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component.
 - updates the timesheet status for the newly added records as "Confirmed", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" is set as "Not Required" and if the "Authorization of Timesheet Records" is set as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity.
 - updates the timesheet status as "Not Required", if the "Confirmation of Timesheet Records" and "Authorization of Timesheet Records" are set to "Not Required" in the "Set Options" activity.

Execute a visit package

You can select the visit package and record the work execution details for the work order in the visit package.

- 1. Select **Execute Visit Package** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Visit Package page** appears. *See Figure 3. 9.*
- 2. Search for the visit package and click Search pushbutton.

The system displays the visit package details in the **Search Results** multiline.

Hangar Work Reporting

-						_
Sear	ch Cri	iteria				L
		Visit Package #		Adv. Search ID	✓ Edit	
		Title		Status	×	
		Visit Type	×	Visit Group	×	
		Visit Category	¥	Aircraft Reg #		
		User Status		Work Center #		×
		Customer #		Customer Name		
				Search		_
Sear	ch Re	esults				L L
~	•	1 - 10 / 500 🕨 💓 😑		🔁 🔝 🚥 🚥 💷 💷 📮 🗛	~	Q
#	Π	Visit Package #	Title		Aircraft Reg #	Stat
1		VP-000006-2006	668350 FIT MARINE BA		ZKVCM	Rele
2		VP-000009-2006	688645 RNZAF C130 NZ		NZ7005	Rele
3		VP-000011-2006	691716 XPNDER, ALT,		ZKHZE	Rele
4		VP-000014-2006	F27 ZK-POH Dec 06 Mo		ZK-POH	Rele
5		VP-000015-2006	694365 Eagle Line Maint	enance Dec 06	ZK-EAGLE	Rele
6		VP-000016-2006	Install Voice Activated C	om to ZK-HON	ZK-HON	Rele
7		VP-000017-2006	Transferred job 6796		ZK-HON	Rele
8		VP-000020-2006	Carry out reweigh to		ZK-NLN	Rele
9		VP-000022-2006	F27 ZK-NAO Dec 06 Mor	thly Job	ZK-NAO	Rele
10	1	VP-000026-2006	F27 ZK-PAX De06 Month	ly Job	ZK-PAX	Relea
		1				N
		<u>.</u>				
<u>Scheo</u> Proce Updat Recor	lule W ss Disc :e Engi d Back	ork Order crepancies ine/APU Usage diushed Part Information	Record Preliminary Record Resource L Issue Certificate o	Inspection Findings Record Work Pr Isage Record Part Co Maintenance Review Visit Pa	rogress nsumption ckage	
Creat	e Adv.	. Search ID				

Figure 3. 9 Executing visit package(s)

3. Check the box in the **Select** column of the multiline to select the visit package and select the appropriate link given below for further processing.

Recording part consumption details

- 1. Select **Record Part Consumption** under the **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Work Order** page appears.
- 2. Select a work order and select the **Record Parts Consumption** link at the bottom of the page. The **Record Parts Consumption Information** page appears. See Figure 3. 10.
- Select the task number for which parts consumption must be reported, in the Task # drop down list box and click the Get Details pushbutton.

∎* R	ecord	d Parts Coi	nsumption Information		🔤 式 Trailbar	' 🏡 🖨 🛤 🏹 🔟
Work (Drder	Details				
			Visit Package # VP-000009-2006		Aircraft Reg # NZ7005	
			Work Order # HWO-000030-2006		Job Type Aircraft	
			Work Center # 6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 H	ANGAR		
Task D)etails	5				
			Task #	iet Details	Revision #	
			Task Description			
Custor	ner D	etails				
			Customer # 416		Customer Name RNZAF	
			Customer Order # 688645		Aircraft Release Date 12/12/2006	
Part C	onsun	nption Deta	ils			
	1	-1/1				v Q
		- (-) (Gaut Canadiation		Fanua Rania
#	- 1	une #	ISSUE Part #	Part Description		155UE 58515
1		46	NA56204-9	Bolt		Non-Returnable
2						
	<		Click here to view the			>
			part transaction details			
			7/	Upda	ate Part Consumption	
Record	Additic	onal Part Cor	motion Create F	Return Slip	Record Fitment Details	
View Pa	rt Tran	nsactions	Re-Alloc	ation of Materials	: Issued	
<						>

Figure 3. 10 Recording parts consumption

- 4. Enter the quantity of the parts consumed, in the **Used Qty.** field in the **Part Consumption Details** multiline. Click the **Update Part Consumption** pushbutton to record the details.
- Note: The system displays an error message if any other concurrent user attempts to simultaneously modify the part consumption details for the work order.

You can proceed to do the following:

▼ Select the **Create Return Slip** link, to create a return slip to return unused or unserviceable parts.

Refer to the topic "Creating a material return slip to return excess or unserviceable parts" for more details.

 Select the Re-Allocation of Materials Issued link to reallocate materials issued.

Refer to the topic "Reallocating materials issued" for more details.

Reporting spare part fitment

You can record the quantity of spare part consumed while executing a task or work order for a part.

- Note: You can record the spare part fitment details for only those parts, which are serial-controlled and/or lot-controlled.
 - 1. Select **Record Fitment Details** link in the **Record Parts Consumption Information** page. The **Record Spare Parts Fitment Information** page appears. See Figure 3. 11.
 - 2. Select the **Position Number** and enter the **Date Of Attachment** of the part in the **Part Fitment Details** multiline.
 - 3. Enter remarks regarding the attachment of the part in specified position code, in the **Fitment Comments** field.

Select Work Order > Record Part	s Consumption Informatio Record	n > Record Spare Parts Spare Parts Fil	Fitment Information tment Information			
Work Order Details				Date Format		
Visit Package #			Aircraft Reg #			
Work Order #			Job Type			
Work Center #						
Component Details						
Component #						
Part #			Serial #			
Part Description		ų,				
Task Details						
Task #			Revision #			
Task Description		i 💭				
Spare Part Details						
Spare Part #			Part Description	ų.		
Used Qty.						
Customer Details						
Customer #			Customer Name			
Customer Order #			Aircraft Release Date			
Default Details						
Def. Date of Attachment						
Part Fitment Details						
🗒 🐺 🖻 🗶 🛎 🐔) 🔲 🖏			То	tal Rows :	0
# 🗖 🔺 Serial #	▼ ▲ Lot # ▼ 4	 Issue Stock Status 	 Position Number 	Date Of Attachment	•	▲ ★
1 🗖			•			
2			•			-
3			•			-
4			•			-
5			-			-
<u>6</u>			-			-
7 🗖			•			-
8 🗖			•			-
9			•		-	
10			-		-	- ¥
1 4						-
		Edit Fittme	ent			
Select Work Order > Record Part	is Consumption Informatio	n > Record Spare Parts I	Homent Information			

Figure 3. 11 Recording spare part fitment information

- 4. Click the Edit Fitment pushbutton to record the fitment details.
 - The system updates the new position code details, date of attachment, comments and the work order number, for the aircraft or component in the "Configuration" business component.

Recording backflushed part information

You can report the consumption details of backflushed parts issued from the inventory, which have been utilized for work order execution.

This page can be invoked from the following activities:

- Record Part Consumption
- Execute Visit Package
- Report Employee Work
- Report and Close Work Order
- 1. Select the **Record Backflushed Part Information** link in the main page. The **Record Backflushed Part Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 12.*

Record Backflushed Part Informatic	on		式 Trailbar	• 🏡 🖨 🖾 🖉 🔟	
Work Order Details					
Visit Package #	VP-000009-2006		Aircraft Reg # NZ7005		
Work Order #	HWO-000032-2006		Job Type Aircraft		
Work Center #	6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 HANGAR				
Task Details					
Task #	RAAC-001-1 🗸 Get Details		Revision #		
Task Description					
Customer Details					
Customer #	416	c	ustomer Name RNZAF		
Customer Order #	688645				
Part Consumption Details					
[No records to display]				v D	
			Card Trace		
* Colline * Required Part *	00%	xey, qty.	Part Type	Consumed Part # 🤜	
¹ Click here to record					
details of the					
additional part utilized		Click here to	retrieve		
for the work order or		the additional			
task.		backflushed r	parts		
				>	
Record Serial/Lot Controlled art Info. Help on Additional Backflushed Parts					
 /					
↓ //	Record Consumption	Confirm Consumption			
Record Addition Part Consumption	Create Return Slip		Record Fitment Details		
<				>	

Figure 3. 12 Recording backflushed part information

2. Select the **Task #** in the **Task Details** group-box and click the **Get Details** push button to retrieve task details and backflushed part details reported for the work order-task combination.

- 3. Select the **Warehouse #** and **Stock Status** in the **Part Consumption Details** multiline.
- 4. Click the **Record Consumption** push button to record the backflushed part consumption details.
- Note: For the work center to which the warehouse is associated, the system ensures that the "Allow Backflushing" field is checked in the "Warehouse Settings" group box in the "Create Warehouse Information" activity of the "Storage Administration" business component.
 - 5. Click the **Confirm Consumption** push button to confirm the backflushed part consumption details.

You can proceed to do the following,

- Select the Record Serial/Lot Controlled B/F Part Info. link to record serial/lot details for the backflushed parts.
- ▼ Select the **Create Return Slip** link to create the return slip for the unused or excess parts.
- Select the Record Additional Part Consumption link to record details of the additional part utilized for the work order or task.

Recording serial number and lot number details for backflushed parts

You can record the serial/lot number details and consumption details of backflushed parts that are "Serial Controlled" or "Lot Controlled".

- 1. Select the Record Serial / Lot Controlled B/F Part Info. link in the Record Backflushed Part Information page. The Record Serial / Lot Controlled B/F Part Info page appears. See Figure 3. 13.
- 2. Select the **Line #** associated to the serial-controlled or lot-controlled backflushed part, in the **Line Details** group-box.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** push button to retrieve the serial-controlled and lotcontrolled backflushed part details that are reported for the work order-task combination.
- 4. In the Serial/Lot Details multiline, enter the Serial #, Lot #, Warehouse-Zone # and Bin # associated to the backflushed part.

Record Serial / Lot Controlled B/F Part Info.	💐 Trailbar 🗸 🗌 👼 🚛 题
Work Order Details	
Visit Package # VP-000009-2006	Aircraft Reg # NZ7005
Work Order # HWO-000032-2006	Job Type Aircraft
Work Center # 6403-ACFT MAINT NO 4 HA	NGAR
Line Details	
Line # 🛛 🗸 Get Details	Warehouse#
Part #	Part Description
Qty.	
Serial / Lot Details	
< 📢 [No records to display] 🕨 🔊 + - 🗗 🍇	
# 🗖 Serial # 🭳 Lot # 🭳	Qty. WH - Zone # Q Bin # Q Condition
1 🗖	
2	
	Record Consumption
<	

Figure 3. 13 Recording Serial/Lot controlled backflushed part information

- 5. Click the **Record Consumption** push button to update the serial and lot details entered in the multiline.
- Note: Once recorded, the serial or lot details cannot be modified.

Reallocating materials issued

You can record the material issue details for the parts that have been utilized for the work order execution.

- 1. Select the **Reallocation of Materials Issued** link in the **Record Parts Consumption Information** page. The **Reallocation of Materials Issued** page appears. See Figure 3. 14.
- 2. In the **Material Request Details** group-box, select the **Material Request #** that has already been issued for the part across work orders/tasks belonging to the same visit package.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** push button to retrieve the issue details corresponding to the material request selected.

Hangar Work Reporting

•	Re-A	Allocation of Material Issued				式 Trailbar 🕶 🛛	Ω 🖨 🛱 🏹 🔟
Part	Deta	ils					
Part # % Part Type		Part Description Part Control Type					
Mate	erial F	Request Details					
Visit Package # VP-000009-2006 Work Order # HWO-000029-2006 Material Request # V Get Details			Title 688645 RNZAF C130 NZ Task #				
Mate	erial I	issue Details					
<	•	[No records to display] 🛛 🕨	+ - 6 &	🔂 📃 🚥 💴	🚥 💷 🚹 🚇 🚍 All	~	Q
#	F	Ref. Document Type	Ref. Document #	Task	*	UOM	Requested Qty
1	Е						
		<					>
				Edit Re-Allocation			
<							>

Figure 3. 14 Reallocating materials issued.

- 4. Enter the Additional Quantity and Remove Quantity in the Material Issue Details multiline.
- 5. Click the **Edit Reallocation** push button to update the material issue details.

Record additional part consumption details

You can enter the non-standard parts that are utilized for a task or work order.

You can report the non-standard part (the part number that does not exist in the "Part Administration" business component), only if the "Reporting of Non Standard Additional Parts" field is set as "Allowed" in the "Set Options" activity. The part must be of valid part type as selected in the "Part Types for Additional Part Reporting" field in the "Set Options" activity.

1. Select the **Report Additional Part Consumption** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Record Additional Part Consumption** page appears. *See Figure 3. 15.*

•	Reco	ord Additional Part Consumption					鸿 Trailbar 🔹 🗌 🏠 🕯	B 🛱 🖡	105
Work	Orde	er Details							.
		Visit Package # VP-000009	-2006		Aircra	aft Reg # NZ700	5		
		Work Order # HWO-000	032-2006			Job Type Aircraf	t		
		Work Center # 6403-ACF	r Maint no 4 Hangar						
Custo	omer	Details							
		Customer # 416			Custon	ner Name RNZAF			
Customer Order # 688645				Aircraft Rele	ase Date 12/12/	2006			
					Currency NZD				
Addit	ional	l Part Details							
(<)	•	1 -1/1 🕨 💓 🛨 🗖 🚱 🌡		1	💶 🔒 🎩 🚍	All	~		P
#	E	Part # 🔍	Part Description				Part Type		UOM
1		0-4600-840	Reel,Harness					-	
2								-	
		×							>
				Record Parts Consumption	J				

Figure 3. 15 Record additional part consumption

The system displays the Work Order Details in the group box.

- 2. Enter the details of additional parts used, in the **Additional Part Details** multiline.
- 3. Click the **Record Parts Consumption** pushbutton to record the details of additional parts used.

Recording additional task execution details

<

You can record the details of any unplanned task performed while executing the work order.

1. Select the **Report Additional Task Execution** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Record Additional Task Execution** page appears. See *Figure 3. 16.*

The system displays the Work Order Details in the group box.

2. Enter the task details in the **Task Details** multiline.

>

Hangar Work Reporting

Record Additional Task Execution		式 Trailb	ar 🗤 📔 🏡 🔝 🔝			
		Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy	hh:mm:ss			
Work Order Details						
Visit Package #	VP-000011-2006	Aircraft Reg # ZKHZE				
Work Order #	HWO-000025-2006	Job Type Aircraft				
Work Center #	6401-ACFT MAINT NO 1 HANGAR	Status In-Progress				
Customer Details						
Customer #	2952	Customer Name MARLBOROUGH H	ELICOPTERS LTD			
Customer Order #	691716	Aircraft Release Date 12/12/2006				
Default Details						
Date		Default as				
Tack Dotails						
≪ ◀ <u>1</u> -1/1 ▶ ≫ + - ⊡] 🔏 🔰 📔 🛄 🚥 🚥 🚥	🔤 🖬 📳 📳 🖪	۲			
# 🗏 Task # 🍳	Task Description	Time Unit	Actual Duration			
1 B SECA	Strip Fuselage Cabin	Hours				
2 🗉		Hours				
<			>			
Record Unplanned Tasks						
Record Employee Work	Record Resource Usage	Record Part Consumption				

Figure 3. 16 Recording additional task execution details

3. Click the **Record Unplanned Tasks** pushbutton to record the details of the unplanned tasks performed.

Recording component replacement details

1. Select the **Record Component Replacements** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Record Component Replacement Information** page appears. See Figure 3. 17.
| Record Component Replacement Information | | ⊒© Trailbar - | 1 🏠 🚔 🛱 📮 🔟 |
|--|--|--|---|
| | | Date Format dd/mm/yyyy | |
| Work Order Details | | | |
| Visit Package # VP-000001-2009 | | Aircraft Reg # 634 | |
| Work Order # HWO-000002-2009 | | Job Type Aircraft | |
| Work Center # ATL-LINE | | | |
| Other Replacement Details Main Removal Details | | | |
| | | | |
| Break Select this the multiple replacement | tab to record
e component
nt details | | |
| Default Details | | | |
| Date & Time 08/06/2009 | 16 45 16 | Default as | ▼ |
| Action By Q 001111 | | | |
| Other Replacement Details | | | |
| < 🖣 [No records to display] 🕨 🔌 🛨 🗕 🗗 |] 🔏 🛛 🔂 📘 💷 💷 💷 | All | Q |
| # 🗇 Object Type Position Code 🭳 | Removed Part # 🤍 | Removed Serial # 🤍 | Remove |
| 1 Component | | | |
| Create Return Slip Pr | Confirm Removal Action Confirm | Replacement Action Click here
for the replacement the multility | e to print a tag
moved
nt specified in
ne. |
| < | | | > |

Figure 3. 17 Recording component replacement details

The system retrieves the component replacement transactions that are already recorded for the work order along with the Aircraft configuration tree structure. On launching the page, the system displays the current aircraft configuration along with the position codes, in the form of a tree structure. Details such as Aircraft #, Component#, Position Codes, Part#, Part Description, Serial #, and Component # are displayed in the tree structure. The system refreshes the tree structure whenever a replacement, removal or attachment transaction is recorded for the component.

To proceed, carry out the following

- Select the Other Replacement Details tab to record multiple component replacements.
- Select the Main Removal Details tab to record the main component removal, attachment or replacement details.

Recording multiple replacement details

1. Select the **Other Replacement Details** tab in the **Record Component Replacement Information** page, to record the multiple component replacement details. *See Figure 3. 17.*

In the Other Replacement Details multiline,

- 2. Set the **Object Type** to "Component" or "Others".
- Note: You cannot modify the object type for the records already exiting in the multiline.
 - 3. Enter the **Position Code** and Removed **Part #**.
- Note: If the object type is "Others", ensure that the control type of the removed part specified here is "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled".
 - 4. Enter the **Removed Serial #, Removed Lot #** and set the **Serial # / Lot # Type** to "New" or "Existing".
- Note: If multiple records with object type "Component" are selected for the component replacement transaction, ensure that the removed part number and serial number combination is different for the selected records.
 - 5. Select the Component Condition as "Serviceable", ""Unserviceable" or ""Phased Out".
- Note: The component condition can be set as "Phased Out" only if the "Work Center #" allows the phasing out of the part.
 - 6. Enter Installed Part # and Installed Serial #.
- Note: If the object type is "Others", ensure that the control type of the part specified here is "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled".
 - 7. Enter the **Removal Date**, **Removal Time**, **Attachment Date** and **Attachment Time**.
 - 8. Set the **Action** field to "Removal" to indicate that the component has been removed or to "Attachment" to indicate that the component has been attached.
 - 9. Enter the Manufacturer Serial # and the Manufacturer Lot #.

- 10. Enter the Removed **Component #** identifying the installed component.
- Note: Ensure that the number entered here is different from the component number specified in the "Main Removal Details" group box.

To Record CR

- 11. Click the **Record CR** pushbutton to update the component replacement details.
- The system displays an error message if any other concurrent user attempts to simultaneously modify the component replacement details for the work order.
- Sets the status of the generated component replacement numbers to "Fresh".
- Updates the status of the work order to "In-Progress".
- Note: If multiple records with object type "Component" are selected for the component replacement transaction, ensure that the removed part number and serial number combination is different for the selected records.
- For the installed part with serial number type "New", the system generates a new component number.
- The system generates a new lot number for the specified part number based on the Numbering Type defined in the "Document Numbering Class" business component, only if :
 - the "Object Type" is set to "Others".
 - the "Serial # / Lot # Type" is set to "New".
 - the "Manufacturer Lot #" is specified.
- Generates a purchase request for the outgoing component, if:
 - The "Aircraft Ownership" and "Component Ownership" is set as "Owned".
 - The "Component Condition" is set as "Phased Out"
 - The "Action on Phase-Out" is set as "Generate Purchase Request"
 - The "Work Center #" of Hangar Work Order has "Phase-Out" policy
- Updates the condition of the outgoing component to "Phased-Out".

To Confirm Replacement Action

- 12. Click the **Confirm Replacement Action** pushbutton to confirm the replacement details after creating the component replacement transaction.
- Note: If multiple records are selected in the multiline, ensure that the removed part number and serial number combination is different for the selected records.
- Note: The system ensures the following:
 - The object type must be set as "Component".

- The removal date and time of the removed component must be later than the initialization date and time of the parameter value of the removed component as available in the parameter value history, in the "Aircraft" business component.
- The attachment date and time of the installed component must be later than the initialization date and time of the parameter value of the installed component as available in the parameter value history.
- Note: You cannot confirm the replacement details before confirming component removal, if the replacement type is set to "Restoration", "Replacement" or "Remove Only".

The system does the following:

- Sets the status of the component replacement transaction to "Replaced".
- Changes the status of the work order to "In-Progress".
- Updates the "Configuration" business component with the installed part and the serial number for the position code.
- For the parts being phased out, the system updates the component condition to "Phased Out" in the "Aircraft" business component. Updates the pending return quantity for the phased part as "0" in the "Record Parts Consumption Information" page.
- Generates purchase request for the phased out part, if:
 - The "Aircraft Ownership" and "Component Ownership" is set as "Owned"
 - The "Action On Phase Out" for the part is set to "Generate Purchase Request".
 - The "Work Center #" of Hangar Work Order has "Phase-Out" policy.

To Confirm Removal Action

- 13. Click the **Confirm Removal Action** pushbutton to confirm the component removal details after creating the component replacement transaction.
- Note: If multiple records are selected in the multiline, ensure that the removed part number and serial number combination is different for the selected records.
- Note: Ensure that the object type is "Component" and replacement type is other than "Attachment Only".
- The system ensures that the removal date and time of the moved component is later than the initialization date and time of the parameter value of the removed component as available in the parameter value history, in the "Aircraft" business component.

The system does the following:

- Sets the status of the component replacement transaction to "Removed".
- Changes the status of the work order to "In-Progress".

- Updates the "Configuration" business component with the removed part and the serial number for the position code.
- For the parts being phased out, the system updates the component condition to "Phased Out" in the "Aircraft" business component. Updates the pending return quantity for the phased out part as "0" in the "Record Parts Consumption Information" page.
- Generates purchase request for the phased out part, if:
 - The "Aircraft Ownership" and "Component Ownership" is set as "Owned"
 - The "Action On Phase Out" for the part is set to "Generate Purchase Request".
 - The "Work Center #" of Hangar Work Order has "Phase-Out" policy.
- The system will not update the removal details in the "Configuration" business component, if the position's current attachment status is "Unknown" in the "Build Component Configuration" activity of the "Configuration" business component. On confirming the removal, the system updates the position's attachment status to "Removed".

To proceed, carry out the following

 Select the Main Removal Details tab to record the main component removal, attachment or replacement details.

Recording main removal details

1. Select the Main Removal Details tab in the Record Component Replacement Information page. See Figure 3. 18.

In the Main Removal Details group box,

- 2. Enter the **Position Code** where the component is fitted in the aircraft.
- Note: You cannot leave this field blank, if the Replacement Type is set to "Attachment Only".
 - 3. Enter the tag number to be attached to the component after its removal from the aircraft, in the **Tag #** field.
 - 4. Enter the reason for removing the component from the position code, in the **Reason #** field.
 - 5. Enter the date and time at which the component is removed from the position code, in the **Removal Date & Time**.
 - 6. Enter the code identifying the employee who removed the component, in the **Removed By** field.

Record Component Replaceme	nt Information			📑 Trailbar 🗸 📄 🔂 📮 🌆
			Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy
Work Order Details				[
Visit Package #	VP-000009-200	6	Aircraft Reg #	NZ7005
Work Order #	HWO-000029-2	:006	Job Type	Aircraft
Work Center #	6403-ACFT MAI	INT NO 4 HANGAR		
Other Replacement Details Main Rem	oval Details			1
Main Replacement Details		Set the condition component to "Set	of the erviceable"	
Component Replacement #		"Unserviceable" of	or "Phased Out".	
Removed Component # Part #		7/	Position Code 🭳 Serial #	
Part Description				
Component Condition	UnServiceable	Ŷ	Replacement Type	e 🖌
Tag #			Reason #9	
Removal Date & Time			Removed By «	·
Main Attachment Details				
Component #Q		N	Issue #	
Part # 4		<u>N</u>	Serial # 🍕	
Attachment Date & Time			Attached By 🤍	
Customer Details				
Customer # Customer Order #	416 688645	The number identifying the	Customer Name Aircraft Release Date	RNZAF e 12/12/2006
Create CWO/ RO For Outgoing Component		component issue		
Click here to print a tag for th removed component specifie in the "Main Removal Details group box.	e d , Record CR	document	al Action Cc	onfirm Replacement Action
Create Return Slip		Print Tag to Removed Com	ponent{Main}	
<				

Figure 3. 18 Recording main removal details

In the Main Attachment Details group box,

- 7. Enter the component to be installed in place of the removed component in the **Component #** field.
- 8. Enter the Part # and Serial #.
- 9. Enter the date and time at which the component is attached to the aircraft in the **Attachment Date & Time** field.
- 10. Enter the code identifying the employee who attached the component, in the **Attached By** field.
- 11. Click the **Record CR** pushbutton to update the component replacement details.

The system updates the component replacement details on clicking the "Record CR" pushbutton. For more details refer to the topic "To Record CR" in the "Recording multiple replacement details".

12. Click the **Confirm Removal Action** pushbutton, to confirm the component removal details after creating the component replacement transaction.

The system confirms the component removal details on clicking the "Confirm Removal Action" pushbutton. For more details refer to the topic " To Confirm Removal Action" in the "Recording multiple replacement details".

13. Click the **Confirm Replacement Action** pushbutton, to confirm the replacement details after creating the component replacement transaction.

The system confirms the component replacement details on clicking the "Confirm Replacement Action" pushbutton. For more details refer to the topic " To Confirm Replacement Action" in the "Recording multiple replacement details".

To proceed, carry out the following

 Select the Other Replacement Details tab to record multiple component replacements.

Recording job execution

You can record the execution details for the work order or for the task associated to the work order.

- 1. Select the **Report Job Information** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Job Report Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 19.*
- 2. Select the **Task #** in the **Task Details** group box to specify the task for which the execution details must be entered, and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- Note: If the option setting for the Task Reporting field is set to "Assigned Employees", then the system lists only those tasks in the work order, which have been currently assigned to the logged in user.

The system retrieves the work order execution details and the discrepancy details.

- 3. Enter the percentage of work completed, in the **% Completed** field.
- 4. Select the Job Status of the task as "Scheduled", "In-Progress" or "Completed".
- Note: You have to set this field to "Completed" if the end date and time is entered.
- You cannot set the status to "Completed", if any employee has logged on to a particular task.
 - 5. Enter the **Start Date & Time** of the work order or task.
- Note: The starting date and time need to be entered for all those work orders or tasks for which the job status is set to "In-Progress" or "Completed".

Job Report Information			😂 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	: 🖨 🗟 🖉 🔟
		Date & Time Format mm/	/dd/yyyy hh:n	nm:ss
Work Order Details				
Visit Package # VP-001844	-2009	Aircraft Reg # 070	7	
Work Order # HWO-0018	60-2009	Job Type Airc	raft	
Work Center # 6-OPERAT	IONS			
Task Details				A
Task # 0000/3/4	✓ Get Details	Revision #		
Task Description TEST				
Job Details				
% Completed		Job Status Sch	neduled 💌	
Start Date & Time 10/06/200	9 🖪 10:00:00 🖪	End Date & Time		•
Actual Elapsed Time	Hours			
Execution Comments				
Default Details				<u> </u>
Employee # 9 0009 Rectified Date of Kolman		Action	×	
Associated Discrepancy Resolution Details		Inspected Date [05/	10/2010	
(In a conditional state of the second state of			`	9
# Discrepancy #	Discrepancy Description		Log Item #	Tracking Status
1 1				
1				Þ
Revise Deferral Limits <u>View Discrepancy Details</u>	Defer Discrepancies	Author Repair Proce	<u>:dure</u>	
	Record	Execution Report		

Figure 3. 19 Recording job execution

- 6. Enter the **End Date & Time** to specify the actual ending date and time of the work order or the task.
- Note: The ending date and time need to be entered for all the work orders or tasks for which the job status is set to "Completed".
 - 7. Enter the Actual Elapsed Time on the task or work order.
 - 8. Enter the **Execution Comments** to specify any additional remarks or comments regarding the execution of the task or work order.

In the Default Details group-box,

- 9. Select the **Action** performed on the discrepancy. Set the field to "Transferred", "No Fault", "Closed" or "Cancelled".
- 10. Enter the dates on which the discrepancy was rectified and inspected, in the **Rectified Date** and **Inspected Date** fields, respectively.

In the Discrepancy Resolution Details multiline,

- 11. Select the Tracking Status of the discrepancy.
- 12. Enter the Corrective Action for resolving the discrepancy
- 13. Enter the **Transfer To: Part #** and **Transfer To: Serial #** to specify the part number and serial number of the part to which the discrepancy is to be transferred.
- 14. Click the **Record Execution Report** pushbutton to update the execution details.
- Note: The system updates the job status of the task as "Scheduled" if the job status is set to "In-Progress".

Recording work order discrepancies

You can record the discrepancies for a work order or task. The mechanic or inspector can record the discrepancies for a work order or task.

If the discrepancy has been successfully resolved, you can "close" the discrepancy or set the status of the discrepancy to "Pending" and resolve them later. All pending discrepancies will be automatically routed to the respective planner for initiating further action. You can also enter the remedial action that was performed for resolving the discrepancy, remarks about the discrepancy and the document name, which contains the details of the discrepancy.

1. Select the **Report Discrepancies** link in the **Employee Work Information** page. The **Record Discrepancies** page appears. *See Figure 3. 20.*

• Record Discrepancie	s	😂 Traibar 🗸 🏠 🛱 두 📧
		Date Format mm/dd/yyyy
Work Details		
	Visit Package # VP-001844-2009	Aircraft Reg # 0707
	Work Order # HWO-001860-2009	Job Status Scheduled
	Task # 0000/3	Revision #
	ATA # 00	Job Status Scheduled
Default Details		
	Employee #Q 0009	Action
	Reported Date 05/10/2010	Rectified Date 05/10/2010
	Inspected Date 05/10/2010	
Discrepancy Details		
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1 ▶ ≫	+ - • •	🔁 📴 📧 💷 🗉 🚛 💷 🚔 🗛
# Discrepancy #	Discrepancy Description Q	Log Item # Discrepancy Type
1 🗉	FIM-001	Click bere to create work
2 🔳		order for resolving the
	Click here to	discropancy
	process the	discrepancy
	discrepancy	
	Edit Deat Dear increase	
Create Corrective Work Order	Edit Work Order	Author Repair Photos
View Aircraft Maintenance Log	View Corrective Action Hist	Click here to select a work
0	ther Observations	order for associating the
		discrepancies
	Rec	ord Discrepancies

Figure 3. 20 Recording discrepancies

In the Default Details group-box,

- 2. Enter the **Reported Date** to specify the date for which the discrepancies report must be retrieved.
- 3. Enter the dates on which the discrepancy was inspected and rectified in the **Inspected Date** and **Rectified Date** fields.
- 4. Select the **Action** to be performed on the discrepancy. Set the field to "To Process", "Cancel" or "Close".

In the Discrepancy Details multiline,

- 5. Enter the **Discrepancy Description**.
- 6. Enter the Log Item #.
- 7. Enter the **Discrepancy Type**.
- 8. Select the **ATA #** to specify the ATA chapter on which the discrepancy is reported.
- 9. Enter the **Fault #** and **Cause #** to specify the fault in the aircraft and the cause for the fault.
- 10. Select the next logical Action to be performed on the discrepancy.

- 11. Enter the Corrective Action for resolving the discrepancy.
- 12. Enter the **Source** and the **Source #**.
- 13. The estimated time since the discrepancy was reported in the Est. Elapse Time field
- 14. Use the **UOM** drop-down list box to select the unit of measurement for the estimated elapsed time. The system displays the following: "Minutes", "Hours", and "Days".
- 15. Select the **Tracking Status** of the discrepancy.
- 16. Select the **Discrepancy Category** and the **Task Category**.
- 17. Enter the **File Name** to specify the document that contains the details of the discrepancy.
- 18. Enter **Other Observations** to specify any other observation reported while recording the discrepancy.
- 19. Click the **Record Discrepancies** pushbutton to update the discrepancies.

Recording Parameter details and conditional evaluation details for the task

Engineering Change Management is a very critical and essential part of Aircraft Maintenance. Most of the engineering changes are very complex in nature and often needs lot of evaluation and follow-up. Consequentially, it is vital that the information systems employed, guide other related functions viz., Maintenance Planning & Production control, through various steps they need to take for effective completion of engineering change initiated, thus ensuring seamless information flow for effective decision making.

Some of the maintenance inspections trigger multiple tasks based on set of conditions defined as part of the task card definition and authoring process. During execution of the main task, mechanic performs the inspection and fills up the evaluation form. Based on the evaluation, another set of task has to be triggered. The planner has to manually review the post compliance follow-up instructions and execution details, to arrive at the next set of action.

The set of post conditional triggers can be captured in this screen. Based on the postcompliance value provided during execution, system can automatically perform the needed post compliance triggering action without manual intervention for analyzing the execution comments and deriving the post compliance action needed.

- 1. Select the Record Parameter Reading / Cond. Eval. Form link from any of the following business components:
 - Work Monitoring and Control: "Review Work" tab of the "Manage Work Assignments and Reporting" activity.
 - Aircraft Maintenance Execution: "Record Aircraft Maintenance Execution Details" activity.
 - Hangar Work Reporting:
 - "Report & Close Work Order" activity.
 - "Employee Work Information" activity.
 - "Record Timesheet for Hangar Work Orders" activity.
 - "Record Inspector Sign-Off" activity.
 - Shop Work Order:
 - "Record Shop Execution Details" activity.

The Record Parameter Reading / Cond. Eval. Form page appears. See Figure 3.21

Record Parameter Reading / Conditiona	l Evaluation Form		:	💐 Trailbar 🗸 🏡 🚔 羄 🌆
			Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyy	y hh:mm:ss
Execution Details				
Exe. Doc. Type / Ref # RON / F	RN-000401-2010		Work Center # ATL-LINE	
🗄 🗄 🖶 🌱 Filter 🗙 🔎	Parameter Reading / Evaluatio	n Form		
□ 🔂 RN-000401-2010	Task # 575221-0	1-1	Task Desc. Gen Vi	sual Inspection -
g FC :: 15008.00	Sub Task Desc.		Sub Task Seq #	
g FH :: 35021.00	Aircraft Reg # 402ps		Part # / Serial #	
⊕ 07-10-01-001D	Parameter Crack Length		Parameter Desc. Crack Length	
	Value / Eval. Response 0.28		Exe. Remarks	
P FH	Permitted Values		Current Value	
	Mandatory/ tes			× 0
🖃 😋 324100-01-1	# Processed2	Triager Vakue	Trigger Value (Min)	Trigger Value (May)
© Crack Length :: 0.97	1 E Na	mygervalue	mgger value (rmr)	
G Crack Length :: 0.28				0.50
ç	3 D No			0.65
	4 🗉 No			0.50
	5 🖻 No			0.50
	4	Update Parameter	Reading / Eval. Form	•

Figure 3. 21 Recording parameter details and conditional evaluation details

The system displays the **Exe. Doc. Type / Ref #** and the **Work Center #** in the **Execution Details** group box.

Tree Structure

The system displays a tree structure in the left pane. The tree will have the 'Execution Doc. #' as the parent node (level). All the nodes of the tree are displayed in an exploded form. The various nodes displayed in the tree are as follows:

First (Parent) node: Execution Doc. #: The package, shop work order or the hangar work order against which the tasks are performed on an aircraft / engine.

Second node: Task # which have parameter requirements defined at task and / or at sub-task levels.

Third node:

- Parameter(s) mapped for the task (Parameters are listed in the same order as defined for the task in the "Edit Parameter Reading / Eval. Form' page of the "Maintenance Task" business component).
- Sub Task Description which has parameter requirements. This is displayed in an order as per the Sub Task Seq #.

Fourth Node: Parameter mapped at each of the sub task level (Parameters are listed in the same order as defined for the task in the "Edit Parameter Reading / Eval. Form" page of the "Maintenance Task" business component).

For the parameter with and without conditional evaluation requirements, the nodes are represented with different symbols as shown below:

• Indicates that the parameter has evaluation details defined for the task or sub tasks in the "Maintenance Task" business component.

Indicates that the parameter does not have evaluation details defined for the task or sub tasks in the "Maintenance Task" business component.

Parameter Node with and without Value / Eval. Response:

When the parameter information is displayed in the tree interface, if the 'Value/ Eval. Response' is already defined for that parameter, the saved 'Value / Eval. Response' value is displayed along with the parameter, concatenated by "::", in 'Bold Blue' font. If the 'Value/ Eval. Response' is not defined for the parameter, the parameter node is displayed in 'Bold Red' font.

Example:

If the 'Exec. Doc #' is HVY-003482-2010, 'Task #' is 53A0051-HFEC, 'Sub Task Desc.' is "Inspection of Crack Length" and 'Parameter' is "Length". The tree structure is displayed as follows:

```
HVY-003482-2010

53A0051-HFEC

Inspection of Crack Length

Length

With Value / Eval. Response:

HVY-003482-2010

Inspection of Crack Length

Length :: 5mm
```

Without Value / Eval. Response:

Parameter reading / conditional evaluation details:

- 2. On clicking the "Task #" and "Sub Task #" nodes in the tree interface, the system displays the details in the Parameter Reading / Evaluation Form" group box and in the "Conditional Maintenance Evaluation" multiline, in the right pane.
- 3. The system displays the following fields in the **Parameter Reading / Evaluation Form** group box:
 - Task #
 - ▶ Task Desc.
 - Sub Task Desc.
 - Sub Task Seq #
 - Aircraft Reg #
 - Part # / Serial #

- Parameter
- Parameter Desc.
- Permitted Values defined for the 'Task # Sub Task Seq # -Parameter' combination
- Current Value of the parameter
- **"Mandatory?"** which Indicates whether the Value / Eval. Response recording is mandatory or not for the parameter.
- Update Mode of the parameter
- 4. Enter the date and time at which the parameter details are updated in the "Update Date & Time" field.
- 5. Enter the employee code of the login user who updated the parameter details in the **Updated by** field.
- In the Conditional Maintenance Evaluation multiline, the system displays the Processed?, Trigger Value, Trigger Value (Min), Trigger Value (Max), Follow-up Action, Follow-up Task #, Records Follow-up Instructions and Evaluation Remarks.
- 7. Click the **Update Parameter Reading / Eval. Form** pushbutton to update the parameter reading details and conditional evaluation details for the task.

Recording facility usage

You can record and update the facilities that are utilized during the execution of a task or a hangar work order. Different types of facilities such as "Equipment" and "Tool" are used to execute a task. These facilities are updated once the task execution starts. You can update facilities usage at a task level or at a hangar work order level.

- Note: The facility usage can be updated only for those work orders, which are in status other than "Hold" and "Pending Deferral".
 - 1. Select **Record Facility Usage** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Facility** page appears.
 - 2. Enter the **Facility #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Facility Type** as "Equipment", "Tools" or "Others".
 - 3. Select the **Record Facility Usage** link provided along side, to record the facility usage details.

Or

4. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton. Select the **Facility #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Record Facility Usage Information** page appears. *See Figure 3. 22.*

Record Facility Usage Information]		15	🕸 Trailbar 🛛 🔛 🏠 💭 🔟
			Date & Time Format dd/mm/yy	/yy hh:mm:ss
Facility Details				
Facility #	ADAPTER		Facility Type Equipmen	t
Facility Object #	EQ-000664-2007		Facility Description Adapter	
Display Filter				
Visit Package #	•		Aircraft Reg #	
Work Order #	·		Work Center # 1-HR&AE	DMIN 🗸
Used Date: From	1		Used Date: To	
		Get Details		
Work Order Details				
« • <u>1</u> -1/1 • » + = d	2 🛃	1 🔁 🔝 💷 💷 🖬 🚛	1 🐺 🖶 All	ب ا
# 🔲 Work Order # 🤇	Seq # Task # 🍳	Revision #		Facility Object #
1 🗏 HWO-000379-2007				
2 🗏				
	The sequence in which	h the work		
	order must be execute	ed		
<				>
		Update Facility Usage		
<				>

Figure 3. 22 Recording facility usage information

5. Enter the **Display Filter** and click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the work order and task details, for which the facilities used during the execution must be recorder and updated.

In the Work Order Details multiline,

- 6. Enter the **Work Order #** for which the facility is used.
- 7. Enter the **Task #** for which the facility is used.
- 8. Enter the Facility Object Code identifying the facility.
- 9. Select the **Time Unit** as "Minutes", "Hours" or "Days", to specify the unit of measurement for the time.
- 10. Enter the total number of hours for which the facility has been used by the work order or task, in the **Used Duration** field.
- Note: The used duration must be equal to the difference between the "From Date" and "From Time" and "To Date" and "To Time".
 - 11. Enter the **From Date** and **From Time** to specify the actual date and time from when the facility has been utilized by the work order or task.
 - 12. Enter the **To Date** and **To Time** to specify the actual date and time until which the facility has been utilized by the work order or task.
 - 13. Enter the **Facility Usg.** Comments on the usage of the facility for the work order or task.

14. Click the **Update Facility Usage** pushbutton, to update the facility usage details for the work order or task.

Creating a material return slip to return excess or unserviceable parts

During the course of work execution or on work completion, the unused (excess) material that was originally issued, as well as the defective (unserviceable) parts or components removed from the aircraft, must be returned to the respective warehouses. The return process is initiated through the creation of a "Return slip".

A return slip represents an advice by the execution personnel (mechanic/supervisor) to the warehouse in-charge to accept the listed material in the prescribed quantity, back to the warehouse.

- 1. Select Create Return Slip under Hangar Work Reporting business component. The Select Work Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 3. Check the box in the **Select** column of the multiline to select the work order for creating the return slip and select the link **Create Return Slip**.
- 4. The Create Return Slip page appears. See Figure 3. 23.
- 5. Select the **Numbering Type** for the generating the return slip number automatically.
- Note: For details on creating numbering types, refer to the section "Defining numbering types for transactions" in the "Inventory Setup" User Guide.

Create Return S	lip		式 Trailbar -	🏡 🚔 🎼 🐷
			Date Format dd/mm/yyyy	
Reference Document D	Details			
	Ref Document # HWO-001678-2008		Numbering Type 3T5 🗸	
	Ref. Document Type Work Order		Work Center # RTS JPGRADE, N2	2
	Part Type All		Return Basis Excess	
	Returned By 2095	WEBB, TRACY	Return Date 18/04/2009	
Customer Details				
	Customer # 2502		Customer Name SPAR AEROSPACE LIMI	TED
	Customer Order # CO-005228-2008		Aircraft Release Date 15/10/2008	
Search Details				
	Part #		Part Description	
		Search		
Material Return Details	5			
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1	> > + - P 4	🔀 [💷 💷 💷 🛄 🛔	All 👻 🔿	P
# 🗏 Line #	Issued Part #	Part Description		Part Type
1 🗉 1	16" O-RING	16" O-ring		Expendable
2 🗖				
	Click here to modify reference documen information for the r	the t eturn slip		
Enter the additio information perta	nal ining to the eturn slip	Click here to print a tag for non-serialized serviceable parts		>
Edit Return Silp	Remarks Create Return Slip Edit R	Confirm Return Si	Cancel Return Slip	here to print a pr non- lized rviceable parts
Print Return Slip	Print S	erviceable Tag for Non Serialized Parts	Print Unserviceable Tag for Non Serialize	ed Parts

Figure 3. 23 Creating a return slip

- 6. Enter the employee code and the name of the employee, who returns the material in the **Returned By** field.
- 7. Enter the Return Date.

To search for the part,

8. Enter the **Part#**, **Part Description** and click **Search** pushbutton.

The system retrieves the issued part details in the multiline.

- 9. In the **Material Return Details** multiline, enter the **Return Part#** to identify the part that is returned.
- 10. Enter the Return Quantity.
- Note: If additional parts, which have no issue document reference, are being returned, then, a valid part number and quantity of the part must be entered in the "Return Part #" and "Return Quantity" field.

- 11. Enter the Return Classification.
- Note: For parts with Part Control Type "None Controlled", you must not specify any value in the Return Classification field for a part if; a) the "Return Valuation Based On Return Classification" is set to "Yes" in the "Set Options" activity of the Stock Maintenance component and, b) the Return Basis is "Returnable".
- Note: For parts with Part Control Type "None Controlled", the Valuation Method must be defined in the "Set Options" activity of the Stock Maintenance component for a Return Classification, Return Basis and Expense Basis combination for parts with Issue Basis other than "Returnable" and Material Type other than "Main Core".
 - 12. Enter the Account Usage and Costing Usage.
 - 13. Specify the stock status in which the parts are being returned in the **Return Stock Status** field.
- Note: You cannot modify the return stock status, if the return basis of the part is "Excess" or the default stock status is "PBH".
 - 14. Specify the warehouse, to which the parts are being returned, in the **Return Warehouse #** field.
- Note: The warehouse selected here should allow storage of the parts of status selected in the "Return Stock Status" field.
- Note: If the part being returned is a "Component", then the system allows the storage of the component in the return warehouse, only if the condition of the returned part is specified as "Allowable Component Condition" for the warehouse in the "Edit Warehouse –Stock Status / Condition allowed" page of the "Storage Area Administration" business component.
 - 15. Click the **Create Return Slip** push button to store the details entered.
- Note: The system displays an error message if any other concurrent user attempts to simultaneously create a return slip for the same part number selected in the multiline, for the work order.
- On creation of the return slip, the return quantity details corresponding to the part number are updated against the work order in the "Record Parts Consumption" page.
 - 16. Click the **Confirm Return Slip** pushbutton to confirm the return slip.
- Note: On creating or confirming return slip, the system validates if the Part Classification of the parts specified in the multiline is allowed in the return slip warehouse, based on the Part Classification mapped to the warehouse in the "Storage Administration" business component.
- Note: If the Part Classification is set as "None" or not defined in the "Part Administration" business component, then the part is classified as Non-Repairable.

- 17. Click the **Cancel Return Slip** pushbutton to cancel the return slip.
- Note: On cancellation of the return slip, the return quantity updated against the part number in the corresponding work order, is reverted to the previous value.

To provide further details,

- ▼ Select Edit Serial No/Lot No Information link, to enter the serial number and lot number details for the returned part.
- Note: You can traverse to this page, only if the return slip contains parts that are "Lot Controlled", "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled".

Entering serial number and lot number details in a return slip

- 1. Select Edit Serial No/Lot No Information link in the Create Return Slip or Edit Return Slip page. The Edit Serial Number & Lot Number Information page appears. See Figure 3. 24.
- 2. Select the **Line #** of the return slip for which the serial number and lot number details must be entered and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- 3. Enter the **Return Serial #**(if the part is serial number controlled) and **Return** Lot# (if the part is lot number controlled)of the part to be returned.
- Note: Ensure that the serial number is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Serial Controlled".
- Ensure that the lot number is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Lot Controlled".
- Also ensure that the serial number and lot number combination is not repeated in the multiline, if the part is "Lot & Serial Controlled".
 - 4. Enter the quantity of the part returned to the warehouse, in the **Return Qty**. field.
- Note: Ensure that the return quantity is "1", if the returned part is of part control type "Serial Controlled" or "Lot & Serial Controlled". Also ensure that the return quantity is greater than zero, if the returned part is of part control type "Lot Controlled".
- If the returned part is of part control type "Lot Controlled", then the system ensures that the returned quantity is not greater than the issued quantity.
- Note: You cannot modify the serial number, lot number and return quantity that are automatically retrieved for the returned parts, from the "Create Return Slip" page or from the "Record Component Replacement Information" page of the "Hangar Work Reporting" business component

Edit Serial Number & Lot Number Information	n				3\$ Traiber •	a 😂 🗟
Return Details	# PTS-000510-2008		Debu	m Racis, Frances		
Tesue Details						
Return Part Details I of Controlled".	React Details CR3523-H2 React, Cherry Internal-Out The quantity of th being returned to which the materia	e part, which is the warehouse for al slip is created	Issue Warel Pa Iss Retu	ouse # H4 nt Type Expendable ue (ty. 250.00 nn (ty. 180.00	EA EA	
* Return Part # 1 El (R3523-4-2	The on Serial # Q	Return Lot # 9	Return Qty. 100.00	Return Classification		Issued
2 17 CR35234-2 3 17 Click here to pri tag for the unserviceable p	nt a Parts Pint Serviceable Tax	Leave this field blank s "Serial Controlled".	if the part]		* *

Figure 3. 24 Entering serial and lot number information

- 5. Enter the **Return Classification**.
- Note: For parts with Part Control Type "None Controlled", you must not specify any value in the Return Classification field for a part if; a) the "Return Valuation Based On Return Classification" is set to "Yes" in the "Set Options" activity of the Stock Maintenance component and, b) the Return Basis is "Returnable".
- Note: For parts with Part Control Type "None Controlled", the Valuation Method must be defined in the "Set Options" activity of the Stock Maintenance component for a Return Classification, Return Basis and Expense Basis combination for parts with Issue Basis other than "Returnable" and Material Type other than "Main Core".
 - 6. Click the **Edit Information** pushbutton to store the serial number and lot number details.
- Note: The system displays an error message, if any other concurrent user attempts to simultaneously modify the serial/lot number details of the return slip.

Signing off information

Signing off task is the confirmation for the task completion. Sign-off represents a formal certification by an authorized mechanic or inspector indicating that the task(s) prescribed by the work order has been accomplished. Sign-off also acts as a form of reporting job completion.

1. Select **Record Inspector Sign-off** under the **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Record Inspector Sign-off** page appears. *See Figure 3. 25.*

Record Inspector Sign-Off					鸿 Trailbar 🕶	☆ 🚔 🛱 🏹 🔟
			Date Forma	t	dd/mm/yyyy	
Employee Details						
Employee #	2095		Resource	Group	Mechanic 👻	
Skill Code	GEN 🗸			•		
License #	· · · · ·		Work Cente	r #	8 - MAJOR PROJECTS	
Search Criteria						
Visit Package #			Adv. Search	1 ID		✓ Edit
Work Order #			Work Order	Description		
Task #	The	lata an which th	ask Categ	ory		×
Status	task i	ale on which if	1e ask Descri	otion		
Aircraft Reg #		3 Signed-on	TA #		×	
Work Center #		~	Display Opt	ion	Sub-Task 🗸	
Sign-off Status	×	C				
	·		Search			
Update Details	4.0.10.4.100000					(
Sign-off Date & Time	18/04/2009	14:01:31	Default S	iign-Off Comments		
Work Unit Details						
< 🖣 🔤 - 10 / 500 🕨 💓 🛨				🛯 🖬 🛃 💼 🖪 🖃 A	I ▼	2
# 🗏 Work Order #	5eg #	5T Seq #	Sub Tasks		Job Status	Sign-off?
1 E HWO-000025-2006	2	1	zk-hze transmis	sion oil temp fault	In-Progress	
2 THWO-000025-2006	2	2	Certifying Engir	neer - Work content of this task	In-Progress	
3 T <u>HWO-000025-2006</u>	3	1	ZK-HTA 8 Jan T	urbine Outlet Temp cal	In-Progress	
4 <u>HWO-000025-2006</u>	3	2	Certifying Engir	neer - Work content of this task	In-Progress	
5 Click here to view the		Click hore to vi	ZK- HZE 18 Jan	COMM3 poor VSWR	In-Progress	
task card created in the		dotails of aircr	ew ine		In-Progress Schodulod	
third party application		maintenance n	nanual for		Scheduled	
9	1	the task		io and CD/Radio inop	In-Progress	
10 T HWO-000025-2006	10	2		eer - Work content of this task	In-Progress	
				\		
<						>
Print Request Record Sig	n-Off Record C	Completion	Reverse Con	npletion Record S	ign-Off & Completion	
Review Sign-Off Status Record Resource Usage Record Component Replacements Record Fuel / Oil Log	View Em Report D View File View Tas	oloyee Comments viscrepancies k Card		Review (Record F Record F View AM	Tomments Tart Consumption Tarameter Value M Reference	
Dec Adv. Dearch Criteria						

Figure 3. 25 Signing off information

- 2. Enter **Search Criteria** to search for a visit package for signing off, and click the Search pushbutton. The system displays the details of the visit package in the **Work Unit Details** multiline.
- 3. Select "Yes" in the **Sign-Off?** field, if sign-off is to be done for the work order task or sub task. Select "Void" is you wish to void the task sign-off. Select "No" otherwise.
- 4. Enter the date on which the task is signed off, in the **Sign-Off Date** field.
- 5. Enter the time at which the task is signed off, in the Sign-Off Time field.
- 6. Enter the **Sign-Off Comments** to specify any additional remarks pertaining to the sign-off of the task.
- 7. Enter the **File Name** to indicate the document or sheet which contains the details of the sign-off.
- 8. Click the **Print Request** pushbutton to print the inspector sign-off details for the selected task.
- 9. Click the **Record Sign-Off** pushbutton to update the sign-off details of the selected tasks.
- Note: The selected task will be signed off, even if the "Sign-Off?" field is left blank for the task. The task for which the "Sign-Off?" field is set as "No" will not be signed off, even if the task is selected for sign-off.
- Ensure that the task selected has not been signed off earlier.
- The current employee should have a valid certificate or license, to sign-off the selected task and skill, if "Approval Required" flag set as "Yes" in the "Maintenance Task" business component.
- On clicking the "Record Sign-Off" pushbutton, the "User Authentication Web Dialog" screen appears. Refer to the topic "Signing-off using Electronic Signature", for more details.
- If the "Job Status" of a task is set as "Completed", the system ensures that no employee is assigned to that task.
- Ensure the following before clicking "Record Completion" pushbutton.
 - The selected task has not been completed earlier.
 - Sign-off requirement is completed for the selected task
 - Access panel is closed before the task is completed, if it has only this task as reference and the "Closing of Access Panel before closing Work Order" is set as "Required".

- 10. Click the **Record Completion** pushbutton to update the completion details of the selected tasks.
- Note: The system does not permit the "Status" to be set as "Completed", if the selected work unit has "Job Status" as "Cancelled" or "Transient Status" as "Deferred"
- Note: If the "Job Status" of a task is set as "Completed", the system ensures that no employee is assigned to that task.
- Note: If all the other tasks of the work order are already completed and if the status of the last task in the work order is also changed to "Completed" then the system changes the status of the work order to "Completed".
 - 11. Click the **Reverse Completion** pushbutton to reverse the completion details of the selected tasks.
- Note: Only tasks that are in the "Completed" status can be selected for "Reverse Completion". Tasks associated to an EO-based work order cannot be considered for reversal.
- The resource group "Mechanic" cannot reverse the completion, if the task selected is already completed by the resource group "Inspector".
- Note: If the task and sub-task statuses are successfully reverted, the status of the work order for the respective tasks will be changed from "Completed" to "Inprogress". The status log is also updated with the status of the work order.
 - 12. Click the **Record Sign-Off & Completion** pushbutton to record the sign-off and the completion details of the selected tasks.
- Note: Ensure that the task selected is neither signed-off nor completed earlier.
- The system updates the sign-off information and updates the status as "Completed".
- If the "Job Status" of a task is set as "Completed", the system ensures that no employee is assigned to that task.
- The system changes the status of the work order to "Completed", if the status of the last task in the work order is changed to "Completed" and all the other tasks of the work order are already completed.
- The system does not permit the "Status" to be set as "Completed", if the selected work unit has "Job Status" as "Cancelled" or "Transient Status" as "Deferred.

On clicking the "Record Sign-Off & Completion" pushbutton, the "User Authentication Web Dialog" screen appears. Refer to the topic "Signing-Off using Electronic Signature" for more details.

You can proceed to do the following:

Select the **Review Sign-Off Status** link to view sign-off information for the tasks in the work order.

- ▼ Select the **View Employee Comments** link to review the employee comments.
- Select the **Review Comments** link to view the comments for the work order.
- ▼ Select the **Record Resource Usage** link to record resource usage information.
- ▼ Select the **Report Discrepancies** link to record discrepancy details.
- ▼ Select the **Record Part Consumption** link to record parts consumption information.
- Select the Record Component Replacements link to record component replacement information.
- ▼ Select the **View File** link to view the file containing the discrepancy details.
- ▼ Select the <u>Record Parameter Values and Conditional Evaluation Details</u> link to record parameter values for the work order.
- Note: You cannot traverse to this page, if the work order selected in the multiline is in "Closed", "Pre-Closed", "Cancelled" or "Returned" status.
 - Select the Record Fuel / Oil Log link to update fuel and oil consumption details for an aircraft.
 - ▼ Select the View Task Card link to view the task card created in the third party application.
 - ▼ Select the **View AMM Reference** link to view the details of aircraft maintenance manual for the task.
 - ▼ Select the Set Adv. Search Criteria link to set criteria for advanced search.

Issuing certificate of maintenance

The completion of execution of a maintenance activity might warrant a certification by a competent authority declaring that the equipment is deemed fit to resume normal operation. Certificate of Maintenance (CoM) is issued in this regard; it represents an undertaking (by the identified maintenance lead for the visit), that the maintenance activities have been executed as per the prescribed guidelines and the aircraft is fit for productive usage at the rated efficiency and reliability.

- 1. Select **Issue Certificate of Maintenance** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Aircraft** page appears.
- Enter the Visit Package # directly and select the Issue COM link provided alongside. Or, enter Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton. Click the hyperlinked Visit Package # in the Search Results multiline. The Issue Certificate of Maintenance page appears. See Figure 3. 26.
- Note: You cannot issue a CoM to the visit package under the following circumstances:
 - a) If sign-off is pending for the work units in the work orders of status other than "Cancelled" or "Pre-Closed".
 - b) If any pending work unit with next schedule date earlier than the current server date, exists for the aircraft or the component that is attached to the aircraft selected in the multiline.
 - 3. Select the **Numbering Type** for generating the certificate of maintenance number automatically.
- Note: For details on creating numbering types, refer to the section "Defining numbering types for transactions" in the "Inventory Setup" User Guide.
- The system does not consider overdue work units or work units with source as "Deferred"
 - 4. Select the **CoM Type** as "Regular" if the CoM is to be issued for the aircraft after completion of all maintenance activities and the flight is fit for normal operations or as "Test Flight" if the CoM is to be issued for the aircraft after partial completion of maintenance activities and the flight is fit for test flight.
 - 5. Enter the certificate reference document number in the **Certificate Ref #** field, and select the **Certificate Type**.
 - 6. Select the **Certificate Under to** specify the regulatory authority under which the certificate is issued.
 - 7. Enter the remarks pertaining to the issue of certificate of maintenance, in the **Certifying Remarks** field.

Direct Entr Visit Package Search Crit Visit Package Title Visit Category Work Center	iry 2 # Reria 2 #	Issue Co	м		
Direct Entr Visit Package Search Crit Visit Package Title Visit Category Work Center	ry 2 Acria 2 A	Issue Co	м		
Visit Package Search Cri Visit Package Title Visit Category Work Center	; # Reria ; #	Issue Co	м		
Search Cri Visit Package Title Visit Category Work Center	Reria 1 #				
Visit Package Title Visit Category Work Center			11 P. P P.		
Title Visit Category Work Center			Aircraft Reg #		
Visit Category Work Center			Project Code		
Work Center	7	×	Visit Group	×	
		×	User Status	×	
CoM Status		×	CoM Required	×	
CoM #					
Customer #			Customer Name		
			Search		
Search Re	esults				
66] (4)	1 -10/500 🔹 🔊 🖃				~
8 FL	Visit Package #	Title	COM #	Aircraft Reg #	Project Code
1 H	VP-000469-2008	for sch change one time		A-0802	
2 11	VP-000504-2008	for wulterm		A-0602	
3 11	VP-000531-2008	PPPP		A-0602	
4 11	VP-000910-2008	1000 Hr Check.		A-0802	
<u>इ</u> रा	VP-000911-2008	CAL Change Checks		A-0802	
6 71	VP-000477-2008	EO FOR BAS SEQ REC		A0302	
7. 7]	VP-000478-2008	vp fofr new task recurring type		A0302	
8 7	VP-000479-2008	VP FOR DIRECT EXECUTION WITH PARTS		A0302	
9 7	VP-000484-2008	FOR NEW TASK & NEW PART		A0302	
10. [7]	VP-000485-2008	VP FOR NEW TASK ONE TIME IN AMP 0003		A0302	
	<				



In the Inspector Details multiline,

- 8. Enter the **Skill Code** associated to the employee who signed the task or subtask (that is performed as part of the visit package).
- 9. Enter the Employee #.
- 10. Enter the **License #** of the employee.
- 11. Enter the **Remarks** if any, pertaining to the employee who signed off the task or subtask.

In the Key Person Details group box,

- 12. Enter the **Date & Time** on which the CoM is issued, modified, authorized or canceled.
- 13. Enter the **Comments** pertaining to the CoM.
- 14. Click the Create/Edit CoM pushbutton to create/edit the CoM.
- Note: The system displays an error message, if any other concurrent user attempts to simultaneously modify the details in this page.
- Note: If the CoM type is selected as "Test Flight", then all the tasks with execution phase as "Regular" or "Preparatory" must be signed-off and the job status must be "Completed".

If the CoM type is selected as "Regular", then all the tasks with execution phase as "Regular", "Post Flight" or "Preparatory" must be signed-off and the job status must be "Completed".

Issuing CoM using Electronic Signature

On clicking the **Create/Edit CoM** pushbutton, the **User Authentication Web Dialog** screen appears. Follow the instructions listed under the topic "Signing-off using Electronic Signature", for issuing the CoM.

- Note: On creating the CoM, the system sets the CoM status as "Fresh".
 - 15. Click the **Confirm CoM** pushbutton to confirm the CoM.
- Note: The system ensures that the login ID of the employee, who confirms the CoM, is different from the login ID of the employee who created the CoM.

On clicking the **Confirm CoM** pushbutton, the **User Authentication Web Dialog** screen appears. Follow the instructions listed under the topic "Signing-off using Electronic Signature", for confirming the CoM.

- Note: The system sets the CoM status as "Confirmed".
- Note: The discrepancies associated to the visit package or reported as part of the visit, should have been processed before the CoM is released.
- If the "CoM Required" field is set as "Yes" for the visit package, the system updates the condition of the aircraft that is associated to the visit package as "Operational" from "Under Maintenance," and sets the "AOG Status?" field to "No" in the "Aircraft" business component.
- If the CoM Type is "Test Flight" and the "Reference Date for Compliance Updation" is set as "Test Flight" or if CoM Type is "Regular" and the "Reference Date for Compliance Updation" is set as "Regular CoM Issue Date", then the system updates the "Last Compliance Date" as the "Issue Date" of the earliest of all CoMs issued, and updates the same in the Compliance History.
 - 16. Click the **Cancel CoM** pushbutton to cancel the CoM.
- The system sets the CoM status as "Cancelled".

Closing of work order

Closure of a work order denotes that all the scheduled work detailed in the work order are signed off or deferred, with due approval. It also signifies the end of the reporting phase.

- 1. Select the **Report & Close Work Order** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Report & Close Work Order** page appears. See *Figure 3. 27.*
- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** to search for the work order and click the **Search** pushbutton.

To report and close the work order,

- 3. Modify the status of the work order in the **Change Status To** drop-down list box. The system displays the options "Scheduled", "In-Progress", "Completed", "Cancelled", "Pre-Closed" and "Closed".
- Note: You cannot modify the status to "Completed", "Closed" or "Preclosed", if an employee is assigned to a particular task in the work order.
- Ensure that the timesheet status for the work reported against the tasks in the work order is "Authorized" or "Not Required", if the "Change Status To" is set to "Closed" or "Pre-Closed".
- Note: If the "Change Status To" field is set other than "Cancelled" or "Pre-Closed", the system ensures the following:
 - a) For the aircraft, if the engagement mode is set to "Full Maintenance" and the replacement type is set to "Remove Only", then all the component removal transactions associated to the work order must be in "Confirmed Removal" status.
 - b) Similarly, for the aircraft, if the engagement mode is set to "Full Maintenance" and the replacement type is set to "Replacement", "Restoration" or "Attach Only", then all the component removal transactions associated to the work order must be in "Confirmed Replacement" status.
- The user cannot cancel the Hanger Work Order, if (i) the Hanger Work Order # have reference in the "Reference Document #" in a Purchase Order, (ii) the Purchase Order Type is "Adhoc" or "Service" and (iii) the line item status is not "Short Closed" or "Cancelled".
- The user cannot cancel the Task, if (i) the Hanger Work Order, Task and Sequence have reference in the "Reference Document #", Task and Sequence in a Purchase Order, (ii) the Purchase Order Type is "Adhoc" or "Service" and (iii) the line item status is not "Short Closed" or "Cancelled".

•	Report & Close Work Order			式 Trailbar	• 🏡 🚔 🛱 🐺 🎟
			Date 8	& Time Format dd/mm/yyyy	hh:mm:ss
Searc	ch Criteria				
	Adv. Search ID	HWO-MATERIALS ISSUED 🔽 Edit		Job Type Aircraft	v
	Visit Package #			Status Scheduled 🛛 💌	
	Work Order #		Wo	rk Order Desc	
	Work Center #	3-BUS. PERFORMANCE		Jpdate Option 🛛 Task 🛛 💌	
	ATA #	0500 💌	4	Aircraft Reg #	
	Task Category	BALANCE	Та	sk Description	
	Customer #		a	ustomer Name	
			Search		
Actio	n Details				-
	Change Status To	Closed			
	Default Date	18/04/2009		Default as Actual End Date	~
Work	Details				
					v D
#	□ Work Order #	Status	Task #	% Completed	Sch. Start Date
1	□ HWO-000024-2006	In-Progress	AIRCRAFT-OL2K-1		10/05/2006
2	□ HWO-000025-2006	Scheduled	AIRCRAFT-OL2K-1		07/11/2006
3	□ HWO-000025-2006	In-Progress	NST-000095-2007-2		07/11/2006
4		In-Progress	NST-000107-2007-3		07/11/2006
5	□ HWO-000025-2006	In-Progress	NST-000228-2007-4		07/11/2006
6		In-Progress	NST-000229-2007-5		07/11/2006
7	□ HWO-000025-2006	Scheduled	NST-000230-2007-8		07/11/2006
8	☐ HWO-000025-2006	Scheduled	NST-000231-2007-9		07/11/2006
9	□ HWO-000025-2006	In-Progress	NST-002519-2007-10		07/11/2006
10	E HWO-000025-2006	In-Progress	NST-002520-2007-11		07/11/2006
	<				>
					*
			Record Work Execution		
Record Record Record Record Record Review	d Employee Work d Work Delays d Additional Part Usage d Job Information d Discrepancies w Comments d Fuel / Oil Log	Record Resource Usar Record Parameter Val Record Sign-Off Tasks Record In-Direct Work Edit / Authorize Labor	16 R 16 R Quantity R 1 Hours for Employee R Hours R	ecord Part Consumption ecord Additional Task Execution ecord Component Replacements ecord Backflushed Part Information ecord In-Direct Work Hours eview Sign Off Status	
Set Ad	dv. Search Criteria				
<)>

Figure 3. 27 Reporting and closing work order

- 4. Enter the work execution details of a task or a work order, in the **Work Details** multiline.
- 5. Click **Record Work Execution** pushbutton to update the actual details for the work order or task.

To close work order(s),

- 6. Set the status of the work order as "Closed" in the **Change Status To** drop-down list box.
- 7. Enter the **Execution Comments** in the Work Details multiline.

- 8. Click the Record Work Execution pushbutton to close the work order.
- Note: If all the tasks associated to the work order are set to "Completed" status, the system automatically updates the work order status to "Completed".

On closure of the work order, the system does the following:

- Updates the engineering order compliance details and the effectivity details of the EO number corresponding to the Aircraft on which the HWO is raised, in the "EO business component, if the Aircraft Reg # is not already available in the list of effective object list of the EO.
- Updates the aircraft or component configuration details.
- Updates the compliance details of EO-related work units in the maintenance program.
- Splits the time sheet records into time slabs and computes the skill price as defined in the roster code of the service price list, if the work order is based on a customer order attached to a service price list, that has the Pricing Method set to "Roster Code".
- If the job type is "Aircraft", the configuration change details are updated in the configuration revision history for the aircraft registration number. If the job type is "Component", the configuration change details are updated in the configuration revision history for the component.
- On recording the work execution, if the "Change Status To" field is set to "Closed", then based on the "Reference Date for Compliance Updation" set in the "Set Options" activity of the current business component, the system updates the compliance date in the compliance history of the maintenance program. If the "Reference Date for Compliance Updation" is set as
 - a. "Work Start Date", then the system updates the starting date of the work as the compliance date in the compliance history of the maintenance program.
 - b. "Work End Date", then the system updates the ending date of the work as the compliance date in the compliance history of the maintenance program.
 - c. "Test Flight COM Issue Date" or "Regular COM Issue Date", then the system updates the issue date of the certificate of maintenance as the compliance date in the compliance history of the maintenance program
- Note: The compliance and schedule details are updated even for un-forecasted work units that are associated to "Active" aircraft/component maintenance programs.
 - For the work order, the system retrieves the associated discrepancy and updates the discrepancy details.

- Updates the job status of the tasks and the standard procedure associated to the work order, as "Closed".
- The firm and the planned demands associated to the work order are removed.
- Updates the status of the material request associated to the work order to one of the following:
 - a) Cancelled If the material request is in "Draft" or "Fresh" status.
 - b) Short Closed If the material request is in "Authorized" status.
- Note: If there are issue documents in "Fresh" or "Draft" status for the short closed material request, the system updates the status of those documents to "Cancelled".
 - Calculates the material cost, resource cost, employee cost and miscellaneous cost for the work order.
 - If the work order is based on a customer order and any internal part was issued against the hangar work order, the stock status of the internal parts that were issued will be changed to "Customer".

Reversal of work order

Events such as data entry errors, unreported resource actuals etc. might require a closed work order to be re-opened for modification.

A "closed" work order can be "reversed" for selective modification. While details such as the employee actuals, resource details, miscellaneous cost can be modified, important execution information such as the date of completion of the task and components replaced cannot be modified.

Reversal of work orders is permitted till the closure of the associated visit package.

1. Select **Reverse Work Order** under **Hangar Work Reporting** business component. The **Select Work Order** page appears. See *Figure 3. 28.*

•	Selea	t Work Order				📑 Trailbar 🔹 🔤 🎰	
Sear	ch Cri	iteria		Click here to modify the advanced search criteria	Date For	nat dd/mm/yyyy	
		Visit Package # Work Order # Work Center #		Search	Aircraft Re Job T Adv. Search	g # vpe v ID v Edit	
Sear	ch Re	sults					
«	•	1 - 10 / 500 🕨 💓 🖃		🔁 📘 🚥 💷 💷 🛛	📳 🖃 All	~	P
#	П	Visit Package #	Aircraft Reg #	Work Order #		Work Order Description	
1	E	VP-000001-2006	NZ3806	HWO-000001-2006		655723 IROQUOIS GROU	
2	1	VP-000003-2006	NZ7001	HWO-000002-2006		660881 NZ7001 GROUP	
3	11	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000003-2006		655723 IROQUOIS GROU	
4	12	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000004-2006		ADDW - Iroquois	
5	E	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000005-2006		Iroquois Group 1	
6		VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000006-2006		Iroquois Group 10	
7	11	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000007-2006		Iroquois Group 11	
8	12	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000008-2006		Iroquois Group 12	
9	E	VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000009-2006		Iroquois Group 13	
10		VP-000004-2006	NZ3802	HWO-000010-2006		Iroquois Group 16	
				Persona Week Orders			>
			H	Reverse work Urders			
Set A	lv. Se	arch Criteria					
<							>

Figure 3. 28 Reversing work order

2. Enter **Search Criteria** to search for 'closed' work orders and click the **Search** pushbutton.

The system retrieves work orders in 'Closed' status, in the multiline.

3. Select the work order to be reversed and click the **Reverse Work Orders** pushbutton.

On reversing the work order, the system sets the work order to "Reversed" status.

- Note: The closed status of the work order cannot be changed to 'Reversed' once the Certificate of Maintenance is issued for the visit package.
 - 4. Use the links at the bottom of the page, to modify the work order details

Index

Α

Assigning Work order to employee, 40 Employees to the work order, 20 Resources, 40 Resources to the work order, 28 Work group, 43 Work order, 41 Work orders to work group, 44 Authorizing work order, 23

В

Backflushed part information recording, 71

С

Certificate of maintenance, 102 Closing work order, 104 Component Removal, 9, 10 Conditional Maintenance Evaluation, 91 Creating Maintenance material request, 34 Sub workorder, 15 Work group, 43 Creating material return slip, 93

D

Defining Quick codes, 50 Work delay codes, 60

Ε

Edit Work Order resource requirements, 19 Editing preferred serial and lot number information, 18 Electronic Signature For task sign off, 59 Issuing CoM, 104 Entering Additional notes, 20 Part requirements, 16 Resource requirements, 19 Work order details, 32 Serial and lot number in a return slip, 96 Executing visit package, 67 Executing work order, 47

I

In-Direct Category, 58 Issuing CoM Using Electronic Signature, 104

Μ

Main removal details recording, 81 Material issue reallocation, 73 Multiple replacement details recording, 78

Ν

Numbering Type, 8

Ρ

Parameter reading / conditional evaluation details, 90 Planning Execution of a work order, 25 Material requirements, 25 Resource requirement, 27 Priority, 10, 12, 36 Processing work order, 4

R

Reallocating materials issued, 73 Record.Parameter Reading / Cond. Eval. Form, 87, 88 Recording indirect work hours For the employees in work center, 62 Parameter details and conditional evaluation details for the task, 87 Work order, 6 Additional task, 75 Backflushed part information, 71 Component replacement, 76

Delay information, 60 Employee time sheet, 55 Facility usage, 91 Job execution, 83 Main removal details, 81 Multiple replacement details, 78 Part consumption, 68, 74 Serial and lot number information for backflushed parts, 72 Time sheet, 65 Work order discrepancies, 85 Preliminary inspection details, 47 Unscheduled work order, 8 Reporting Employee work details, 63 Execution details, 50 Spare part fitment, 70 Work delays, 61 Resource Type, 19, 27, 43 Return Classification, 95, 97 Reversal work order, 109

S

Scheduling work order, 29 Selecting Discrepancies to create work order, 22 Serial and lot number information Modification, 18 Recording for backflushed parts, 72 Entering in return slip, 96 Setting options Work reporting, 51 Short closing Material request, 37 Signing off information, 98 Signing-off using electronic signature, 59 Sign-off, 57 Sub work order creating, 15

U

Update Parameter Reading / Eval. Form, 91 User PIN, 59

V

Visit Package, 4, 8, 22, 47 Void Sub Task, 58

W

Work group creating, 43 Work order details entering, 32 Work order, 3, 8, 29 Pocessing, 4 Scheduling, 29 Setting options, 4
ramco

Corporate Office and R&D Center

Ramco Systems Limited, 64, Sardar Patel Road, Taramani, Chennai – 600 113, India Office + 91 44 2235 4510 / 3090 4000 Fax +91 44 2235 2884 Website - www.ramco.com